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DeDiCaTion

Rodney Kovtynoich

Rodney pastored Schrock Road Community 

Church in Wasilla for 21 years. He worked with 

the United States Postal Service and was friends 

with all who came through the post office doors.

The three men to whom this Book of Reports is dedicated had, as 

their greatest passion, sharing the gospel of the Lord Jesus Christ. 

Their presence will be missed, but their influence will linger for 
many years with those whom they touched.

Gene Medaris

Gene served churches in Valdez, Fairbanks, and 

after retirement, many churches as interim pas-

tor. He was also actively involved with the min-

istry of the Alaska Baptist Family Services (now, 

Birchwood Behavioral Health.)

Roy Moore

Roy was active in Convention work in the early 

years, serving on state staff as Religious Educa-

tion Director from 1958 to 1964.  He began pas-

toring the newly formed Mount Redoubt Baptist 

Church in Kenai in 1967 and continued there 

until his death in 2018.



Section I 
Proceedings
of the 73rd

annual meeting
of the

Alaska Baptist 
Convention
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MinuTes of The 69Th annual MeeTing of The alaska WoMan’s Missionary union

• Marilyn Radke, Fairbanks

• Judy Ann Cabe, North Pole
Judy Zach called for the vote on the recommendations, and all nomina-

tions were accepted. Sandy Wisdom-Martin prayed for the new Leadership 

Team.

CONCLUSION OF THE BUSINESS SESSION

Worship in Song: Led by Meghan Bowker

Offering

NAMB Missionary: Lisa Bell shared about church planting in Seattle. 

She read 1 Corinthians 15:58 and talked about how the unshakeable pursuit 

is worth our all. She spoke about their experiences planting a church in 

Seattle and closed with prayer for Alaska.

National WMU Executive Director Message: Sandy Wisdom-Martin 

spoke about the challenge given in 1 Corinthians 15:58 and the unshakeable 

pursuit. She shared 3 challenges found in 2 Timothy 4. 

a. Fight the good fight
b. Finish the race

c. Keep the faith
Recognitions: Judy Zach presented gifts to Linda Clark and Lisa Bell 

and thanked them for their participation in the program.

Closing Prayer: Judy Rice closed the meeting with prayer, and we ad-

journed to lunch in the fellowship hall.

Minutes taken by,

Robin Covington, WMU Recording Secretary

signature on file

69Th annual MeeTing of alaska WMu

TuesDay, sepT. 25, 2018

firsT bapTisT ChurCh, Wasilla

Welcome: Judy Zach welcomed all the attendees.

Worship: Meghan Bowker led worship

Prayer Calendar: Angela Jones read scripture and the names of mission-

aries having birthdays, and led the group in prayer.

Project HELP: Refugees: Linda Clark gave an update on refugees. She 

gave a call to action asking participants to pray, distribute literature, and see 

how your state can help refugees.

IMB Missionaries: ET and DT shared about their work among refugees 

in the refugee camps in Europe. They shared that the greatest need of refu-

gees is Christ, and that we have to put people above politics and show Jesus 

to refugees.

Judy Zach thanked the missionaries and encouraged everyone to learn 

more about refugees. 

Judy introduced Sandy Wisdom-Martin, the Executive Director/Treasur-

er of WMU, and Lisa Bell, a NAMB church planter from Seattle.

Business Session

Call to Order: Judy Zach called the business session to order.

Registration report: Robin Covington gave the registration report. There 

were 49 attendees with 25 from Chugach Baptist Association, 10 from 

Hatcher Pass Baptist Association, 7 from Tanana Valley Baptist Association, 

and 7 visitors from Nashville, Alabama, Seattle, and Indiana.

Judy Zach introduced the WMU leadership team members who were 

present.

PRESIDENT’S REPORT: 

Judy Zach gave the President’s Report.  She reported that the leadership 

team met in November to plan the Celebration. The theme of the Celebra-

tion was “Shaped to Serve.” There were 119 attendees at the Celebration. 

The offering was $2453.42 and it was divided evenly between Touch 

Tomorrow Today and Alaska Disaster Relief. 

After the Celebration, Valerie Carter led a session of African American 

training in Fairbanks, with 22 attendees.

Tanana Valley Association had an event for teens this summer. 

Six ladies attended the National WMU Annual Meeting in Dallas this 

summer. The new theme, Unshakeable Pursuit was introduced along with 

the emphasis on Refugees.

Judy talked about the 2 funds, Touch Tomorrow Today and the 2nd Cen-

tury Fund that help fund Alaska WMU. The TTT fund currently has $57,000 

and the 2nd Century Fund has $2800.00

Judy reminded us that this is the 69th year of WMU in Alaska. Our 

emphasis on missions has stayed the same through the years. We have pro-

moted praying, and the special offerings – Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, 

Valeria Sherard State Mission offering and the Annie Armstrong Easter 

Offering. We also promote going and learning. 

Several new WMU groups have begun this year.

Judy shared that this is her last year to serve as WMU President for Alas-

ka, and that a new leadership team would be elected today.

NEW BUSINESS:

Nominating Committee Report was shared by Judy Ann Cabe. 

• President: Angela Jones

• Adult Missions Consultant: Donna Fleury

• African American Consultant: Robin Barden

• Youth Missions Consultant: Kathryn Diane Kanz

• Children’s Missions Consultant: Glenda Shaw

• Preschool Missions Consultant: Shirley Nye

• Recording Secretary: Robin Covington
Association WMU Directors (Vice Presidents for AK, not elected)

• Chugach Baptist Association: Judy Rice

• Tanana Valley Baptist Association: Rebecca Myers

• Tongass Baptist Association: Sheila Nyquest
Nominating Committee 2018-19

• Judy Ann Cabe, North Pole

• Marilyn Radke, Fairbanks

• Barbara Young, Anchorage
Nominating Committee 2019-20
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proCeeDings of The 73 annual MeeTing of The alaska bapTisT ConvenTion

were added to the church’s outreach database as a result of the park opening. 

Micah Ellington, Youth Leader for the Crossing@Birchwood Church, and 

Chris Gatch, Youth Leader for Muldoon Road Baptist Church, spoke on the 

Youth for Christ organization.

Jae McKee, Director of Church Planting and Missions of the ABC, 

showed a Cooperative Program (CP) video created by the partnership with 

the Alabama State Board of Missions to be used to promote CP giving in 

Alaska (File 1, Count 00:43:13). Mr. McKee’s written report is located 

on page 16 of the 2018 Book of Reports. He reported three church plant-

ers moved from Alaska this year: Josh Williamson, Steve Kim, and Su’e 

Su’e. Glacier Valley Baptist Church will be sponsoring a Hispanic church 

plant--Mario Morales will be the pastor in October. Three other new church 

planters are currently going through NAMB’s assessment process: Michael 

Rice, Randy King, and Milton Thomas. Dr. Jim Hamilton has agreed to 

coach church planters in 2019. The partnership is vital to be successful in 

evangelism throughout the state. Jacob and Audrey Lidh moved to Alaska to 

become assistant directors of the Laverne Griffin Youth Recreational Camp.
Pastor Lawrence Ellison of St. John Baptist Church, Fairbanks and chair 

of the Budget and Finance Committee of the ABC, presented the 2019 

proposed budget calling for CP funds of $839,320.78 with 37% being sent 

out-of-state for world missions (File 1, Count 00:52:50). The Budget and 

Finance Committee recommended dropping the percentage of funds being 

sent out-of-state for world missions to 20%. There was much discussion. 

Don Shannon, Pastor of Sunset Hills Baptist Church, made a motion to stop 

the discussion. Cliff Day, Pastor of First Baptist Church-Anchorage second-

ed the motion. The motion passed unanimously. The messengers voted to 

adopt the 2019 proposed budget with the 20% going to world missions. Mo-

tion to adopt the 2019 proposed budget passed without verbal opposition.

David Banks, Executive Director of Birchwood Behavioral Health 

[BBH] (previously known as the Alaska Baptist Family Services), present-

ed a video showing the facilities and activities of the organization (File 2, 

Count 00:03:43). He handed out his written report and the BBH’s finan-

cial report is located on page 39 of the 2018 Book of Reports. Mr. Banks 

reported that BBH belongs to the ABC and not the State of Alaska. One of 

the greatest challenges of 2018 was reaccreditation with CARF (the Com-

mission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities). This accreditation 

must be done every three years in order to continue obtaining funding. BBH 

passed the accreditation. Currently, 3% of Alaska Baptist churches give to 

BBH. The 2020 goal is to see that percentage increase to 10%. Mr. Banks 

stated later in the meeting that as of September 1, 2018, BBH is offering 

out-patient counseling.

Adam Long is the Coordinator of the Alaska Baptist Foundation (ABF). 

The ABF’s written report is located on page 19 of the 2018 Book of Reports 

(File 2, Count 00:15:40). Mr. Long updated his written report by stating 

currently the ABF manages 68 fund accounts. ABF continues their partner-

ship with PhilanthroCorp and The Baptist Foundation of Alabama. Through 

its partnerships, $6.8 million of future plan gifts will be handled through the 

ABF. How do we have strong hands: have a Heart that is sold out to Christ; 

be Authentic in the faith; see the Needs of others; be Dependent on God; 

and be Service focused and not self-centered. The ABF financial report is 
located on pages 40-45 of the 2018 Book of Reports. Paul Frost, Pastor of 

Togiak Baptist Mission, made a motion to approve the report. The motion 

passed unanimously.

Judy Zach’s, President of the Alaska WMU, written report is located on 

page 24 of the 2018 Book of Reports (File 2, Count 00:25:28). Mrs. Zach 

reported that the 2018 69th Annual Meeting of Alaska WMU was held 

Tuesday, September 25, 2018, at First Baptist Church, Wasilla. The 2018-

2019 Alaska WMU Leadership team members are as follows: Angela Jones, 

President; Donna Fleury, Adult Missions Consultant; Robin Barden, African 

American Consultant; Kathryn Diane Kanz, Youth Missions Consultant; 

Glenda Shaw, Children’s Missions Consultant; Shirley Nye, Pre-school Mis-

sions Consultant; and Robin Covington, Recording Secretary. Association 

WMU Directors are Vice Presidents of Alaska WMU (not elected) and they 

are Rebecca Myers from Tanana Valley Baptist Association and Judy Rice 

from Chugach Baptist Association. Linda Clark, President of the Indiana 

WMU, will be leading the Alaska WMU Leadership Training Wednesday 

night and Thursday. The new 2018-2019 theme is Unshakable Pursuit and 

critical issue is Project HELP: Refugees. The watchword comes from 1 Cor-

alaska bapTisT ConvenTion

73rD annual MeeTing MinuTes

sepTeMber 25-26, 2018

The 73rd Annual Meeting of the Alaska Baptist Convention (ABC) was 

called to order by President Bryan Myers on September 25, 2018, at 2:00 

p.m. at First Baptist Church, 900 Leatherleaf Loop, Wasilla, AK 99654 (File 

1, Count 00:00:20). Six students from California Baptist University (CBU) 

led the music for the Annual Meeting. Songs sung were: Worthy Is The 

Lamb, Grace Alone, We Live For You, Amazing Grace, Make Us Like You 

Lord, What A Fellowship, I’m Forgiven, and Worthy Of Every Song We 

Could Ever Sing.

Pastor Stephen Shrimplin of First Baptist Church, Wasilla welcomed the 

messengers and guests.

Pastor Mark Fontecchio of Pioneer Baptist Church, Wasilla provided a 

scriptural reading of Revelation 1:18 and prayed. 

Shirley Bearce, chair of the Credentials Committee, reported 119 

messengers representing 44 churches have registered for the 73rd Annual 

Meeting of the ABC (File 1, Count 00:09:22). There were 40 guests signed 

in making a total attendance of 159. On behalf of the Credentials Commit-

tee, Shirley Bearce moved that the roll messengers, and those who sign in 

after them, be seated for the 73rd Annual Meeting of the ABC. The report 

stood approved and a quorum was established.

Pastor Mike Balos of CrossCountry Church, Wasilla, and member of the 

Program Committee recommended from the Program Committee to adopt 

the 73rd Annual Meeting Program as printed with any adjustments that may 

be required (File 1, Count 00:10:25). The motion passed unanimously.

Dr. Randy Covington, Executive Director/Treasurer of the ABC, gave 

gratitude to the members of First Baptist Church, Wasilla, Pastor Shrimplin 

and wife Dana for the work involved in hosting the 73rd Annual Meeting of 

the ABC (File 1, Count 00:11:16). The theme of the 73rd Annual Meeting 

was “Strengthen My Hands” from Nehemiah 6:9. Dr. Covington shared 

three observations from the book of Nehemiah: 1. God gave the man a 

vision and the man was totally committed to that vision. 2. The man prayed 

for there was opposition to distract him from what God was calling him 

to do. 3. The man gave God the glory when the vision was fulfilled. Dr. 
Covington highlighted the following from his written report that is located 

on page 15 of the 2018 Book of Reports.:

• He traveled throughout Alaska visiting churches and pastors.

• Jae McKee was hired full time to join the staff of the ABC as Di-

rector of Church Planting and Missions.

• David Banks was hired full time as Executive Director for BBH.

• A vision team was appointed by President Bryan Myers to assist 

Dr. Covington in preparation of the new vision for the ABC that 

would be presented at the 73rd Annual Meeting: Abide in Christ 

(John 15:5), Build the kingdom of heaven on earth (Matthew 6:10, 

16:18-19), and Cooperate in one sacred effort (Acts 1:8).

• Pastor Roy Moore of Mount Redoubt Baptist Church, Kenai went 

to be with the Lord Saturday, August 25, 2018.

• The 2018 Book of Reports is dedicated to the late Judson Owen 

and Charlotte Stuart for their tremendous roles of faithful servants 

to the Lord Jesus Christ in Alaska.
Dr. Covington made a motion to adopt the assessor’s report found on 

pages 28-38 of the 2018 Book of Reports. Ruby Stogsdill, a messenger 

of First Baptist Church, Soldotna, seconded the motion (File 1, Count 

00:28:10). The motion passed without objection.

Jimmy Stewart’s, Director of Evangelism and Church Development of 

the ABC, written report is located on page 17 of the 2018 Book of Reports 

(File 1, Count 00:29:20). Mr. Stewart was able to work with 13 college stu-

dents this summer, along with Scott Belmore (Director of MCM), teaching 

them how to share Christ. Only one of the 13 students had witnessed before. 

The group left Alaska the first week of August enthusiastic in wanting to 
share their testimonies and be a witness for the Lord Jesus Christ. The ABC 

gave out thousands of dollars to assist churches with special projects. Dr. 

Bruce Rowell, pastor of First Baptist Church, Palmer, shared how some of 

the funds the ABC provided, along with other donations, were instrumental 

in opening the Friendship Park created by FBC, Palmer. There were about 

700 people who attended the grand opening. Approximately 200 families 
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President Myers adjourned the first session of the 73rd Annual Meeting 
of the ABC at 4:36 p.m., September 25, 2018.

Brian Hicks, Pastor of Whittier Baptist Church and True North-Gird-

wood, led the benediction prayer.

Tracy Simmons, First Vice President of the ABC, called the second ses-

sion of the 73rd Annual Meeting of the ABC to order at 6:00 p.m., Septem-

ber 25, 2018 (File 3, Count 00:00:10).

Mark Goodman, Pastor of Rabbit Creek Church, led in a scriptural read-

ing of John 6:35 and prayed.

Mrs. Bearce revised the Credential Committee report to reflect 122 
registered voting messengers representing 44 churches, and 44 guests mak-

ing a total attendance of 166 (File 3, Count 00:07:52). The motion passed 

unanimously.

Dr. Covington called for the election of officers by secret ballot.
William Townes, Vice President for Convention Finance, Southern Bap-

tist Convention (SBC), presented the Executive Committee of the Southern 

Baptist Convention report on behalf of Augie Boto, Interim President (File 

3, Count 00:13:36). Mr. Townes gave greetings from over 47,000 churches 

across the Southern Baptist Convention. He gave his testimony and went 

over the CP process. Mr. Townes reported that David Becker, Pastor of 

First Baptist Church, Delta Junction, replaced Charles Worthy as the ABC 

representative of the Executive Committee of the SBC Board of Direc-

tors. Anita Kovtynovich and Butch Strickland served on the committee 

of nominations. Shirley Bearce and Steve Kim served on the committee 

on committees. Rebecca Sherman is finishing her service with the North 
American Mission Board. Judy Zach served, and now Angela Jones will be 

serving, on the National WMU. Since 1925 Southern Baptists have contrib-

uted $7,000,303,976 as of the end of August 2018 to the CP. Since 1954, the 

ABC gave $23,754,913 to the CP as of the end of 2017.

Pastor Becker prayed for the Executive Committee of the Southern 

Baptist Convention.

The GuideStone Financial Resources video of Dr. O. S. Hawkins ex-

plaining products GuideStone offer and services they provide was shown 

(File 3, Count 00:41:11). Any pastor who receives a W2 from their church 

is eligible to enroll in the GuideStone Annuity Plan. GuideStone offers 

annuity assistance to retired preachers or the spouse of a preacher through 

Mission:Dignity.

Rick Curtis, Regional Mobilizer for the Western States, North American 

Mission Board (NAMB), showed a video from Kevin Ezell, President of 

the North American Mission Board. President Ezell stated Johnny Hunt will 

be leading the new evangelism and leadership group. Mr. Curtis presented 

the NAMB report (File 3, Count 00:45:20) and brought attention to several 

brochures that were available on the NAMB display table. He stated that 

NAMB is a committed partner with Alaska.

Jim Boyd, Pastor of Roots Family Church-Soldotna, prayed for NAMB.

E. & D. T., International Mission Board Personnel, presented a video 

depicting some of the work missionaries are doing (File 3, Count 00:55:45). 

Every church has a vital role to play in taking the Gospel to every nation. A 

video from David Platt was shown.

Val Natcher, Pastor of Filipino Bible Church, Anchorage, prayed for the 

International Mission Board.

Dr. Covington recognized Betsy Shilling and Sylvia Rylander by pre-

senting them with 10-year anniversary certificates for the work they have 
done at the ABC (File 3, Count 01:13:09).

Dr. Covington shared the new vision for the ABC (File 3, Count 

01:15:23). It all began when a study task force, chaired by Dr. Jeff Ander-

son, was charged with the task of surveying church members to see how 

the ABC could be more effective in assisting the church with their mission 

to spread the Gospel. The results of the survey were brought to the Ex-

ecutive Board in the May 2018 board meeting, and it showed that ABC 

needed to undergo a change in order to be more effective in their role of 

assisting churches. The change would not be as an alternate, substitute, or 

transform, but to modify their current procedures. In order to modify we 

would need to: (1) refocus--develop a clear vision, (2) rebrand--put a new 

face on the organization by use of social media, and (3) reposition--devel-

op a structure that would better communicate the needs of churches and 

evangelize areas that have not heard the Gospel. To restructure to a network 

inthians 5:58. The 2018 Women on Mission Celebration “Shaped to Serve” 

based on Isaiah 64:8 was held April 5-7, 2018, at First Baptist Church, An-

chorage. Over $2,400 was collected in offerings that were divided equally 

to go to Alaska Disaster Relief and Touch Tomorrow Today (a fund in the 

WMU Foundation that helps support National WMU and Alaska WMU). 

Mrs. Zach introduced Sandy Wisdom-Martin, Executive Director/Treasurer 

of WMU, SBC who gave a report from WMU national headquarters.

Pastor Gordon Mills of Glacier Valley Baptist Church, Juneau, and chair 

of the Annual Committees: Committee on Boards, Committee on Com-

mittees, and Time, Place, Preacher Committee, presented the committee’s 

reports (File 2, Count 00:36:26):

• The committee recommended Todd Buck, Michael Bunton, Mark 

Christensen, and Al Weeks to serve on the ABC Executive board 

with expiration terms of September 2022; Eugene Williams to 

replace Darvin Jordan’s expiration term of September 2021; and 

Brian Hicks to replace Brandon Jones’ expiration term of Septem-

ber 2021.

• The committee recommended Pastor Blake Hart (Hillside Baptist 

Church, Anchorage) and Pastor Don Shannon (Sunset Hills Baptist 

Church, Anchorage) to serve their first term on the BBH Board of 
Directors with terms expiring September 2021, and Jae McKee 

(member of Montana Creek Baptist Church) to serve his second 

term on the BBH Board of Directors with term expiring September 

2021.

• The committee recommended Pastor Tom Hoffman (Fairview 

Loop Baptist Church, Wasilla) to serve his second term on the ABF 

Board of Directors with term expiring September 2021, and Mark 

Johnston (member of Grandview Baptist Church, Anchorage) and 

Dustin Shannon (member of Sunset Hills Baptist Church, Anchor-

age) to serve their first terms on the ABF Board of Directors with 
terms expiring September 2021.

• The committee recommended Pastor Paul Folk (Big Lake Baptist 

Church, Big Lake) to serve a second term on the Constitution and 

Bylaws Committee with the term expiring September 2021, and 

Ruby Stogsdill (member of First Baptist Church, Soldotna) to 

replace Cindy Boney on the Constitution and Bylaws Committee 

with the term expiring September 2020.

• The committee recommended Pastor Michael Bunton (Greater 

Friendship Baptist Church, Anchorage) to deliver the 74th Annual 

Meeting preacher sermon on September 24-25, 2019, at College 

Heights, Pastor Al Weeks (First Baptist Church, Kenai) as the alter-

nate preacher, and recommended Glacier Valley Baptist Church, 

Juneau be the host church of the 77th Annual Meeting of the ABC 

on September 27-28, 2022.
All of the committee’s recommendations were approved by a unanimous 

vote.

Dr. Covington called for the nominations of officers (File 2, Count 
00:44:09). David Banks, a messenger of Grandview Baptist Church, nom-

inated Tracy Simmons, Pastor of Christ Community Church, Anchorage 

as President. Dr. Covington closed nomination for President by unanimous 

consent. Dr. Covington called for nominations for Vice Presidents. There 

must be at least two nominations. The nominee receiving the most votes 

would be elected as First Vice President, and the nominee receiving the 

second highest votes would be elected as Second Vice President. Judy Rice, 

a messenger of First Baptist Church, Anchorage, nominated Pastor Cliff 

Day of First Baptist Church, Anchorage as Vice President. Cody O’Neal, a 

messenger of True North-Anchorage, nominated Scott Belmore, member 

of True North, Anchorage, for Vice President. Pastor Leon May of River in 

the Desert Church nominated Judy Zach as recording secretary. Mrs. Zach 

declined the nomination. Judy Ann Cabe, a messenger of Moose Creek 

Baptist Church, North Pole, nominated Anna Allen, member of First Baptist 

Church, Anchorage, as recording secretary. The nominations were closed by 

Dr. Covington by unanimous consent.
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Executive Committee, works with eight Asian Fellowships of over 2000 

churches to build relations to work together in partnership through the CP 

(File 5, Count 00:29:00). He reported on the start of a new Korean work two 

years ago in Fairbanks--Frontier Baptist Church.  Over 280 people attended 

the grand opening. Thirty RVs were driven over the Alcan from across the 

nation to attend this special event. 

Dr. Covington recognized the new pastors of the ABC: Jerrod Clark of 

Coffman Cove Community Baptist Church; Blake Hart of Hillside Baptist 

Church; Wilbert Mickens of New Hope Baptist Church; Robert Nelson, 

Mitch Senior, and Mryon Severson of Bodenburg Butte Baptist Church; 

Greg Weinert of Emmanuel Baptist Church-Juneau; Jacob Whittaker of Un-

alaska Reformed Church; and Keith Longo of First Baptist Church-Soldotna 

(File 5, Count 00:36:24).

Dr. Covington recognized the platform guests by the presentation of 

gifts: Stuart Bell, Mark Bradley, Rick Curtis, Paul Kim, John Montgomery, 

James Swartz, Bill Townes, E. & D. T. missionaries, and the six-member 

worship team from CBU. Dr. Covington presented President Myers a gavel 

plaque as appreciation for serving two years as President of the ABC (File 5, 

Count 00:38:54).

Scott Belmore, Director of Mosaic Campus Ministry (MCM), presented 

a video depicting the work of MCM (File 5, Count 00:45:46). The one goal 

of MCM is to build community on campus one student at a time. Logan 

Skoog, MSC missionary serving at MCM, stated consistency is a key ele-

ment when working with students. This past summer Mr. Belmore and Mr. 

Stewart worked with 13 student interns training them how to evangelize and 

share their testimony.

The Valeria Sherard State Mission Offering was taken as the praise team 

led in singing “I’m Forgiven” and “Worthy of Every Song We Would Ever 

Sing”.

John Jemar, Assistant Director/Dean of Wayland Baptist University 

(WBU)--Parkside Site, gave greetings from Dr. Eric Ash, Executive Di-

rector and Campus Dean of the Anchorage Campus, and Dr. Beth Durbin, 

Interim Executive Director and Campus Dean of the Fairbanks Campus. 

Mr. Jemar thanked the ABC for three decades of partnership with WBU 

(File 5, Count 01:16:27). The WBU’s written report is located on page 26 

of the 2018 Book of Reports. Mr. Jemar reported that the average age of a 

Wayland student is 33, eighty percent of students have a connection to the 

military base, and four out of five students are lost. 
James Swartz, LifeWay Christian Resources representative, reported 

that LifeWay Christian Resources has relocated in Nashville (File 5, Count 

01:23:58). LifeWay Global is reaching countries like Mexico, India, and 

China. This year in India Vacation Bible School literature will be available 

in five different languages. Mr. Swartz presented President Myers with new 
books from Dr. Thom Rainer, President and CEO of LifeWay Christian 

Resources, and a Bible.

The annual sermon was preached by Troy Gourley, Pastor of Cross 

Roads Baptist Church, North Pole from Nehemiah 8:6 and theme was 

“Strengthen Your Worship” (File 5, Count 01:33:40).

The people had a hunger for God’s Word. Worship spread because the 

Word of God was heard. The people were attentive to the message. Worship 

was sustained because the Word of God was honored. 

Dr. Covington gave the results of the Vision vote: 72 yes and 14 no (File 

5, Count 01:58:50).

Mrs. Bearce gave the results of the officer vote: 92 votes were cast for 
Tracy Simmons as President; for Vice President of 91 votes cast-- 49 were 

for Scott Belmore and 42 were for Cliff Day; 92 votes were cast for Anna 

Allen as Recording Secretary (File 5, Count 01:59:52). The 2018-2019 ABC 

officers are President Tracy Simmons, Pastor of Christ Community Church; 
First Vice-President Scott Belmore, member of True North and Director of 

MCM; Second Vice-President Cliff Day, Pastor of First Baptist Church-An-

chorage; and Recording Secretary Anna Allen, member of First Baptist 

Church-Anchorage. Ballots will be available for review until January 22, 

2019, at which time they will be destroyed according to Roberts Rules of 

Order.

Mr. Day called for announcements. Jae McKee announced he would 

like to meet with all members of the BBH Board of Directors following the 

annual meeting. Mr. Stewart gave thanks to the members of First Baptist 

model where strategy would come from the churches and be field-driven 
by way of regional facilitators acting as conduits on behalf of the church 

to express needs to the ABC for support. The state would be divided into 

six regions: Northwest Alaska, Northeast Alaska, South-central Alaska-An-

chorage, South-central Alaska-Mat-Su, Southwest Alaska, and Southeast 

Alaska. The new vision would be to Abide in Christ (John 15:5), Build the 

kingdom of heaven on earth (Matthew 6:10, 16:19), and Cooperate in one 

sacred effort (Acts 1:8). The mission statement would be to glorify God as 

we assist churches to: Evangelize the lost, Equip new believers, Establish 

new churches, Encourage the saints, and Extend the Gospel to the ends of 

the earth. Rebranding would come about by establishing a new identity that 

would communicate what is our purpose. The proposed new name would be 

“Alaska Baptist Resource Network”. Dr. Covington will lead a question and 

answer time on the Vision following the second session of the 73rd Annual 

Meeting of the ABC.

President Myers presented the President’s Message on Mark 6:7ff. Jesus 

sent his twelve disciples out two-by-two (File 3, Count 01:53:35). They 

were commissioned--called to abide with Christ. Mark 1:21ff gave Jesus’ 

purpose--to teach with a new authority. They were to be urgent in their 

commission. The disciples were to travel unencumbered by extra articles 

of clothing or personal items. They were to trust in God for their provision. 

They were to stay focused on the task--to proclaim the Gospel in word and 

deed. Repentance is vital. Luke 13:3-5 says to repent or perish. Luke 15:7 

says that heaven rejoices when one sinner repents. Acts 2:38 says to repent 

and be baptized and you will receive the gift of the Holy Spirit. Christians 

are called by the Father to salvation, saved by the work of the Son, empow-

ered by the Holy Spirit upon you, and given the authority of Jesus Christ. 

Thomas Watson writes in The Doctrine of Repentance that there are six 

characteristics of repentance: (1) sight of sin, (2) sorrow of sin, (3) confes-

sion of sin, (4) shame for sin, (5) hatred for sin, and (6) repentance/turning 

from sin. 

Greg Crawford, Minister of Worship/Education at College Heights Bap-

tist Church, provided the benediction prayer.

First Vice-President Simmons adjourned the second session of the 73rd 

Annual Meeting of the ABC at 8:40 p.m., September 25, 2018.

File 4 is the taped “Vision Question and Answer” time.

Second Vice-President Cliff Day called the third session of the 73rd 

Annual Meeting of the ABC to order at 9:00 a.m., September 26, 2018.

Preston Eggler, Pastor of Adelphoi, provided a scriptural reading from 

Exodus 4:2 and led in prayer.

Mrs. Bearce moved to revise the Credential Committee report to reflect 
122 registered voting messengers representing 44 churches and 47 guests 

registered making a total in attendance of 169 (File 5, Count 00:09:27). The 

motion passed unanimously.

Dr. Covington called to cast a vote to adopt a new vision for the ABC to 

begin a two-year journey to create a new face that reveals who the organi-

zation is to the culture and to develop a new structure that is efficient and 
effective (File 5, Count 00:11:10). The stated goal of this vote is to refocus, 

rebrand, and reposition the ABC so that a modified organization will be in 
place by the 75th-anniversary celebration of the ABC in 2020. The vote 

is to pursue the implementation of the new vision and most likely have an 

implementation team to work on implementing the new vision by 2020. The 

vote was taken by secret ballot.

Mark Bradley, Pacific Northwest Campus Director for Gateway Sem-

inary, presented the report from Gateway Seminary (formerly known as 

Golden Gate Baptist Theological Seminary) (File 5, Count 00:15:59). Dr. 

Bradley reported that the online campus is the fastest growing and largest 

campus at Gateway Seminary. He shared about multiple degrees offered 

online fully accredited. He introduced Dr. Warren Haynes, National Director 

of Contextualized Leadership Development for Gateway Seminary. 

John Montgomery, Dean of Spiritual Life at California Baptist Universi-

ty (CBU), presented a report from CBU (File 5, Count 00:23:09). There are 

over 11,000 students enrolled. Last year the university built a new 5,000-

seat event center. This year the university finished construction of a new 
college of engineering building. This summer over three hundred students 

divided into over 40 teams ministered in over 20 countries. During the 

welcome weekend, the opportunity arose to share the Gospel with over 2200 

new students enrolled this semester.

Paul Kim, National Asian American Relations Consultant for SBC 
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proCeeDings of The 73 annual MeeTing of The alaska bapTisT ConvenTion
Church-Wasilla for hosting the Annual Meeting and expressed appreciation 

to Luke Jones and Stacey Wilkens for operating the sound system.

Angela Jones, Pastor Wife of New Birth Christian Church, Fairbanks, 

led the benediction prayer. 

The 73rd Annual Meeting of the ABC adjourned at 11:10 a.m., Septem-

ber 26, 2018.

Minutes were taken by,

Debra Long

Operation and Finance Administrator of the ABC

Signature on file

Minutes approved by,

Anna Allen

Recording Secretary of the ABC

Signature on file





Section II 
Reports
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to which we have given our lives. 

This will be a major emphasis for 

the next year.

Sad Moments – While we are ex-

cited about new pastors and church 

staff members who have filled the 
vacant ranks of church leaders in 

our state, we have lost some dear 

faithful servants of previous gener-

ations. As a child I remember Roy 

Moore who pastored Mt 

Redoubt Baptist Church 

from its inception in 

1967. For a young boy, 

he was a giant man of 

God and Alaska Baptists will miss him. Gene Medaris was 

pastoring in Valdez when I came to serve in Alaska. I enjoyed 

visiting with him at associational meetings and hearing about 

all the places he had served as pastor in Alaska. Rodney 

Kovtynovich became a dear friend and colleague during my 

7 years of ministry in Wasilla. I prayed with him and encour-

aged him as he responded to God’s call to full-time ministry. 

I was so excited when he finished seminary and returned to 
Alaska and started the church at Schrock Road in Wasilla. His 

early departure from this world to his promised home is our 

great loss and heaven’s gain.

Highlights – I was excited as we concluded our annual meet-

ing in Wasilla last year and affirmed the need to revision, re-

brand and reposition the Alaska Baptist Convention for future 

growth. My heart’s desire is to see our network of churches 

reaching people for Christ, growing in grace and knowledge, 

and developing new believers to impact lostness all around 

them. To that end, our implementation team has been working 

diligently to lead us in this process of change.

The Alaska Baptist Resource Network has been launched as a 

new face under the auspices of the Alaska Baptist Convention 

with a fresh vision and mission statement. Our new website 

and media presence are allowing us to be more effective in 

communicating who we are and what we are doing across our 

state. I want to express appreciation to Tracy Simmons and the 

Implementation Team for their hard work over the past year. 

I also want to thank Sundog Media and One Missiontv for 

their expert assistance in creating some very creative tools that 

connect with a new generation of Baptists.

Travel – As I have said in the past, visiting churches, preach-

ing and worshipping with other Alaska Baptists is one of the 

real joys of my ministry. This year I traveled to places like Ju-

neau, Petersburg, Fairbanks, North Pole, Eagle River, Palmer, 

Wasilla, Seward, Soldotna, Ketchikan, and to many Anchor-

age and Mat-Su area churches. I am so encouraged to see how 

God is using our churches across Alaska to build the Kingdom 

of Heaven on earth.

Capitol Ministries – In January, I met Ralph Drollinger, 

founder of Capitol Ministries in southern California and we 

began dreaming about how to gain access to state lawmakers 

in Alaska with opportunities to seek wisdom through study-

ing the Scriptures. Conversations with Governor Mike Dun-

leavy and Kevin Clarkson, Attorney General for Alaska, have 

revealed a sincere desire to conduct weekly Bible studies on 

the Capitol campuses in Anchorage and Juneau. I am excited 

that Eugene Williams has offered to lead the Bible studies in 

Juneau and Mark Goodman will be leading the studies in An-

chorage. Please pray for our state and national leaders as they 

make decisions that affect our lives.

New Administrative Assistant – We have been blessed to 

have Logan Wisniewski join us at the convention office. Lo-

gan assists with the offices of state missions, church planting, 
evangelism and church development. If you haven’t met Lo-

gan, find her during the meeting and introduce yourself.

Revitalization – I have come to believe that revitalization 

is one of the major needs of our churches in Alaska. Current 

national statistics show that 68% of Southern Baptist churches 

are either plateaued or declining. I am committed to address-

ing this concern through the work of the Alaska Baptist Re-

source Network in assisting churches to assess their needs and 

implement strategies to Rekindle the vitality of the gospel call 

sTaff reporTs

Dr. Randy Covington

Executive Director/Treasurer

Alaska Baptist Convention
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churches to connect ongoing ministry partnerships and projects.

• Attended NAMB Home Week in Alpharetta, GA, January 2019 

to receive training on networking connections to assist church 

replanting efforts in Alaska.

• Represented the ABC at a World Missions Conference at Second 

Baptist Church, Springfield, Missouri, and established a partner-
ship for church planting.

• Represented Alaska Baptists at the Alabama State Evangelism 

Conference in February 2019 enlisting several mission teams for 

projects during summer 2019.

• Represented the ABC at the Women on Mission Celebration in 

Anchorage in April, promoting the Valeria Sherard State Mission 

Offering, along with reporting on the “Adopt-a-Village” initiative.

• Filled the pulpit March 2019 for First Baptist Church of Anchor-

age.

• Began working with Cold Bay Chapel revitalization efforts. 

• Led Easter services, communion and provided Sunday school 

materials along with Women’s Bible Study material to Cold Bay 

Chapel members.

• Planned and conducted Minister and Spouse Retreat at Alyeska 

Hotel, where  41 couples were in attendance and we were sup-

ported by program personnel supplied by Alabama State Board of 

Missions.

• Represented Alaska Baptists at the Southern Baptist Convention, 

Birmingham, Alabama in June 2019 with booth display and speak-

ing engagements.

• Welcomed new pastor and wife, Jeffery and Karen Clark to Thorne 

Bay Baptist Church and visited with Phil and Linda Clark of 

Kassan Church, as well as Craig and Coffman Cove on Prince of 

Wales Island.

• Processed State Mission Offering, Church Strengthening and 2000 

Club call requests on behalf of and for the Missions Committee 

and Executive Board.

• Prepared and distributed Valeria Sherard State Mission Offering 

videos, interviews and promotion material.

• Hosted Mission teams from Alabama, Missouri, North Carolina, 

Florida, Georgia, Tennessee, and Washington.

• Seeking to discover local resident leadership to develop for the 

purpose of missional engagement where they reside.

• Assisting in the rebranding and re-visioning process for the Alaska 

Baptist Convention.

• Resourcing assessment and leadership development for potential 

leadership currently living in state.

• Representing Alaska at the Alabama State Board of Missions 

Annual Meeting in November. Speaking engagements at both the 

Pastor’s Conference and the Convention Annual Meeting. 

Our 2019 goal of $90,000 for the Valeria Sherard State Mis-

sion Offering and “Hooked on Alaska” emphasis is one way 

we can join together in a cooperative effort as Alaska Baptists 

to empower and mobilize believers to fulfill their calling and 
purpose in Alaska. As we work together to Discover, Develop 

and Deploy the leaders that God has already placed here in 

Alaska, I am excited to see how He brings revival and multi-

plication to His Kingdom! 

Thank you again for allowing me the privilege of working and 

serving with Alaska Baptists! I’m excited to see what God 

has in store for our future here in Alaska as we are faithful in 

following Him!

It is an honor to serve alongside 

Alaska Baptists in the role of State 

Director of Church Planting and 

Missions. Working together to ex-

pand the Kingdom of God is often 

demanding, always rewarding and 

eternally significant!

The past year has been a busy, 

exciting time as we have seen new 

faces join us here in Alaska to 

proclaim Christ, multiply disciples 

and plant 

churches! I 

am excited 

to enter the 

summer months with positive momentum and upward trend-

ing trajectory as we celebrate new believers, baptisms and 

unlimited boundaries for Gospel expansion.

 

Some of the responsibilities I have fulfilled so far this year 
are:
• Welcomed those who God sent to Alaska to begin new congrega-

tions.

• Met and encouraged current church planters, addressing their con-

cerns and working with them for solutions. 

• Provided church planters with a professional coaching relationship 

by contracting with Better Path for 2019.

• Refined a strategy for statewide church planting and church planter 
assessment and training.

• Continued to promote and implement the “Adopt-a-Village” initia-

tive for church and village prayer and ministry partnerships.

• Visited in various ABC churches and services and meetings to 

encourage cooperation, promote our State Missions Offering and 

facilitate discussions of partnering to further enhance ministry 

across our state.

• Helped process three new church planter couples through NAMB 

Assessment and Endorsement: Mario and Migda Morales – Glacier 

Valley Baptist Church Juneau Hispanic Church, Milton Thomas 

and Emily Glasscock – Williwaw Church Plant Anchorage, Jordon 

and Hannah Rowe – Tanacross Church Plant, Northern Lights 

Missions.

• Helped connect church plants with local sponsor churches.

• Hosted vision teams from Florida, Alabama and Missouri.

• Provided resources for existing church planters and churches, Bible 

study materials, small group materials, etc.

• Spoke to pastor’s conference Colbert/Lauderdale Association, 

North Alabama, to recruit summer interns and to recruit church 

partners for church planters.

• Spoke to collegiate ministry group of Underwood Baptist Church, 

Florence, Alabama, to encourage continuing partnerships and par-

ticipation with Northern Lights Missions in Tok.

• Spoke to Baptist Campus Ministries group at University of North 

Alabama to recruit summer interns to Alaska camps, churches and 

ministries.

• Represented Alaska Baptists at the Alabama State Board of Mis-

sions annual meeting in November 2018, forming partnerships 

with churches and mission teams.

• Spoke on behalf of Alaska Baptists at Iron Works Men’s Outreach, 

First Baptist Church Andalusia, Alabama and five neighboring 

sTaff reporTs

Jae McKee

Dirctor of Church Planting and Missions

Alaska Baptist Convention
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coming year?  If you don’t plan 

to reach the lost, they will not 

be reached.  I know many of our 

churches plan Vacation Bible 

Schools (VBS), block parties, spe-

cial events and revivals to reach the 

lost.  Contact me if you have ques-

tions or want to talk about specific 
ways to reach your community.

VBS is always a big emphasis in 

our churches.  There were 4487 

total registered in clubs throughout 

the state.  VBS clinics will 

be held in April this coming 

year.  Bring your leadership 

team for the clinic near you.

Starting small groups or 

another Sunday morning class is an almost certain way to 

increase attendance.  Which age group needs to birth a new 

class?  Which age group doesn’t have a class now?  It can 

bring new life to a church.  Look for a gap in age groups, or 

for an opportunity to start a weekday group. Planting churches 

is a great emphasis and many of them start as a small group. 

It is one thing to start a church, but small groups take less 

involvement to start.

Throughout the year the Convention will help churches that 

request conferences and training events.  The Alaska Bap-

tist Resource Network exists to help you and your church to 

accomplish its mission and strategy.  I want to work alongside 

you to help you reach your communities and disciple believ-

ers.

This past year Alaska Baptist churches and missions report-

ed 396 baptisms.  Look in the Book of Reports, Historical 

and Statistical Reports section, to see how well your church, 

mission, or association did in 2017-2018.  Of the 111 church-

es and missions reporting, 30 reported no baptisms, and 2 

congregations report baptizing 20 or more people. There were 

11 fewer baptisms reported from the year before. There is 

a qualifier here that needs to be mentioned.  Last year there 
were about 50 baptisms reported in the number that came 

from a ministry and not a congregation.  It is wonderful we 

have a ministry reaching that many, but their count was not 

included in this year’s number.  If the 68 baptisms reported 

by this ministry were included, we would have been ahead 

of last year’s baptism number.  The number of total members 

was reported as 12,017, an increase of over 500 from the year 

before.  The number in Sunday worship average attendance 

was 6684, which is up from the previous year.  Average Bible 

Study attendance was recorded at 4313, another increase of 

almost 300 over the previous year.  Overall, I hope this trend 

continues.

How does your church keep up with the important accom-

plishments that are made through the year?  I hope every 

church is tracking attendance, baptism and other important 

indicators of God’s working. One way to do this is through 

the Annual Church Profile (ACP) which will help gauge how 
your church is doing. It has greater implications that involve 

funding for state and associational work if you post the report.  

Please make every effort to report your statistics.  It truly was 

a good year to have so many report.  If there are questions as 

to how to do this, call Debra Long in our office.  She will help 
you. There are churches that have been doing this for years 

and it is easy to get that data through our office.

If you want to explore evangelistic outreach and church devel-

opment contact me.  I will be glad to help you develop train-

ing, events and infrastructure to enhance your ministry efforts.  

Churches can do simple things to increase their evangelistic 

effectiveness of events.  I would love to help your church 

learn more. One of the best ways to see increases in evange-

lism is to appoint someone in your church to work with every 

ministry group, helping with evangelism efforts.  Our national 

SBC emphasis is “Who’s Your One.”  Every church was sent a 

kit to help with this emphasis.  I suggest that you run this em-

phasis in short spurts or leading up to an event, several times 

through the year and several years in a row.

The State Evangelism Conference (SEC) is always encourag-

ing and inspirational. I would love to see each church enlist 

an evangelism leader and send them to the conference as 

part of your church training.  Our speakers and leaders do an 

amazing job of sharing God’s Word and challenging us as a 

Convention.  I believe the SEC offers something for just about 

everyone.

What does your church have planned to reach the lost this 

sTaff reporTs

Jimmy Stewart

Director of Evangelism and 

Church Development

Alaska Baptist Convention
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there was also a strong desire among the team and many we 

spoke with to not lose the heritage of our original identity. By 

utilizing the DBA process, we are able to retain the historicity 

of our Alaska Baptist Convention name while, at the same 

time, communicating to the community around us and with 

our churches, our revitalized direction and function as a minis-

try leader in the state of Alaska.

There is still much to be done and my recent report to the 

Alaska Baptist Convention, on behalf of the Vision Implemen-

tation Team, outlines our attempt to take the complexities of 

this vision and begin to put them into a functional framework. 

This report is not a final proposal, by any means. It merely 
represents the best effort of a collection of church members 

and ministers from across the state to establish a place from 

which, together, we can begin to discuss, dissect, and decide 

the true particulars in advance of the 75th Anniversary of the 

Alaska Baptist Convention in 2020.

As we step into the new year of Alaska Southern Baptist work, 

I am filled with hope by a people, our people, who have cho-

sen to undertake the difficult task of dreaming, planning, and 
changing under the direction of the Lord and allowing some 

of us to play a small part in it. I pray that you, our people, will 

take note of the communications being provided by the Vision 

Implementation Team, make suggestions, ask questions, voice 

concerns, and kindly give criticism. Whether I am asked to 

continue to lead in this next year, or God raises someone else 

to this position, I know that your input, ideas, and prayers 

are critical to understanding God’s leadership of our efforts, 

together.

May the Lord bless you and keep you all,

Unless the Lord builds the house,

those who build it labor in vain.

Unless the Lord watches over the city,

the watchman stays awake in vain.

Psalm 127:1

It has been my humble pleasure to 

serve this past year as your presi-

dent. In the challenging times we 

face as a Convention and with the 

ambitious vision we continue to 

pursue, we position ourselves for 

greater Kingdom ministry among 

the people of Alaska. I am honored 

by your trust in me, our Executive 

Board, annual committees, and 

agency boards as we work between 

annual meetings to execute 

the business of the conven-

tion, on your behalf.

I am pleased to tell you we 

have held two Executive Board meetings since our 2018 annu-

al meeting, hosted in the offices of the Alaska Baptist Conven-

tion. Attendance by your elected representatives was consis-

tent and I was blessed and impressed by the serious attention 

to matters presented, the interest in detailed information, and 

the clear desire to be both wise in counsel and diligent to 

work in a fashion honoring to the Lord Jesus Christ. We are 

truly blessed to have such a body of sober-minded, aware, 

and gentle-hearted servants working on our behalf. I would 

encourage you to thank those who have served and those who 

will continue to serve. We will welcome new members to our 

leadership in the coming annual meeting who would welcome 

your prayers as they take on this task.

A large part of my year as president has been spent with the 

Vision Implementation Team, which was authorized, and 

formed, by action taken at the 2018 annual meeting. This is 

a diverse group of ministers and lay-people from around the 

state who took on the very complex task of taking the present-

ed “large view” vision presented by our Executive Director, 

Randy Covington during our annual meeting and began to dis-

cuss the complexities of facilitating a vision which will place 

the emphasis on our Alaskan cooperative ministry efforts on a 

model driven by those of us who are working “in the fields” of 
Alaska. The desire of this effort is to form a state entity which 

responds to the needs and requests of the churches around our 

state. Our hope is that we will create a model to stand the test 

of time and increase the effectiveness of the local church.

The first step of that transition was the introduction of Alas-

ka Baptist Resource Network, the public face of the Alaska 

Baptist Convention and a ministry of the ABC. The desired 

goal of this transition is for Alaska Baptists to be a collection 

of resources available both to our Alaska Baptist churches 

and ministries, as well as a network which can partner with 

likeminded Christian ministries through our churches, and be-

yond. The Implementation Team recommended the name, and 

the use of the legal process called “doing business as” (DBA) 

rather than pursuing an actual name change. A name change 

was not only more complex to achieve than was desired, but 

presiDenT’s reporT

Tracy Simmons

President

Alaska Baptist Convention
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As of June 30, 2019, the Alaska 

Baptist Foundation (ABF) had 

market value in the Endowment 

Fund in the positive, coming off a 

fourth quarter 2018 downturn. At 

the writing of this report, there ex-

ists uncertainty around the broader 

trade issues as well as some soft-

ening economic indicators which 

are creating market volatility. Our 

investment partner, The Baptist 

Foundation of Alabama (TBFA), 

continues to follow 

an investment phi-

losophy that seeks 

the highest level of 

return with the lowest amount of volatility. Recently, TBFA 

has introduced an investment component of Christian music 

royalties as part of this broader investment strategy.

We continue to make progress on the Christian estate devel-

opment front. Through our partnership with PhilanthroCorp 

and TBFA we have seen future potential charitable gifts as of 

June 2019 directed through the ABF of $6,966,298. The ABF 

presentation of “Is God’s Will in Your Will” during a lunch 

session at the 2019 Evangelism Conference was successful 

with two additional couples signing up for planning. Also, 

the ABF recently updated its website domain in the hopes 

of streamlining marketing. Instead of having to spell out the 

entire name the new website is www.abf.foundation 

ABF currently has a total of 68 funds for which it acts in a 

fiduciary capacity -- these include various trusts and Memorial 
funds, agency managed funds, gift annuities and Unitrust. The 

total of the fund balances as of June 30, 2019 is $6,316,916.91

For the year, 2019, the ABF has earnings available for distri-

bution of $155,937.29 for a variety of ministry causes includ-

ing but not limited to:

• Alaska Baptist Missions      $44,508.53

• Native Youth Camps        16,753.55

• Scholarships        44,353.52

• Cooperative Program            429.23

• Alaska Baptist Convention      49,892.46 

A total of 10 Fuhr scholarships for undergraduate study were 

awarded for the 2019-2020 school year. This scholarship has 

a maximum value of $1,800 per student per year. Payments 

are made to the school directly and there is a reduced prorated 

provision for students pursuing less than a full credit load. 

There were also two Parker scholarships awarded for graduate 

seminary study for the year.

As a member of the ABF Board of 

Trustees I have enjoyed the oppor-

tunity to work with great individ-

uals from around our state serving 

as stewards of the Lord’s money.  

It is exciting to see the opportuni-

ties available for Kingdom work 

throughout our state even after 

we are gone.  My service here has 

been a great reminder of the many 

ways to use our gifts to honor God, 

which I know is the primary 

purpose of each member of 

the ABF Trustee Board and 

staff.

Greetings Alaska Baptists in the 

name of our Lord Jesus Christ. It is 

a joy to represent you through the 

work of the Alaska Baptist Founda-

tion (ABF). I am excited to be part 

of what God is doing across our 

state. We have an amazing lega-

cy. We stand on the shoulders of 

giants who have gone before us and 

many of them have opened doors 

to villages and ministries that are 

seeing consistent fruit be-

yond their lifetimes. That 

legacy has been handed 

down to us and we have 

been called to be faithful 

in carrying the torch of salvation to the next generation.

The wisdom they demonstrated by investing personally and fi-

nancially in the work of the harvest in Alaska make it possible 

for us to push the gospel deeper into the darkness around us.

Much of the mission work in Alaska today is underwritten 

by their generous spirit and love for the Lord and Alaska. I 

encourage each of you to consider what your legacy will be. 

Thank you for the contribution each of you make to the task 

of pushing back the darkness in our great state.

alaska bapTisT founDaTion reporT

Tom Hoffman

President

Alaska Baptist Foundation

Dr. Randy Covington

Executive Director/Treasurer

Alaska Baptist Foundation

Adam Long

Foundation Coordination Director

Alaska Baptist Foundation
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There have been three emphases in 

these associations during this past 

year. One of those emphases is church 

planting. Even though there have been 

no church plants that have received 

funds from NAMB, there have been 

two church plants that have happened 

due to the vision of individuals who 

feel called of God to reach out to 

people groups that they have been 

working with for a while. There are 

still areas in these two 

associations that have 

large populations and no 

churches. If any church 

is interested in planting 

a new congregation, I 

would be happy to visit 

with them about those areas. 

Another emphasis of the associations has been revitalization. 

This area has turned out to be the one thing that has occupied 

most of my time as the associational missionary, and it has taken 

a direction I wasn’t expecting. I was expecting it to be more 

institutional but it has been more personal. I have continually 

been meeting with pastors, church planters and leading laymen to 

visit with them about issues in their churches and in their person-

al lives. Much of that time has been in counseling and direction 

for their churches to reach their vision and goals. An area where 

I feel that I have not been able to accomplish anything has been 

the area of building pastoral fellowship. I have also had the 

opportunity in both associations to present a program developed 

by NAMB to develop church leadership. It is called Pipeline and 

is an excellent program to develop leaders for the local church. 

It is also for people who have felt a call to extend the ministry of 

the local church to areas where there is no witness. These people 

would become church planters. As of this report, there are no 

churches using this program but it is still available at NAMB.net/

pipeline.

There has also been an emphasis on missions. In various meet-

ings, pastors and others have shared their church’s mission pro-

grams and invited other churches to cooperate with them in the 

effort. If a church is too small to form a mission team, there are 

churches in our associations that have invited individuals from 

those churches to participate in mission trips and mission efforts. 

These mission trips have resulted in many blessings for those to 

whom the teams have ministered. They have also had a profound 

effect on those who went on the mission trips. God has called us 

to take the gospel to the ends of the earth. Let me encourage you 

to participate in some kind of mission ministry whether it is at 

home or abroad. There have been mission teams from churches 

in our associations working in central Alaska, various places in 

east Asia, Puerto Rico, Africa, and even in Texas. I am sure that I 

have not included some places where our churches have worked 

during this past year. Other places are now being planned. Please 

find a way of participating in these efforts even if it means send-

assoCiaTional reporTs

Butch Strickland

Director of Missions

Chugach Baptist Association

Hatcher Pass Baptist Association

The Tongass Baptist Association 

(TBA) exists to promote the gospel 

and serve Jesus Christ in Southeast 

Alaska. The Executive Board of the 

TBA met in regular semi-annual 

session on April 12th and 13th at 

Emmanuel Baptist, Juneau. Board 

members and guests spoke to per-

tinent issues and initiated planning 

for the TBA Annual Meeting to 

be held this year at FBC Sitka on 

October 4th and 5th.

Monthly meetings using one 

of the internet’s meeting 

venues has worked out well 

for the association. These 

meetings have spurred several conversations that have helped 

to make semi-annual and annual sessions more profitable. The 
association is looking into upgrading some of its strategical-

ly located churches with stronger internet/web-conferencing 

capabilities. This is an effort to improve communications as 

future interactions with other churches and regions around the 

state are anticipated.

The TBA hosted two summer missionaries from California 

Baptist University this summer. Ben Higgins of Petersburg, 

AK and Austin Lentz of Redlands, CA were able to spend 

nine weeks in Southeast Alaska helping several congregations 

with Vacation Bible Schools, youth events and other service 

activities. Their presence and help have been a huge blessing 

to many people in Southeast Alaska.

Other ministries in the TBA include the work at the Lemon 

Creek Correctional Center led by Chaplain Chris Nelson and 

the Mosaic Campus Ministry at University of Alaska, South-

east, led by Troy McMorris. The TBA also supports a sister in 

Christ who shares the gospel in East Asia. The camp minis-

tries at Orton Ranch near Ketchikan have been temporarily 

suspended, but plans are being made for future operations.

There are three pastors new to the TBA this past year: Jeffery 

(Karen) Clark at Thorne Bay Baptist Church; Cliff (Jenni-

fer) Day at First Baptist Sitka; and Mario (Migda) Morales 

at Iglesia Rescata (mission), Juneau. Another of our pastors, 

Todd (Jodie) Buck of Tenakee Springs Community Church, 

underwent extensive surgery in Seattle this spring to remove 

cancerous tissue. Our God has marvelously restored Todd’s 

health and we praise Him for it!

May our Lord Jesus continue to accomplish His work in and 

through His servants here in Southeast Alaska. Please pray 

with us for lost souls to respond to His call and for Him to 

send the right men to lead the churches in this area that are 

currently without pastors.

Eugene Williams

Moderator

Tongass Baptist Association

ing only one person from your church to go with a team from 

another. 

On another point, I will retire at the end of 2019. Our associa-

tions will also be going through some changes along with the 

convention. So pray that God would lead our associations as they 

face the future that God has for them.
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Upcoming events include an Open 

House for the medical and mental/

behavioral health communities, as 

well as another similar event for 

teachers and administrators as they 

prepare for the upcoming school 

year. We regularly work with other 

agencies around Alaska, partic-

ularly those who are in the same 

line of work as BBH, but also with 

groups such as Chosen and Price-

less, who seek to help 

those aging out of the 

foster care system and 

to raise awareness of 

the travesty of human 

trafficking. Several of our staff participated this year in the 
Barefoot Mile, an event held by LoveAlaska to help raise 

awareness of human trafficking, particularly since many of the 
same children who come through treatment centers like BBH 

end up on the streets if they do not get the support and encour-

agement needed.

Most importantly, we continue to offer the love of Christ to 

all our residents in the form of regular church attendance at 

Christ Community Church, visits by members of Rabbit Creek 

Community Church, Pass Partners from local churches, and 

prayer times with staff. The children we serve have incredible 

needs in the area of knowing they are loved, heard, accepted, 

and that someone cares about their daily needs. Not only do 

we try to do this as an agency, but we also try to make sure 

they know they have a Heavenly Father who cares more about 

them than anyone. Please pray that our Christian influence 
will be an overwhelming factor in their lives.

Birchwood Behavioral Health (BBH) continues to be the 

arm of the Alaska Baptist Convention caring for “the least of 

these,” Alaska’s children and adolescents who have been trau-

matized and are in need of building resilience to the pain they 

have experienced. At the time of this writing, we have 5 girls 

and 3 boys in residential treatment, with 23 in our outpatient 

program and 10 on a waiting list. We have had a fair amount 

of personnel change in the past year, with people moving and 

shifting around positions to fill the needs that arise. I begin my 
third year as Executive Director this month, counting the time 

I was Interim Executive Director. These two years have been 

a time of healing and rebuilding a team; actually more than 

a team...a family. Having established good core leadership, 

we look back and consider what God has done at BBH, and 

look forward to growth in the coming years. We have seen 9 

young people graduate successfully from our program, many 

of whom we have followed up on since their graduation and 

found to be doing well at home, some with biological family, 

others into foster care or adoption. Every child who gradu-

ates from BBH has a Discharge Party, in which we pray for 

them, offer encouraging remarks, either verbal or written, and 

celebrate their progress. Our Board of Directors is working 

on a Strategic Plan for the coming 5, 10, and 20 years. Some 

of the ideas for the future include recreation areas, expansion 

of services, grant seeking, possible foster care placement, and 

physical plant expansion.

Many have asked how the changes in Medicaid and State of 

Alaska funds are going to affect BBH. So far, we have seen 

only a 5 percent cut in Medicaid, and the Legislature has 

been arguing with the Governor over other possible cuts, but 

we have not seen a decline enough to be overly concerned. 

I have urged our administration and staff to consider the 

knowledge that what God ordains He maintains, and we are 

told very clearly that we are not to be anxious, but we are to 

pray. Having said that, I am doing what I can to encourage our 

churches to continue, reinstate, or begin giving to BBH, be-

cause I do believe God’s people should pay for God’s work. In 

Fiscal Year 2019, we received 2.8 percent of our income from 

churches and individuals. It is my goal to increase this to 10 

percent by the end of 2020. Having been on church staff, I am 

painfully aware of how many things need to come from the 

regular budget of the church, therefore I so appreciate those 

churches who give either a set amount or percentage each 

month or quarter, to BBH. We only ask that other churches 

pray about the possibility of giving regularly, no matter what 

size the donation. We recently received a gift from a church 

in Alabama which, sadly, is having to close its doors, but had 

$500 in a fund for children and chose to give that money to 

BBH because of the article in SBC Net. If you feel the tug 

on your heart as an individual or if you know someone who 

might be able to help support the needs at BBH, please let 

us know. I would be more than happy to call anyone if you 

believe they would be receptive to my contact.

alaska bapTisT faMily serviCes, inC. Dba birChWooD behavioral healTh

David Banks, LPC, LMFT Ex-

ecutive Director

Birchwood Behavioral Health
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row Today, a fund in the WMU Foundation that helps support 

National WMU and Alaska WMU. 

The Global Refugee Crisis continues to be the critical issue 

of focus for Project HELP through 2020. We are learning to 

understand the plight of refugees in our own country and how 

to engage and minister to them so we can share the gospel. 

We are appreciative of your continued prayers and support 

as we work together to strengthen, educate and encourage 

the new and upcoming WMU organizations in our churches. 

Thank you and may God’s blessings continue to flow.

Wow! What a great/interesting/ed-

ucational/exciting start of my first 
year as Alaska Woman’s Mission-

ary Union (WMU) president.  It is 

an honor and privilege to serve my 

Lord and Savior in this role. I was 

blessed to represent Alaska at the 

National WMU Annual meeting 

in October, and the January 2019 

Board meeting.

I am grateful for the dynamic team 

of women who serve on the WMU 

Leadership Team.  We met togeth-

er in November 2018, to plan the 

annual Women on Mission Cele-

bration (WOM-C). We discussed potential training opportu-

nities and ways to involve more churches in offering mission 

discipleship through WMU age level mission organizations. 

We asked God to lead us in organizing WMU in more church-

es throughout our state. Mission education is critical to the life 

of missions in the church and in growing future missionaries. 

Royal Ambassadors (RAs), an often-neglected organization, 

is an excellent way to raise boys to become good men of God. 

Start an RA group in your church. Free starter materials are 

available from WMU. 

The theme for the 2019 WOM-C was “Unshakable Pursuit”, 

“My dear friends, stand firm and don’t be shaken. Always 
keep busy working for the Lord. You Know that everything 

you do for him is worthwhile”, (1 Corinthians 15:58, CEV).  

The celebration was at Fairview Loop Baptist Church in 

Wasilla, April 4-6. We thank Pastor Tom Hoffman and his 

lovely wife Linda, for opening the doors of their beautiful 

church facility. I also thank Meghan Bowker and all the 

members of Fairview Loop Baptist Church, for the welcome 

and assistance they provided. Thank you all for the work and 

dedication given toward making the celebration a success.

Bible Study was led by Deborah Akerman, National Baptist 

Nursing Fellowship president-elect. Teresa Harmening, of 

Bagwell, Texas, led in uplifting and spirit filled worship. Over 
100 women participated in each session as we joined togeth-

er in praise, worship, Bible study, and inspiring testimonies 

of work being done by our Southern Baptist missionaries. 

Special guests included International Mission Board (IMB) 

missionary Mark Wagner, Alaska North American Mission 

Board Missionaries, Jim and Stephanie Boyd. Speakers 

included Jae McKee, Alaska Baptist Convention Director of 

Church Planting and Missions, and David Banks, Executive 

Director Birchwood Behavioral Health. Break-out sessions 

centered on topics of interest to the women. Shirley Nye and 

youth team provided child care during all sessions. This year’s 

Ministry Project Offering of $1862.22 was equally divided 

between and Birchwood Behavioral Health and Touch Tomor-

alaska WoMan’s Missionary union reporT

Angela Jones

President

Alaska WMU
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blessing for both schools, as we 

mutually support each other’s 

missions and introduce Stream 

Academy’s youthful students to a 

faith-based private university that 

hopefully many will attend in the 

future. Several churches continue 

to call the Parkside center home, 

as they work around times and 

room locations to conduct worship 

services and other activities during 

the week.

This fall once again the 

ABC annual meeting 

conflicts with the time Eric 
Ash and Beth Durbin must 

be in Texas attending the annual Wayland leadership confer-

ence.  Hence, Associate Dean John Jemar will be the Wayland 

representative at the meeting, a task he is highly capable of 

handling. Wayland is truly honored to be your Christian uni-

versity in Alaska.

For most academic institutions in Alaska and across the na-

tion, this past year has been one of many challenges involving 

lower enrollments and budget constraints.  It is in challenging 

times, however, that we often most clearly see God’s hand in 

carrying us through. Indeed God has done just that at Way-

land, and we are so blessed to serve. For example, the earth-

quake left very little damage to Wayland facilities even though 

the Valley center experienced a fire and consequent water 
damage. We were able to provide great flexibility and support 
for our students, as we committed to helping them succeed 

through their many hardships.

Wayland-Anchorage had planned on starting some classes in 

the winter term at First Baptist Kenai, working with pastor 

Al Weeks. Due to unfortunate circumstances, that effort had 

to be delayed to this coming winter term. We are once again 

very excited to start with undergraduate classes on the history 

of the Old Testament or New Testament, which will provide 

opportunities for people in the Soldotna/Kenai area to take 

Wayland college classes.

A huge highlight of our year was Jimmy Stewart’s presen-

tation on 29 April 2019 for Wayland’s Spiritual Emphasis 

program. Jimmy shared from his heart and truly touched 

the heart of many students in the process. What a powerful 

testimony he has! Another great success was our faculty and 

staff training session called the Colossian Way, conducted 

by Pastor Dave Kuiper. This forum introduced an insightful 

perspective on how to have productive rather than destructive 

conflict in organizations. Also at our Parkside center, the Way-

land Women’s Bible study continues to thrive, having fairly 

recently hosted a Beth Moore simulcast prior to breaking for 

the summer. In March, Wayland hosted the Anchorage Evan-

gelical Pastors’ Association lunch and coordinated a future 

event to be held all day at Parkside on 11 September 2019. 

This program will focus on pastoral skills and scriptural truth 

in working with veterans who are mentally and emotionally 

conflicted.  It is being sponsored by the VA, and anyone is 
welcome to attend. Finally, once a month the Colson Fellows 

forum meets at Wayland, where members study the need for 

a Christian worldview in our contemporary world.  Eric Ash 

presented one of the sessions which was a look at the history 

of moral thought from a Christian worldview.

In Fairbanks, Dr. Beth Durbin completed her first year as the 
new Executive Director. It has been wonderful to have her in 

that capacity, and our connection via the Virtual Television 

system has afforded the opportunity to teach numerous classes 

involving Anchorage, Wasilla, and North Pole students. Also 

of note, Dr. Don Ashley assumed the position as director of 

the Wayland-Kenya campus. Fortunately for us, he still lives 

in Alaska and does his directing work via various electronic 

media.

At Parkside in Anchorage, Wayland has continued to host 

Stream Academy middle school. This has been a rewarding 

eDuCaTion reporT

Dr. Eric Ash

Executive Director/Dean

Wayland Baptist University

Anchorage Campus
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small group Bible studies for a freshmen group, a men’s 

group, a women’s group and dorm groups.

The Gathering:

student led worship at 6 p.m. on Tuesday nights in the Student 

Union Den.

Semester/Yearly Activities:

Operation Move-it:

Student Clubs assist students moving into dorms.

Welcome Back Party:

a time of fellowship for current students and incoming fresh-

men and transfer students.

Outreach/Evangelism:

students to share their faith with their friends on campus.

Hangin‘ w/ the Belmore’s:

a good time shared with each other away from the ministry 

setting. Some of our best ministry is done in this type of set-

ting.

Passion Conference (December 31, 2019 to January 2, 2020)

Passion exists to glorify God-uniting students in worship 

and prayer for spiritual awakening in this generation. This is 

always a great time of worshipping our Creator.

A word from the Director

What a summer! I am beginning my third year and this has 

been a great beginning to a new school year! We have seen 

our students serve and share and this past year our students 

really reached out to the campus. We made contact with close 

to 4,500 students. That is incredible! We have begun to see 

our work make an impact on our campus. We are beginning 

to work with International Students at UAA and are looking 

for an increase in worship and Bible study. God has answered 

many prayers since the start of my ministry here. I thank the 

Alaska Baptist Convention and the Chugach Baptist Associa-

tion for all the support they offer, both financially and spiri-
tually. You guys are incredible! To the local churches, thank 

you for all the financial support, you are the back bone to this 
ministry! Mosaic could not happen without you!

Summer Activities:

Summer Missions 

Key leaders and participants were: 

Scott Belmore (Mosaic Director); 

Dana Belmore (True North); Ruthie 

Belmore (True North); Jimmy Stew-

art (New Grace/Alaska Baptist Con-

vention ); Beth Brinkley (Mississip-

pi); Gena Cody, Elijah Harris, Zoe 

Smith and Ethan Miller (Georgia); 

Chelsey Murphy and Anna Stephens 

(Tennessee); Ken Reyes 

(Hawaii); Candace Hall, 

Brittany Paget, Karla Zurita 

and Madison Hutchinson 

(Texas); Liv Cochran and 

Abby Swiney (South Carolina); Amanda Ishmael (Alaska)

Places served: FBC, Anchorage (FBC, New Orleans); Sunset 

Hills BC; First Korean BC; FBC, Palmer (Unity BC); True 

North, Girdwood; and Whittier Community with VBS and 

evening evangelism throughout Anchorage Area. This team, 

along with FBC, Madison assisted Sabbath Peace Fellowship 

with their Summer Festival Celebration. We prayer walked 

Eagle River and handed out 4,000 flyers to homes in the com-

munity. We also, along with Church 1:37, assisted Grandview 

BC replace windows, paint the Sunrise House, build children’s 

ministry set and much more. We assisted Solid Rock Bible 

Camp with their Primary and Family Camps during the week 

of July 4.

Andrew Belmore (True North) served with Northshore Church 

this summer as a worship and student intern.

Marcus Cosby (Chapel by the Sea) served in Kenya for 5 

months during the Spring Semester to help the missionaries 

dig wells for different villages.

Freshmen Orientation:

For twelve weeks of the summer we are in contact with almost 

all incoming freshmen during the orientation expo, and we 

send a welcome newsletter to freshmen planning to attend 

UAA in the fall.

Student Week @ Glorieta:

(August 4 to 8, 2019) Mosaic staff and students traveled to 

Davis, OK, for LifeWay’s Collegiate Week.

Weekly Activities:

Leadership Development:

one-on-one meeting with the individual leaders of the Mosaic.

Outreach/Evangelism: Tuesdays there is a manned outreach 

table while other students walk around campus sharing their 

faith.

Journey Groups:

CaMpus MinisTries reporT

Scott Belmore

Director

Mosaic Campus Ministries
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At the IMB, we believe every 

church—regardless of size, 

location, or resources— 

plays a vital role in taking 

the gospel to every nation. 

That includes yours. 

Let's talk about how your church can 

play a role in reaching the nations.

— 

Pray 
Join the critical 

work of praying for 

unreached peoples. 

— 

Give 
Empower IMB 

missionaries  

to make disciples. 

— 

Go 
Explore opportunities 

to take the gospel to 

the nations.

Because of your churches and the cooperative work of Southern Baptists, 

gifts to the IMB through the Cooperative Program and Lottie Moon Christmas 

Offering are up this year. Currently, there are more fully-funded open 

missionary positions than candidates in the pipeline. We are excited to partner 

with churches to fill every open position and create many more.  

When you partner with the IMB, you do more than make it possible to send 

missionaries. You’re part of the team that goes. We provide opportunities for 

your church to:

imb.org

YOU ARE HELPING PLANT 

CHURCHES AND MAKE 

DISCIPLES AROUND THE 

WORLD. HERE’S THE WORK 

YOU’VE BEEN A PART OF 

DURING THE LAST YEAR.

IMB Report 2019

100+ East Asian groups now 
have access to heart language 

Scripture resources.

1550 former Muslims were baptized 
and over 100 new churches were 
started in Central Asia, the least 

evangelized part of the world.

An initiative in the Americas to engage 
103 unreached peoples and places by the 

end of 2020 is over 50% to its goal.

10 new Baptist churches are being  
prayerfully planned in Krakow, Poland, a city 

where 99.8% of the people don’t have a 
personal relationship with the Lord.

154 unengaged unreached people 
groups in East Asia have now been 

engaged through an evangelism and 
church planting strategy.

God saved the first believer 
from the Mwani people group 

in Mozambique.

2,724+ national partners  

within Chinese churches received 

cross-cultural missionary training.

100+ short-term mission teams were sent 
out by Chinese churches in partnership 

with IMB missionary teams in 2018, 
engaging 33 unreached people groups.

inTernaTional Mission boarD reporT
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PREPARATION STATEMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To the Executive Board 
Alaska Baptist Convention, Inc. 
Anchorage, Alaska 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the Alaska Baptist Convention as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, were not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement by us and we do 
not express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any assurance on them. 
 
 
 

Ogburn and White, LLC 
Montgomery, Alabama 
July 31, 2019 
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ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2018 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit or review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them. 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Assets  

Cash and cash equivalents  $        443,134 
Investments          1,183,025 
Accounts receivable                    57 
Prepaid expenses                  350 
Property and equipment, net              41,172 

   $      1,667,738 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses  $          17,013 
   
Net Assets  
  Without donor restrictions            258,029 
  With donor restrictions          1,392,696 
           1,650,725 

   $      1,667,738 
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ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION 
Statement of Activities 

Year ended December 31, 2018 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit or review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them. 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Without 
Donor 

Restrictions 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

Support and Revenue    

 Contributions  $      896,931  $      973,465   $    1,870,396 
 Trust and other income            24,932               -            24,932 
 Investment loss               -          (12,602)          (12,602)
 Interest income             2,484               -             2,484 
 Net assets released from restriction       1,082,396      (1,082,396)                  -  
  Total support and revenue       2,006,743        (121,533)       1,885,210 

Expenses   
 Program services       1,212,244                  -        1,212,244 
 Supporting activities          793,622                  -           793,622 
  Total expenses       2,005,866                  -        2,005,866 

Change in net assets                877        (121,533)        (120,656)

Net assets - beginning of year          257,152       1,514,229        1,771,381 

Net assets - end of year  $      258,029  $    1,392,696   $    1,650,725 
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ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION 
Statement of Functional Expenses 
Year ended December 31, 2018 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit or review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them. 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Disbursements 
for 

beneficiaries 
and others 

General and 
administrative

Salaries and 
benefits Total 

Program Services    

 Benevolence  $              1,005  
       
              -               -  $       1,005  

 Church Development and Education                35,107                -               -         35,107  
 Evangelism and Discipleship                36,435                -       125,570        162,005  
 Ministry               127,608               -             476        128,084 
 Mission Support and  Church Planting               629,975               -         62,481        692,456  
 Special Offerings               193,587               -               -       193,587  
 Total Programming            1,023,717                -       188,527      1,212,244 

Supporting Activities    

 General and Administrative -            422,260       371,362        793,622  
 Total Supporting -            422,260       371,362        793,622  

 Total Expenses  $        1,023,717  $        422,260  $    559,889   $ 2,005,866 
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ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION 
Statements of Cash Flows 

Year ended December 31, 2018 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit or review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them. 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Operating Activities 
 Change in Net assets  $       (120,656)

 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash used in 
operating activities 

  Depreciation           7,185 
  Investment loss (income)              12,602 
  Changes in operating assets & liabilities 
   Accounts receivable                3,635 
   Prepaids and other assets                3,905 
   Accounts payable and accrued expenses             (20,004)

Net cash used in operating activities           (113,333)
     
Investing activities 
 Proceeds from sale of investments              26,509 
 Purchases of investments              (1,786)
 Acquisition of fixed assets             (17,471)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities                7,252 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents           (106,081)

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year            549,215 

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year  $         443,134 
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ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year ended December 31, 2018 
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assurance is provided on them. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Activities 
 
The Alaska Baptist Convention (Convention) is a nonprofit corporation with the purpose of seeking Christ, 
sharing Christ, strengthening congregations, starting congregations, and sending Christians.  In its continued 
efforts to complete this mission, the Convention works with associations located throughout the state of 
Alaska, as well as the Southern Baptist Convention, and the North American Mission Board. 
 
The primary source of funding for the Convention is Cooperative Program revenue. The Cooperative Program 
is  a  financial  channel  of  cooperation  between  the  state  conventions  and  the  Southern  Baptist Convention 
which makes it possible for all persons making undesignated gifts through their church to support the 
missionary, education, and benevolent work in their state convention and also the work of the Southern Baptist 
Convention.  
 
The Convention serves as the collecting agent of Cooperative Program receipts and Valeria Sherard State 
Missions Offering.  These receipts are then distributed according to the annual budget and the Convention 
Policies and Procedures. Other special offerings and designated receipts are distributed according to the 
desires of the contributors. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the Convention have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Convention considers all instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of money market securities stated at fair value which approximates cost. 
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed federally 
insured limits.  These amounts represent actual account balances held by financial institutions at the end of  
the period, and unlike the balances reported in the financial statements, the account balances do not reflect 
timing delays inherent in reconciling items such as outstanding checks and deposits in transit.  The Convention 
has never experienced any losses related to these balances. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 
Receivables 
 
The Convention reports receivables at net realizable value. Management determines the allowance for 
doubtful accounts based on historical losses and current economic conditions. On a continuing basis, 
management analyzes delinquent receivables and, once these receivables are determined to be uncollectible, 
they are written off through a charge against an existing allowance or against earnings. Based on 
management’s review, no allowance for doubtful accounts was considered necessary at December 31, 2018. 
 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property and equipment are carried at cost or, if donated, the approximate fair value at the date of donation, 
less accumulated depreciation and include expenditures which substantially increase the useful lives of 
existing property and equipment. Maintenance, repairs and minor renovations are charged to income as 
incurred. When property and equipment are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related costs and accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any gain or loss on the disposition is credited or 
charged to income. The Convention provides for depreciation of property and equipment using the straight-
line method designed to amortize costs over the following estimated useful lives: buildings and improvements, 
7 to 39 years; furniture and fixtures, 5 to 7 years; and automobiles, 5 years. 
 
Investments 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities with readily determinable fair values are recorded at fair market 
value. Investments without readily determinable fair values are recorded at cost, or if impaired, at estimated 
realizable value.  The Convention’s investments consist primarily of funds invested in money market and 
funds invested by the Alaska Baptist Foundation (the Foundation) through The Baptist Foundation of 
Alabama (TBFA).  
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Convention is a nonprofit corporation and has been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal Revenue 
Service for income tax purposes.   
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments consisted of the following at December 31, 2018: 

 Fair Value Cost 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 

Cash and cash equivalents  $              492,195   $              492,195   $                      -  
Fixed income securities                  122,262                   123,147                       (885)
Limited Partnerships                  299,475                   286,987                    12,488 
Mutual funds                  148,745                   144,644                      4,101 
Marketable equity securities                  119,280                   136,814                   (17,534)
Accrued income                     1,068                      1,068                           -  
  $           1,183,025   $           1,184,855   $                (1,830)

 
 

Investments included as assets on the Statement of Financial Position held with the Foundation consist of the 
following: 
 
ABC Reserve Operating Fund  $              622,441 
ABC Designated Investment Fund                   69,751 
ABC Executive Director and Program Relocation Fund                   17,734 
ABC Alaska Baptist Emergency Assistance Fund                     1,475 
  $              711,401 

 
NOTE 3 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2018: 

Land  $                 15,925 
Buildings and improvements                 195,862 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment                   85,612 
                 297,399 
Less accumulated depreciation                 256,227 
  $                 41,172 
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NOTE 4 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
The Convention makes contributions for its employees to a defined contribution retirement plan maintained 
by GuideStone Financial Resources, an entity affiliated with the Southern Baptist Convention. The 
Convention makes non-matching contributions to employee accounts equal to 10% of the employee’s 
salary. The Convention matches employee contributions, up to 5% of the employee’s salary.  Employees 
are eligible for participation after one full year of employment and are fully vested at the time eligibility 
for participation is met.  Contributions to the plan totaled $50,185 for the year ended December 31, 2018. 
 
NOTE 5 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Convention is affiliated with the Foundation and provides administrative support. The Convention 
provided $2,200 in administrative support to the Foundation during the year ended December 31, 2018.  The 
Foundation also administers certain assets for the Convention, whose value totaled $711,401 at December 31, 
2018 and is included in investments.  The Convention receives $7,200 per year for office rental from the 
Foundation.  
 
NOTE 6 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
 
The financial statements contain certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program 
or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently 
applied.  The expenses that are allocated include salaries and employee benefits.  Management determined 
based on the nature of the Convention’s operations and organizational structure, that the principal drivers 
of expenses is time spent by employees in the related program or support area and is used as the basis for 
allocating these expenses. 
 
 
NOTE 7 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following purposes at December 31, 2018 
 

General purposes  $        866,493  
Benevolence                7,392  
Church development and education              30,165  
Church planting and mission support            342,904  
Evangelism and discipleship              40,066  
Ministry            105,676  
  $      1,392,696  
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NOTE 7 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS - Continued 
 
Funds with donor restrictions include money received by the Convention and are then distributed right 
away.  These amounts are included on the Statement of Activities as Contributions and Net assets 
released from restriction.     
 

Annie Armstrong Offering  $       69,810  
Lottie Moon Offering         121,084  
World Hunger Offering            2,694  
Associational Missions            5,617  
State-Wide Camping           11,235  
Birchwood Behavioral Health            5,617  
State Missions Offering           56,175  
SMO Distributed to Other Restricted Funds         (56,175) 
  $     216,057  

 
The moneys received for State Mission Offerings in the amount of $56,175 were redistributed to other 
funds with donor restrictions as per the Convention Policies and Procedures. 
 

State Wide Missions  $       28,088  
Associational Missions            5,618  
State-Wide Camping           11,235  
Birchwood Behavioral Health            5,618  
State Missions/2000 Club Promotion            2,808  
State Disaster Relief            2,808  
  $       56,175  
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NOTE 7 - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS - Continued 
 
Net assets were released from donor restrictions or board restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the 
restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by the donors as flows and are included as 
Net assets released from restriction on the Statement of Activities. 

  
Benevolence  $         1,005  
Church Development and Education           11,410  
Evangelism and Discipleship           36,433  
Ministry         105,191  
Mission Support and Church Planting         712,300  
  $     866,339  

 
 
NOTE 8 – FUND BALANCE REALLOCATION 
 
The policies of the Convention state that “At the close of the financial books for each calendar year, any 
revenues over expenses are to be assigned according to the percentages listed.”  At December 31, 2018, 
the amount allocated was $21,071. 
 

Capital Improvements  $         5,853 
ABC Protection Insurance Trust               293 
Office Equipment Upgrades            1,463 
Operating Reserve Account at the Alaska Baptist Foundation            5,853 
Church Strengthening Fund            7,316 
Alaska Baptist Emergency Assistance Fund               293 
  $       21,071 
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NOTE 9 – THE BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF ALABAMA  
 
For Convention investments held with the Foundation, it is recommended that the Executive Board review 
TBFA audited financial statements, as well as any policy and procedure documents deemed relevant. 
 
The audited financial statements for TBFA contain disclosures regarding the treatment of investment 
instruments, fair value accounting of investment instruments and various other accounting principles used 
by TBFA.  The disclosures contained within the aforementioned financial statements are relevant to the 
Convention due to the amount of investment instruments placed with the Foundation that are managed by 
TBFA.  However, these disclosures are outside the scope of the preparation engagement and not included 
in the notes to these financial statements. 
 
The members of Ogburn and White, LLC are full time employees of TBFA. 
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PREPARATION STATEMENT 
 
 
To the Executive Board 
Alaska Baptist Foundation 
Anchorage, Alaska 
 
The accompanying financial statements of the Alaska Baptist Foundation as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2018, were not subjected to an audit, review, or compilation engagement by us and we do not 
express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on them. 
 
Ogburn and White, LLC 
Montgomery, Alabama 
July 31, 2019 
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ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
Statement of Financial Position 

December 31, 2018 
 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit for review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them.  

See notes to financial statements. 
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Assets  
   
Cash and cash equivalents  $           151,428 
Investments            4,191,912 
Investments held for others            1,923,393 
   
   $        6,266,733 
   
   
Liabilities and Net Assets  
   
Funds available for distribution                43,444  
Investments held for others            1,923,393 
             1,966,837 
   
Net assets  
 Without donor restrictions               414,004 
 With donor restrictions            3,885,892 
             4,299,896 
   
   $        6,266,733 
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ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
Statement of Activities 

December 31, 2018 
 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit for review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them.  

See notes to financial statements. 
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Without Donor 

Restrictions 
With Donor 
Restrictions Total 

Support and Revenue    
 Contributions $                   - $             52,642 $             52,642
 Cooperative program 2,200 - 2,200
 Investment and administrative fee income 6,854 - 6,854
 Investment loss (5,315) (75,499) (80,814)
 Trust and other income 67,230 - 67,230
 Net assets released from restriction 142,836 (142,836) -
  Total support and revenue 213,805 (165,693) 48,112
      
Expenses   
 Program services 174,674 - 174,674
 Supporting activities 44,981 - 44,981
  Total expenses 219,655 - 219,655
      
Change in net assets (5,850) (165,693) (171,543)
      
Net assets - beginning of year 419,854 4,051,585 4,471,439
      
Net assets - end of year $           414,004 $        3,885,892 $        4,299,896
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ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

December 31, 2018 
 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit for review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them.  

See notes to financial statements. 
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  Programming Supporting Total Expenses 
Disbursements for   
   beneficiaries and others $           142,836 $                   - $           142,836
Office expense 3,240 3,960 7,200
Professional - 3,416 3,416
Promotion and public relations - 927 927
Salaries and benefits 28,598 34,952 63,550
Travel - 1,726 1,726
     
  $           174,674 $             44,981 $           219,655
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ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION 
Statement of Cash Flows 

December 31, 2018 
 

These financial statements have not been subjected to an audit for review or compilation engagement, and no 

assurance is provided on them.  

See notes to financial statements. 
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Operating Activities   
Change in net assets   $     (171,543) 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to   
   net cash in operating activities   
      Investment loss (income)             80,814  
      Contributions restricted for long-term purposes            (52,642) 
      Changes in operating assets and liabilities   
         Prepaid expenses               2,170  
         Accounts payable and accrued expenses             (5,121) 
         Funds available for distribution             (8,134) 
Net cash used in operating activities          (154,456) 
   
Investing Activities   
   Proceeds from sale of investments           155,960  
   Purchases of investments            (53,022) 
Net cash provided by investing activities           102,938  
   
Financing Activities   
   Proceeds from contributions restricted for investment   
      in permanent endowment             52,642  
Net cash provided by financing activities             52,642  
   
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents               1,124  
   
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year           150,304  
   
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year   $       151,428 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Nature of Activities 
 
The Baptist Foundation of Alaska (the Foundation) is a not-for-profit corporation organized for the purposes 
of raising, investing, and managing endowment funds in order to provide income for the support of the Alaska 
Baptist Convention (the Convention) and Southern Baptist Convention agencies, institutions, and causes.  The 
Foundation works with associations and donors located throughout the State of Alaska as well as The Baptist 
Foundation of Alabama (TBFA). 
 
TBFA holds approximately 98% of the Foundation’s investment instruments and engages an independent 
audit firm to conduct an annual financial statement audit.  An unqualified opinion was issued by Barfield, 
Murphy, Shank, and Smith, LLC for the year ended December 31, 2018.   
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Foundation considers all instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash 
equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of money market securities stated at fair value which approximates cost. 
Cash and cash equivalents are maintained at financial institutions and, at times, balances may exceed federally 
insured limits.  These amounts represent actual account balances held by financial institutions at the end of 
the period, and unlike the balances reported in the financial statements, the account balances do not reflect 
timing delays inherent in reconciling items such as outstanding checks and deposits in transit.  The Foundation 
has never experienced any losses related to these balances. 
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Investments 
 
Investments in debt and equity securities with readily determinable fair values are recorded at fair market 
value. Investments without readily determinable fair values are recorded at cost, or if impaired, at estimated 
realizable value.  The Foundation’s investments consist primarily of funds invested in fixed-income and equity 
securities and hedge funds 
 
The Foundation’s investments are converted to units of common funds administered by TBFA.  These 
common funds include the assets of charitable trusts and other specified types of assets authorized by law to 
be jointly invested, as well as general endowment funds.  Investments held for others include obligations 
consisting of units of these common funds, as well as other specifically identified assets. These assets are 
segregated from general assets of the Foundation. The units of common funds included in the Foundation’s 
investments are reported at their net asset value, equal to the Foundation’s pro-rata share of the total fair value 
of the underlying securities comprising the common funds. The common funds that are managed by TBFA 
are exempt from registration requirements of both state and federal securities law. 
 
TBFA invests in several alternative investments for further diversification of its common funds. Alternative 
investments are more illiquid than traditional investments, often taking three to twelve months or more to 
redeem, pending the completion of the final year-end close of the fund.  
 
The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide 
a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to maintain the 
purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the 
spending policy payout percentage is calculated as 4.75% of the September 30 market value if the September 
30 market value is 8% or greater of the cumulative principal contributions.  If the value is less than 8%, 90% 
of the investment income from October 1 – September 30 will be paid. 
 
Investments Held for Others 
 
Investments held for others include resources held and managed by the Foundation in a fiduciary capacity for 
their respective beneficiaries.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
TBFA maintains the Foundation’s investment accounts with a national investment firm to facilitate the 
investment, trading, and safekeeping of the various trusts’ assets. In management’s opinion, the safekeeping 
of these assets is adequately insured by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) and through 
supplemental insurance provided by the investment firm. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The Foundation is organized as a not-for-profit and has been granted tax-exempt status by the Internal 
Revenue Service for income tax purposes.   
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NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments consisted of the following at December 31, 2018: 
 

 Fair Value Cost 

Unrealized 
Appreciation 

(Depreciation) 
    

Cash and cash equivalents $           128,728 $           128,728 $                   -
Fixed income securities 743,413 782,933 (39,520)
Alternative investments 1,727,510 1,578,047 149,463
Mutual funds 878,478 892,073 (13,595)
Marketable equity securities 707,294 828,180 (120,886)
Accrued income 6,489 6,489 -
 $        4,191,912 $        4,216,450 $           (24,538)
    

Included in the accompanying statement of financial position under the following captions at December 31: 
 
Investments  $        4,191,912 
Investments held for others            1,923,393 
  $        6,115,305 
  

Transactions affecting assets held for others consisted of the following at December 31: 
 
Balance - beginning of year  $        1,998,390  
Deposits and additions               185,479  
Investment (loss) income               (28,557) 
Disbursements for beneficiaries and other withdrawals             (231,919) 
Balance - end of year  $        1,923,393  
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NOTE 3 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
The Foundation makes contributions for its employees to a defined contribution retirement plan maintained 
by GuideStone Financial Resources, an entity affiliated with the Southern Baptist Convention. The plan is 
maintained by the Convention.  The Foundation makes non-matching contributions to employee accounts 
equal to 10% of the employee’s salary. The Foundation matches employee contributions, up to 5% of the 
employee’s salary, based on years of service.  Employees are eligible for participation after one full year of 
employment and are fully vested at the time eligibility for participation is met.  Contributions to the plan 
totaled $6,421 during the year ended December 31, 2018. 
 
NOTE 4 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Foundation is affiliated with the Convention and receives administrative support.  The Convention 
provided $2,200 in administrative support to the Foundation during the year ended December 31, 2018.  The 
Foundation also administers certain assets for the Convention, whose value totaled $711,401 at December 31, 
2018 and is included in investments held for others.  The Foundation pays the Convention $7,200 per year for 
office rental. 
 
NOTE 5 - FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 
 
The financial statements contain certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one program 
or supporting function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently 
applied.  The expenses that are allocated include salaries and employee benefits and office expenses. 
Management determined, based on the nature of the Foundation’s operations, that the principal driver of 
expenses is time spent by the Foundation director and is used as the basis for allocating these expenses. 
 
NOTE 6 – THE BAPTIST FOUNDATION OF ALABAMA 
 
As mentioned previously, TBFA holds approximately 98% of the Foundation’s investment instruments.  
Because of the large amount of money TBFA manages for the Foundation, it is recommended that the 
Executive Board review TBFA audited financial statements as well as any policy and procedure documents 
deemed relevant. 
 
The audited financial statements for TBFA contain disclosures regarding the treatment of investment 
instruments, fair value accounting of investment instruments and various other accounting principles used 
by TBFA.  The disclosures contained within the aforementioned financial statements are relevant to the 
Foundation due to the amount of investment instruments managed by TBFA for the Foundation.  However, 
these disclosures are outside the scope of the preparation engagement and not included in the notes to these 
financial statements.  
 
The members of Ogburn & White, LLC are full-time employees of TBFA.  
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June 2020

•	 Alaska Native Youth Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 1 through 
Friday, June 5)

•	 WMU National Annual Meeting; Orlando, FL, (Sunday, June 7 
through Monday, June 8)

•	 Youth Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 15 through Friday, June 
19)

•	 Southern Baptist Convention; Orlando, FL, (Tuesday, June 9 
through Wednesday, June 10)

•	 Boys Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 8 through Friday, June 12)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, K-2nd grade (Wednesday, June 
17-Friday, June 19)

•	 Girls Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 22 through Friday, June 26)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 3-4 (Monday, June 22 through 
Friday, June 26)

July 2020
•	 ABC and ABF offices closed for Independence Day, (Monday, 

July 6)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 5-6 (Monday, July 6 through 
Friday, July 10)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 7-8 (Monday, July 13 through 
Friday, July 17)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 9-12 (Monday, July 20 through 
Friday, July 24)

•	 JAM Camp, (Sunday, July 12 through Thursday, July 16)

augusT 2020
•	 FUSION Youth Conference, ABT, (Wednesday, August 5 

through Friday, August 7)

sepTeMber 2020
•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Labor Day, (Monday, 

September 7)

•	 Valeria Sherard State Mission Emphasis, (Sunday, September 6 
through Sunday, September 12)

•	 TBA Annual Meeting, location unknown, (UNKNOWN)

•	 IMPACT! Alaska Conference (Monday, September 28, 2018)

•	 wMu Annual Meeting, (Tuesday, September 29)

•	 Pastor’s Conference, (Tuesday, September 29)

•	 Alaska Baptist Convention Annual Meeting; First Baptist 
Church, Anchorage (Tuesday, September 29 through Wednesday, 
September 30)

oCTober 2020
•	 Personal Evangelism Commitment Day, (Sunday, October 4)

•	 TVBA Annual Meeting (UNKNOWN)

•	 HPBA Annual Meeting/Missions Celebration, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

noveMber 2020
•	 Orientation for new ABC Executive Board members at ABC 

offices, (Monday, November 9)
•	 All ABC Executive Board Committees, (Monday, November 9)

•	 ABC Executive Board meeting at the ABC offices, (Monday, 
November 9 through Tuesday, November 10)

•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10:00 a.m., (Thursday, November 5)

•	 Annual Church Profiles Due, (Monday, November 16)
•	 ABC and ABF Offices close at 1:00 p.m. for Thanksgiving 

Holiday, (Wednesday, November 25)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Thanksgiving Holiday, 
(Thursday, November 26)

•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 
and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, November 29 
through Sunday, December 6)

DeCeMber 2020
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 

and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, November 29 
through Sunday, December 6)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Christmas Holiday, (1:00 
Wednesday, December 23 through Friday, January 1)

oCTober 2019
•	 TBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

•	 TVBA Annual Meeting (UNKNOWN)

•	 HPBA Annual Meeting/Missions Celebration, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

noveMber 2019
•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10:00 a.m., (Thursday, November 7)

•	 Orientation for new ABC Executive Board members at ABC 
offices, (Monday, November 11)

•	 All ABC Executive Board Committees, (Monday, November 12)

•	 ABC Executive Board meeting at the ABC offices, (Monday, 
November 11 through Tuesday, November 12)

•	 Annual Church Profiles Due, (Friday, November 15)
•	 ABC and ABF Offices close at 1:00 p.m. for Thanksgiving 

Holiday, (Wednesday, November 27)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Thanksgiving Holiday, 
(Thursday, November 28)

DeCeMber 2019
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 

and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, December 1 
through Sunday, December 8)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Christmas Holiday, (1:00 p.m. 
Monday, December 23, 2019 through Wednesday, January 1, 
2020)

January 2020
•	 January Bible Study, (Sunday, January 5 through Sunday, 

January 12)

february 2020
•	 TVBA Women’s Winter Wake-Up (Friday-Saturday, February 

7-8)

•	 State Evangelism Conference, (Monday-Tuesday, February 3-4)

•	 Focus on wMu, (Monday, February 10 through Sunday, February 
16)

MarCh 2020
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for North American Missions 

and the Annie Armstrong Easter Offering, (Sunday, March 1 
through Sunday, March 8)

•	 Church Planting Emphasis (Sunday, March 15)

april 2020
•	 Women on Mission Celebration, (Friday, April 3 through 

Saturday, April 4)

•	 TBA Executive Board Meeting; FBC, Petersburg, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Semi-Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

•	 Easter, (Sunday, April 12)

•	 VBS Training Clinics

o VBS Training TVBA, (Saturday, April 18)

o VBS Training HPBA, (Monday, April 20)

o VBS Training CBA, (Tuesday, April 21)

•	 New Pastor and full-time staff orientation, (Wednesday, April 
24) TENTATIVE

•	 Ministers and Spouses Conference, (Thursday, April 23 through 
Saturday, April 25)

May 2020
•	 ABC Executive Board Budget and Finance Committee Meeting, 

(Monday, May 4)

•	 ABC Executive Board Committee Meetings, (Monday, May 4)

•	 ABC Executive Board Convenes, (Monday, May 4 through 
Tuesday, May 5)

•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10 AM, (Thursday, May 7)

•	 National Day of Prayer, (Thursday, May 7)

•	 Day of Prayer for Birchwood Behavioral Health (Sunday, May 
10)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Memorial Day, (Monday, May 
25)
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Board Action Summary submitted by Debra Long, Operation Administrator
suMMary of boarD aCTions

May 6-7, 2019 alaska bapTisT ConvenTion 

exeCuTive boarD MeeTing

1. Approved November 12-13, 2018, ABC Executive Board Meet-

ing minutes as read.

2. Approved giving the Executive Director authority to purchase 

a new phone system for the ABC with a price not to exceed 

$15,000 and keeping in mind quality and durability. 

3. Approved the following changes to the Policies and Procedures 

(P&P) Manual:

a. a.  Changing the wording of P&P Manual II, Article I, 

Part-Time Employee, the first sentence to read, “Routinely 
works less than 32 hours per week.”

b. b.  Changing P&P Manual II, Article IV Holidays, Section 

1 to read, “Holidays Falling on Friday, Saturday, or Sun-

day. If a holiday falls on a Friday, Saturday, or Sunday, the 

following Monday is considered a holiday.”

c. c.  Deleting P&P Manual III, Article XI Other Restricted 

Use Funds, Section C, Item 6. Account 5746 is no longer 

an active account in the ABC budget.

d. d.  Changing P&P Manual III, Article XX. Christmas Love 

Gift last sentence to read, “For hourly workers, one percent 

(1%) is based on the annual total amount of income and 

prorated if less than one year of service, but no less than 

$100.00.”

4. Approved to amend the minutes of the November 2018 board 

meeting to reflect an excused absence by Cliff Day for knee 
surgery.

5. Approved the March 2019 Financial Reports. 

6. Approved to inactivate accounts 5520 Sunday School, 5530 

Discipleship Training, 5536 Church Music, and 5544 Support 

Programs and create account 5560 Church Resources. This 

broader term will assist in utilizing LifeWay’s funds to its fullest 

potential, and to change the Chart of Accounts to remove the 

above-mention inactivated accounts and add the following 

description to account 5560 Church Resources: This account 

is to provide churches with training for Sunday School, small 

groups, discipleship training, music and worship training, pay 

for the Alaska Baptist Convention’s annual CCLI License, and 

for materials and assistance with support programs that help 

ABC churches in the area of church development. 

7. Approved the 2020 ABC Proposed Budget. This proposed bud-

get represents a $16,702.58 increase of anticipated Cooperative 

Program offerings over last year’s budget.

8. Approved to grant $10,000 from Account 8196 State Missions 

State-Wide for remote mission travel throughout the year de-

pending on need. 

9. Approved to assist supporting Mosaic Campus Ministries with 

travel and operation expenses throughout the State of Alaska 

by granting a one-time payment of $7,500 from Account 8196 

State-Wide Missions for 2019, with future recurring funds of 

$15,000 of the ABC budgeting process beginning with the 2020 

ABC Proposed Budget. 

10. Approved to set the date of the 78th Annual Meeting to be 

September 26-27, 2023. The times will be set by the Order of 

Business Committee when planning the meeting.

11. Approved to adopt the theme “Rekindle” for the 2019 Annual 

Meeting based on 2 Timothy 1:6 “Therefore, I remind you to re-

kindle the gift of God that is in you through the laying on of my 

hands.” The dedication page of the Book of Reports will honor 

the lives of former pastors Rodney Kovtynovich, Gene Medaris, 

and Roy Moore who passed away this past year.

noveMber 12-13, 2018, alaska bapTisT ConvenTion exeCuTive boarD 

MeeTing approveD boarD aCTions:

1. Approved the ABC board committee structure as presented by 

President Tracy Simmons.

2. Approved the May 7-8, 2018, ABC executive committee board 

minutes.

3. Approved the September 25-26, 2018, ABC annual meeting 

minutes.

4. Approved to increase the Spousal Allowance for travel from 

$1,200 to $2,000 annual maximum.

5. Approved to accept the October 2018 ABC Financial Reports.

6. Approved to revise the 2019 ABC budget. 

7. Approved to rename Designated Account 8986 Missionary 

Training to Vision Development, move the balance of Designat-

ed Account 8402 to Account 8986 and deactivate Account 8402, 

update the Chart of Accounts as follows: Account 5253 New 

Vision Promotion--These funds are to be used to assist with 

the promotion and implementation of the new vision, including 

travel expenses for implementation team members, and Ac-

count 8986 Vision Development-These funds are to be used for 

expenses incurred by the New Vision Implementation Team and 

potential contractors engaged for developing the new structure, 

rebranding, and website and social media outlets.

8. Approved a one-time grant of $18,000 from Designated 

Account 8196 State-Wide Missions to Faith Recovery Fellow-

ship to continue their chaplaincy ministry inside Goose Creek 

Correctional Institution with future recurring funds to be part of 

the ABC budgeting process.

9. Approved a one-time grant of $15,000 from Designated Ac-

count 8575 Church Strengthening to Greater Friendship Baptist 

Church to assist with extensive renovations of the church 

building.

10. Approved to set the 2019 special offering goals as follows: 

Valeria Sherard State Mission Offering--$90,000; Annie Arm-

strong Easter Offering--$95,000; and Lottie Moon Christmas 

Offering--$150,000.

11. Approved to assign Mountain View Community Church as the 

2019 second quarter 2000 Club Call recipient.

12. Approved the 2019 Annual Housing Allowances for the ABC 

Director Staff.



58 AlAskA BAptist Convention 74th AnnuAl Meeting Book of RepoRts

proposeD buDgeT 2020
Alaska Baptist Convention

Page 1 of 4

ABC Budget

NAMB 

Budget LifeWay Other Source Total Budget

REVENUES

$580,532.93

$116,106.59

4011 - COOP PROGRAM (BACK TRUST EARNINGS) $429.23 ABF $429.23

4015 - INCOME FROM HALE TRUST $226.00 MO trust $226.00

 4020 - NAMB $100,000.00 $100,000.00

4025 - LIFEWAY CHRISTIAN RESOURCE $60,000.00 $60,000.00

4050 - ALASKA BAPTIST MILEPOST

4061 - RESTRICTED USE FUNDS $143.00  #8320 $143.00

4170 - INTEREST INCOME

4190 - MISCELLANEOUS INCOME $7,200.00 ABF $7,200.00

4193 - INCOME FROM ABC EXEC DIR BEN & TRAV $1,404.49 ABF $1,404.49

4197 - INCOME FROM VISION TRUST FUND $1,109.94 ABF $1,109.94

4198 - INCOME FROM TUDOR TRUST FUND $597.08 ABF $597.08

4199 - INCOME FROM PROTECTION INS. TRUST $6,543.64 ABF $6,543.64

4200 - INCOME FROM GREEN TRUST $2,230.08 ABF $2,230.08

4201 - INCOME FROM KELLY TRUST $0.00 ABF $0.00

4202 - INCOME FROM DESIGNATED TRUST EARNINGS $3,211.59 ABF $3,211.59

4203 - INCOME FROM OPERATION RESERVE EARNINGS $28,659.55 ABF $28,659.55

$696,639.52 $100,000.00 $60,000.00 $51,754.60 $908,394.12

 EXPENSES

5010 - WORD MISSIONS   (20% OF Acct 4010 & 4011) $116,106.59 $85.85 ABF $116,192.44

5110 - EXECUTIVE DIRC SALARY/HOUSING $88,846.16 $88,846.16

5111 - EXECUTIVE DIRC BENEFITS $44,852.95 $7,479.78 ABF $52,332.73

5112 - EXECUTIVE DIRC TRAVEL $13,000.00 $13,000.00

5116 - HOSTING/CONTINGENCY $3,239.00 $3,239.00

5118 - MEEK BENEFITS $4,100.00 $4,100.00

5253 - NEW VISION PROMOTION $3,000.00 $3,000.00

$273,144.70 $7,565.63 $280,710.33

5222 - EXECUTIVE BOARD EXPENSE $15,851.00 $15,851.00

5223 - OFFICERS OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL EXPENSES $3,000.00 $3,000.00

5224 - ANNUAL CONVENTION $10,800.00 $10,800.00

5226 - WORKMAN'S COMPENSATION $6,000.00 $6,000.00

5228 - EQUIPMENT/MAINTENANCE $7,200.00 $7,200.00

     ABC OPERATIONS

     ADMINISTRATION

     TOTAL ADMINISTRATION

4010 - COOPERATIVE PROGRAM

TOTAL ANTICIPATED INCOME

Proposed 2020 ABC Budget

$696,639.52
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proposeD buDgeT 2020
Alaska Baptist Convention

Page 2 of 4

ABC Budget

NAMB 

Budget LifeWay Other Source Total Budget

Proposed 2020 ABC Budget

$42,851.00 $42,851.00

5230 - ABC SUPPORT STAFF DEVELOPMENT $3,500.00 $3,500.00

5236 - OFFICE EXPENSE $18,552.00 $700.00 ABF $19,252.00

5238 - EMPLOYER PAYROLL TAXES (All Support Staff) $11,068.00 $11,068.00

5239 - EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

           (Christmas Bonus and Staff Appreciation)

     ACCOUNTING SERVICES $47,556.88 $16,146.00 $5,731.91 ABF $69,434.79

5231 Accounting Consultant $2,000.00 $2,000.00

5232 Operation and Finance Administrator $40,368.01 $16,146.00 $56,514.01

5233 Operation & Finance Admin. Benefits $5,188.87 $5,731.91 ABF $10,920.78

     SECRETARIAL SERVICES $49,435.43 $33,854.00 $19,000.00 $7,961.99 $110,251.42

5234 Evangelism / Mission Assistant (Part-Time) $9,407.00 $12,625.00 $10,000.00 $32,032.00

5260 Admin Assistant / Receptionist $25,722.01 $12,624.00 $2,000.00 $2,230.08 ABF $42,576.09

5261 Admin  Asst. / Receptionist Benefits $11,911.42 $6,000.00 $5,731.91 ABF $23,643.33

5262 Information Technology Director $2,395.00 $8,605.00 $1,000.00 $12,000.00

$134,112.31 $50,000.00 $19,000.00 $14,393.90 $217,506.21

5240 - MAINTENANCE - BUILDING $1,788.41 $3,211.59 ABF $5,000.00

5242 - INSURANCE $5,774.00 $226.00 MO trust $6,000.00

5244 - UTILITIES $12,502.00 $6,500.00 ABF $19,002.00

5248 - SNOW REMOVAL $4,800.00 $4,800.00

5250 - GROUNDS $2,390.06 $1,109.94 ABF $3,500.00

5252 - JANITOR/JANITORIAL  SUPPLIES $5,800.00 $5,800.00

$33,054.47 $11,047.53 $44,102.00

5310 - STATE DIR. OF CHURCH PLNTG/MISSIONS SALARY $44,759.20 $25,000.00 $69,759.20

5311 - STATE DIR. OF CP/MISSIONS BENEFITS $12,667.61 $5,731.91 ABF $18,399.52

     BUILDING OPERATIONS

     OFFICE SERVICES

    TOTAL ABC OPERATIONS

    TOTAL OFFICE SERVICES

     TOTAL BUILDING OPERATIONS

     CHURCH PLTG PERSONNEL & MISSION SUPPORT

$4,000.00$4,000.00
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proposeD buDgeT 2020
Alaska Baptist Convention

Page 3 of 4

ABC Budget

NAMB 

Budget LifeWay Other Source Total Budget

Proposed 2020 ABC Budget

5312 - STATE DIR. OF CP/MISSIONS TRAVEL $10,000.00 $10,000.00

5370 - FAITH RECOVERY FELLOWSHIP $18,000.00 $18,000.00

5375 - MOSAIC CAMPUS MINISTRIES $15,000.00 $15,000.00

$100,426.81 $25,000.00 $5,731.91 $131,158.72

5622 - LEADERSHIP TRAINING - ENRICHMENT $2,000.00 $2,000.00

5624 - WOMEN ON MISSION - EVANGELISM $2,000.00 $2,000.00

5650 - BAPTIST MEN /  BOYS $1,000.00 $1,000.00

$5,000.00 $5,000.00

EVANGELISM PERSONNEL

5410 - DIR. OF EVANGELISM/CD SALARY/HOUSING $54,106.17 $25,000.00 $2,000.00 $143.00 # 8320 $81,249.17

5411 - DIR. OF EVANGELISM/CD BENEFITS $31,350.70 $12,000.00 $5,731.91 ABF $49,082.61

5412 - DIR. OF EVANGELISM/CD TRAVEL $9,500.00 $9,500.00

     TOTAL EVANGELISM PERSONNEL $94,956.87 $25,000.00 $14,000.00 $5,874.91 $139,831.78

     CHURCH DEVELOPMENT

5512 - DIRECTOR'S TRAVEL $10,000.00 $10,000.00

5546 - ORIENTATION/NEW PASTORS $2,600.00 $2,600.00

5560 - CHURCH RESOURCES $14,400.00 $14,400.00

$27,000.00 $27,000.00

5710 - PASTORAL PROTECTION INSURANCE $3,439.36 $6,543.64 ABF $9,983.00

5714 - STEWARDSHIP/COOPERATIVE PROGRAM $2,400.00 $2,400.00

5741 - ALASKA PARTNERSHIPS $2,654.00 $597.08 ABF $3,251.08

5745 - BIRCHWOOD BEHAVIOR HEALTH $1,200.00 $1,200.00

5747 - ALASKA/ABC FOUNDATION $1,200.00 $1,200.00

5748 - ON MISSION CELEBRATION $1,200.00 $1,200.00

5810 - ALASKA BAPTIST MILEPOST $1,000.00 $1,000.00

     TOTAL OTHER MINISTRY SERVICES $13,093.36 $7,140.72 $20,234.08

$696,639.52 $100,000.00 $60,000.00 $51,754.60 $908,394.12

NAMB 2019 Funding through Designated Accounts

Church Planting Funds $450,000.00

Church Planting Development Funds $45,000.00

Existing Church Evangelism Strategies $36,000.00

Church Planting Evangelism Strategies $4,000.00
$535,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES

     TOTAL CHURCH DEVELOPMENT

     OTHER MINISTRY SERVICES

     TOTAL CP PERSONNEL & MISSION SUPPORT

     MINISTRY SUPPORT & MISSION EDUCATION

     TOTAL MINISTRY SUPPORT & MISSION EDUCAT.
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Ian Johannes
is a life-long Alaskan, and member of True North Church 
in Anchorage. Mr. Johannes has served that church as an 
elder for three years, and has been a Lead Team member 
and Life Group leader. Mr. Johannes is a financial advi-
sor with Edward Jones, having worked there since 2012. 
He is responsible for managing client relationships, 
giving investment advice, and planning assistance with 
financial goals such as retirement, college savings, estate 
planning, and wealth transfer. He serves both individual 
investors and institutional clients.

Marilyn Feller-King
has been a member of First Baptist Church, Wasilla for 
31 years. She is currently an AWANA Leader, counter, 
and member of the Bylaws Committee and Security 
Team. She has been a Sunday School teacher, youth 
worker and kitchen coordinator. She took the FAITH 
training in Daytona Beach, FL.

Helen Mickel
is a member of First Baptist Church in Ketchikan, where 
she has worshipped for nine years. She serves in her 
church as host of a Home Group. Ms. Mickel is the CEO 
of Tongass Federal Credit Union and is married to Guy 
Mickel, deacon at First Baptist Church, Ketchikan.

Bruce Rowell
has pastored First Baptist Church, Palmer for 22 years. 
He has served as second vice president, and two terms as 
president of the Alaska Baptist Convention. Dr. Rowell 
holds a BachelorDegree in Christianity from Mercer Uni-
versity in Macon, GA; a Master of Divinity from New 
Orleans Seminary; and a Doctor of Ministry from South-
ern Seminary. He has been the Alaska representative on 
the SBC Executive Committee, and currently teaches as 
an adjuct professor of religion at Wayland Baptist Uni-
versity, Anchorage Campus. Dr. Rowell is the Director of 
Volunteer Chaplains for the Alaska State Troopers.

Wilbert Mickens
is the pastor of New Hope Baptist Church in Anchorage. 
He holds a Bachelor of Arts from Duke University, and 
a Master of Divinity from Duke Divinity School. He 
retired as a Chaplain Lieutenant Colonel in the United 
States Air Force and has received the Airman Medal for 
Heroism, the Air Force Meritorious Service with two oak 
leaf clusters, the Air Force Commendation Medal with 
one oak cluster, the Air Force Achievement Medal, the 
National Defense Medal, the Air Force Expeditionary 
Medal, and the Air Force Humanitarian Service Medal. 
Rev. Mickens is actively involved in many community 
service groups.

Todd Buck
is a member of Glacier Valley Baptist Church (GVBC)in 
Juneau. He works for the Coast Guard as Marine Infor-
mation Specialist, and has lived in Alaska 29 years. Mr. 
Buck pastors Tenakee Springs Community Church, is a 
member of the GVBC missions committee, the Tongass 
Baptist Association finance committee and the Alaska 
Baptist Convention Executive Board. Mr. Buck has a 
Bachelor’s Degree in Ministry, and has training as an 
Intention Interim and Bible Storytelling.

Teresa Cappel
has served her church in the areas of Children’s Direc-
tor, Team West Consultant and Teacher Training. She 
is currently the Children’s Director at Big Lake Baptist 
Church, where she has been a member for two years. Ms. 
Cappel has lived in Alaska for 12 years, and has special 
training in Critical Incident Stress Management, Suicide 
Prevention, Mental Health, Spiritual Care, and is certi-
fied as a North American Mission Board Chaplain.

Grady Cox
is a member of University Baptist Church in Fairbanks, 
where he has worshipped for 19 years. He has served as 
Community Groups Director, and is currently the Asso-
ciate Pastor of Spiritual Growth and Ministries Develop-
ment. Mr. Cox holds a Bachelor of Arts in Humanities 
from Scarborough College in Fort Worth, TX; a Master 
of Divinity Advanced in biblical languages and exposi-
tory preaching.

Guy Crockroft
currently serves as a deacon, adult Sunday School teach-
er, church clerk and member of the Finance Committe at 
First Baptist Church, Juneau. He has served as Interim 
Pastor, Sunday School Director, and member of both the 
Nominating Committee and Pastor Selection Commit-
tees. Mr. Crockroft has attended classes at the Alaska 
Bible College Southeast Extension, attended many SBC 
training sessions, and receive the Certificate for 100 
hours of training from SBC. Tongass Baptist Association 
(TBA) has welcomed Mr. Crockroft as Moderator, serv-
ing two separate terms, and as Vice Moderator, serving 
three separte terms.  He has been on the TBA Executive 
Board and numerous TBA committees. He has lived in 
Alaska 28 years.

Harold Conrad
has lived in Alaska 11 years and pastors Montana Creek 
Baptist Church in Talkeetna. He is active in the Hatcher 
Pass Baptist Association where he has served as Moder-
ator, and member of the Associational Leadership Team. 
He currently serves as  their Treasurer. Mr. Conrad has 
served two terms on the Alaska Baptist Convention Ex-
ecutive Board, and been elected to two terms as second 
vice president of the Alaska Baptist Convention. He has 
also been the Alaska representative on the SBC nominat-
ing committee. Mr. Conrad has completed five classes of 
training for SBC Disaster Relief.

boarD anD CoMMiTTee noMinee bios
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CoMMiTTee reporTs

Alaska Baptist Convention Executive Board

Candidate Start Date End Date Comment

Conrad, Harold October 2019 September 2023

Cox, Grady October 2019 September 2023

Crockroft, Guy October 2019 September 2023

King, Marilyn October 2019 September 2023

Alaska Baptist Family Services, DBA Birchwood Behavioral Health,

Board of Directors

Candidate Start Date End Date Comment

Needed October 2019 September 2020

Cappel, Teresa October 2019 September 2022

Mickens, Wilbert October 2019 September 2022

Needed October 2019 September 2022

Alaska Baptist Foundation Board of Directors

Candidate Start Date End Date Comment

Johannes, Ian October 2019 September 2022

Mickel, Helen October 2019 September 2022

Rowell, Bruce October 2019 September 2022 Second term

Constitution and Bylaws Committee

Candidate Start Date End Date Comment

Buck, Todd October 2019 September 2022

Conrad, Harold October 2019 September 2022

Time, Place, Preacher Committee

Time Place Preacher Alternate

75th annual meeting September 28-30, 2020 First Baptist Church, Anchorage Wilbert Mickens Joe Blackburn

76th annual meeting September 28-29, 2021 First Baptist Church, North Pole

77th annual meeting September 27-28, 2022 Glacier Valley Baptist Church, 

Juneau

78th annual meeting September 26-27, 2023 Fairview Loop Baptist 

Church, Wasilla
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ARTICLE V

AUTHORITY
SECTION 1.   This Convention is an autonomous body made up of 

messengers in session from cooperating Baptist churches in Alaska 

to fulfill the purpose for which the Convention was organized by the 
churches. The messengers have no right to act except for the annual 

or special meetings for which they have been elected by their coop-

erating churches.

SECTION 2.   This Convention shall never claim or attempt to 

exercise authority over any church or any other Baptist body but 

shall always cheerfully recognize and uphold the church’s autonomy 

under Christ.

ARTICLE VI

OFFICERS
SECTION 1.   The officers of this Convention shall be President, 

First Vice President, Second Vice President and Recording Secre-

tary who shall be elected at each annual meeting by the duly elected 

messengers present and voting, and who shall hold their offices 
until their successors are elected and installed. The officers of the 
Convention are eligible to serve two complete successive terms. The 

officers shall assume office at the close of Convention at which they 
are elected. The office of treasurer shall be filled by the Executive 
Director of the Convention who is elected for an indefinite term by 
the Convention. The Convention may establish other officers as it 
deems necessary and helpful to its work.

SECTION 2.   If the President, for any reason, cannot complete the 

term for which elected, then the First Vice President shall immedi-

ately become President and shall serve for the remainder of the term. 

If the First Vice President is unable to serve, the Second Vice Pres-

ident shall fill the office. The Second Vice President shall succeed 
to the office of First Vice President in the event of a vacancy in that 
office.

SECTION 3.   The employees or immediate family of an employee 

(spouse, child, or sibling) of the Convention or its Agencies shall not 

be eligible for election to the offices of President, First Vice Presi-
dent, Second Vice President or Recording Secretary.

SECTION 4.   No member of the immediate family of an employ-

ee of the Convention or its agencies may serve as a member of the 

Boards of Directors.

ARTICLE VII

CONVENTION COMMITTEES
SECTION 1.   The Convention shall organize its work into stand-

ing, annual and special committees. All committee members shall be 

members of cooperating Convention churches.

To establish or dissolve a Standing or Annual Committee, a request 

must be submitted in writing detailing the purpose of adding or dis-

solving the committee to the ABC Executive Committee 30 days pri-

or to the ABC Executive Board meeting. The Board will vote on the 

recommendation. If the Board approves the recommendation, then 

the request to establish or dissolve the committee will be presented 

to the Constitution and Bylaws Committee 60 days prior to the next 

annual meeting for a two-thirds (2/3) vote in the affirmative.
SECTION 2.   The standing committees are the Constitution and 

Bylaws Committee and the Resolutions Committee. The Constitu-

tion and Bylaws Committee shall have five members elected to serve 
a three (3) year rotation term. The members shall be nominated by 

the Committee on Committees and elected one-third each year by 

the Convention. The Resolutions Committee shall consist of the 

ABC officers and the ABC Executive Director. Job descriptions for 
these committees are located in ABC Bylaws, Article V, Section 1 (a) 

and (b).

CONSTITUTION

OF THE

ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.,

THE

ALASKA BAPTIST FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

AND THE

ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME 
The name of this body shall be the Alaska Baptist Convention, Inc. 

The address is 1750 O’Malley Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507.

ARTICLE II

PURPOSE
The purpose of the Alaska Baptist Convention, hereafter known as 

the Convention, shall be to furnish a medium of cooperation for the 

cooperating Baptist churches of Alaska in their divinely commis-

sioned work of missions, education, and benevolence in obedience 

to the Great Commission of Jesus Christ, and to cooperate with the 

work of the Southern Baptist Convention.

ARTICLE III

MEMBERSHIP
SECTION 1.   The member of this Corporation is the Convention 

in session which shall consist of messengers elected by Baptist 

churches in Alaska contributing to the Convention through the 

Cooperative Program, (as reflected in the most recent annual church 
profile) cooperating with and sympathetic with its purpose and work 
and in harmony with the general doctrinal reflections of the Baptist 
Faith and Message.

SECTION 2.   Each church, meeting the criteria in SECTION 1 

of this Article, shall be entitled to two (2) messengers to the Con-

vention, and one additional messenger for each one percent of its 

undesignated funds given to the Convention through the Cooperative 

Program. No church shall be entitled to more than twelve (12) mes-

sengers except as defined in SECTION 3. All messengers shall be 
resident members in good standing of the cooperation Convention 

Church/Mission that elects them.

SECTION 3.   Each church-type mission shall be entitled to one 

(1) messenger from that mission to the Convention and such mes-

senger does not count toward the limit of twelve (12) messengers 

from the sponsoring church.

ARTICLE IV

MEETINGS
SECTION 1.   The Convention shall meet annually. The dates 

and places of the annual meeting are to be approved at least two (2) 

years in advance by the Convention.

SECTION 2.   Special sessions of the Convention may be called 

by the messengers in session or by the Executive Board by a two-

thirds vote of the Board. The call for the special session shall state 

the purpose of the meeting and the time, date and place for the meet-

ing. The special session shall be limited to the purpose stated.

SECTION 3.   Quorum. The majority of the registered messengers 

present for the annual or special session shall constitute a quorum.

SECTION 4.   Voting by proxy is not permitted.
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ARTICLE IX

AGENCIES
SECTION 1.   The agencies of the Convention are Alaska Baptist 

Family Services Inc. and Alaska Baptist Foundation Inc. All can-

didates for nomination to agency boards shall have been a member 

of a cooperating Baptist church in Alaska for at least twelve (12) 

months. 

SECTION 2.   The Convention in annual session shall approve or 

amend the Articles of Incorporation of the agencies by two-thirds 

vote, providing no amendment may be considered after the second 

session of the Annual Convention, and that the proposed amendment 

be submitted in writing to the President of the Executive Board of 

the Convention at least one-hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 

Annual Convention. The Executive Board must submit the recom-

mended changes to the Convention office sixty (60) days prior to the 
annual session. Notice of amendments must be published in the state 

Baptist paper or mailed to the churches at least thirty (30) days prior 

to the Annual Convention.

SECTION 3.   The Board of Directors shall be elected by the Con-

vention for a three-year term, one-third elected each year, and shall 

be nominated by the Committee on Boards. The number of directors, 

their qualifications, and responsibilities, shall be contained in the 
Agency’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. The Committee on 

Boards’ recommendations shall be forwarded to the Convention of-

fice and to the Executive Board ninety (90) days prior to the Annual 
Convention.

SECTION 4.   If a vacancy occurs, the Executive Board may elect 

a qualified person to serve until the next regular Annual Convention, 
such person being recommended by the Committee on Boards. In no 

case may a vacancy continue for longer than six (6) months or until 

the next Annual Convention, whichever occurs first. The Conven-

tion shall at its next regular annual session fill the vacancy for the 
remainder of the term.

SECTION 5.   Agency Boards of Directors or any individual direc-

tor of said Boards may be replaced by the Convention in session, or 

the Executive Board for misfeasance, incapacity, failure to perform 

their proper duties, conduct which would bring discredit upon the 

corporation, or transferring membership from a church or mission 

cooperating with the Convention.

SECTION 6.   The Convention shall exercise oversight of the 

agencies; however, the management of the affairs of each agency 

shall be by its elected Board of Directors. The Board of Directors 

shall hold title to properties, real and personal; to act as a fiduciary, 
fiscal representative and agent of the agency; to employ agency per-
sonnel; to make contracts in behalf of the agency; to conduct long-

range planning to reach the objectives of the agency; to approve 

capital improvements and expansion up to $500,000.

SECTION 7.   Each agency shall report to the Convention in 

annual session; this report shall include financial assessment reports, 
projected budgets, progress on program objectives in light of long-

range plans, and other necessary information as may be requested by 

the Convention or its Executive Director.

SECTION 8.   The agencies are prohibited by the Convention from 

engaging in fundraising without specific approval by the Conven-

tion.

SECTION 9.   The relationship between Convention and an agen-

cy shall not be discontinued without a majority vote on such action 

at two consecutive Annual Conventions. Notice of the discontinu-

ance must be published in the state Baptist paper or mailed to the 

churches ninety (90) days prior to the Annual Convention.

SECTION 10.   Upon the dissolution of an agency, the remaining 

assets, after liabilities are paid and discharged, are to be transferred 

SECTION 3.   The annual committees shall have five (5) mem-

bers. The annual committees shall serve an annual term and shall 

be appointed by the President in consultation with the other officers 
within forty-five (45) days of the conclusion of the Annual Session. 
Appointed members shall be notified by mail by the President of the 
Convention. The annual committees are (1) Order of Business, (2) 

Credentials, (3) Time, Place, and Preacher, (4) Committee on Com-

mittees, (5) Committee on Boards.

SECTION 4.   The Convention may approve special committees 

for a specific purpose and term, and these committees shall be ap-

pointed by the President in consultation with the Vice Presidents. 

SECTION 5.   The qualifications and responsibilities of the com-

mittees shall be contained in the Bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII

EXECUTIVE BOARD
SECTION 1.   The Executive Board shall serve as the Convention 

ad interim and as the Convention’s principal advisory committee 

on its total program. The Executive Board shall serve as the Con-

vention’s operating board for all programs not specifically assigned 
elsewhere. The Board’s responsibilities are defined in the Conven-

tion’s Bylaws.

SECTION 2.   The Executive Board shall be composed of the 

Convention officers, President, First Vice President, Second Vice 
President, Recording Secretary, and sixteen (16) directors elect-

ed for a four (4) year rotation term, one-fourth elected each year. 

The Committee on Boards recommendations is to be forwarded to 

the Convention office at least ninety (90) days prior to the Annual 
Convention. All Board members shall be members of co-operating 

Convention churches.

SECTION 3.   The directors shall be elected as members at large, 

except that the Board shall include at least one person whose church 

is in the geographical area of each association. At least six of the 

members shall be laity, at least six clergy, and the remainder shall be 

either.

SECTION 4.   Officers of the Executive Board are President, to be 
filled by the President of the Convention, Vice President, to be filled 
by the First Vice President of the Convention, and Secretary, to be 

filled by the Recording Secretary of the Convention. The Second 
Vice President of the Convention may be appointed by the President 

to perform the duties of any office if a vacancy occurs.
SECTION 5.   No director shall serve more than one term of any 

length on the Board with the exception of directors who have served 

less than twenty-four (24) months while completing the term of 

another. A board member is not eligible for re-election until one 

year expires between the ending of one term and the beginning of 

the next. No more than two directors shall be elected from any one 

church, and at least one of these must be from a church-type mission 

sponsored by the church. A nominee must have been active in a 

cooperative Baptist church in Alaska for at least twelve (12) months. 

Employees of the Convention or its agencies are not eligible to 

serve.

SECTION 6.   If a vacancy occurs, the Executive Board may elect 

a qualified person to serve until the next regular Annual Convention, 
such person being recommended by the Committee on Boards. In no 

case may a vacancy continue for longer than six (6) months or until 

the next Annual Convention, whichever occurs first. The Conven-

tion shall at its next regular annual session fill the vacancy for the 
remainder of the term.
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paid upon judgments, counsel fees, and amounts paid in settlement 

(before or after suit is commenced), actually and reasonably incurred 

by such persons in connection with the defense or settlement of any 

claim, action, suit or proceeding in which they, or any of them, are 

made parties, or a party, or which may be asserted against them or 

any of them, by reason of having been directors or officers or a di-
rector or officer of the Corporation; provided, however, that such in-

demnity should not be operative with respect to (a) any matter as to 

which such person shall have been adjudged in such action, suit, or 

proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the perfor-

mance of his duties as such director, officer, or employee, or (b) any 
matter settled or compromised, unless, in the opinion of independent 

counsel selected by or in a manner determined by the directors, there 

is not reasonable ground for such person’s being adjudged liable for 

negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duties as such 

directors or officer.

ARTICLE XIV

AMENDMENT
Amendments may be made in this Constitution by a vote of 

twothirds of the members present when the vote is taken without 

regard to total enrollment at any annual meeting of the Convention, 

provided (1) no amendment may be considered after the second 

session of the Convention, (2) and that the proposed change be 

submitted in writing to the Convention office and the Constitution 
and Bylaws Committee at least ninety (90) days prior to the Annual 

Convention and published in state Baptist paper or mailed to the 

churches thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Convention.
Revised 10-1-2003 Annual Convention

Revised 09-28-2011 Annual Convention

Revised 09-28-2015 Annual Convention

to the Convention or if the Convention is no longer in existence, to 

a charitable, educational, religious, or other similar organization that 

is qualified under Section 501(c)(3), Internal Revenue Code of 1986, 
as amended.

SECTION 11.   The Convention in Annual Session, by a two-thirds 

vote of the messengers present and voting, can create a new agency 

providing a comprehensive plan of development, a set of Articles 

and Bylaws, and an annual budget recommended by the Executive 

Board. These documents shall have been shared with the Convention 

through the state Baptist paper or mailed to the churches at least 

ninety (90) days prior to the Annual Convention.

ARTICLE X

INDEBTEDNESS
All borrowing by this Convention for its own use, or for its 

agencies and institutions, or borrowing by any institution or agency, 

which directly or indirectly obligates this Convention, the payment 

of which would require an extension of time beyond the close of 

the subsequent fiscal year, shall be authorized only on the following 
terms and conditions.

SECTION 1.   The Executive Board shall have authority to borrow 

funds in anticipation of current revenue, provided that any unpaid 

balance of such borrowing at the end of the current fiscal year shall 
be provided in and made a part of the budget for the subsequent 

year.

SECTION 2.   Neither this Convention, nor any institution or 

agency, owned or supported in whole or in part by this Convention, 

shall accept or receive, directly or indirectly, any gift, grant, or aid 

from the federal or state governments or any government agency, 

except for definite services rendered by the agency or institution. 
Such must have the approval of agency’s Board and reported in full 

to the Convention’s Executive Board.

SECTION 3.   No institution or agency of this Convention shall 

encumber its real property or change its status with respect to this 

Convention without authority from this Convention.

SECTION 4.   Institutions and agencies of this Convention shall 

have authority to borrow money in anticipation of current revenue, 

provided that any unpaid balance of such borrowing at the end of 

the current fiscal year shall be provided for in and made a part of the 
budget for the subsequent current year.

SECTION 5.   Any anticipated borrowing of funds in excess of the 

provisions of the above sections must have the specific approval of 
the Convention in session.

ARTICLE XI

FISCAL YEAR
This Convention’s fiscal year shall close on the Friday after the last 

Sunday of the year.

ARTICLE XII

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY
The rules contained in the current edition of Roberts Rules of Or-

der, New Revised (Latest Edition), shall govern the meetings of the 

Convention in all cases in which they are applicable and in which 

they are not inconsistent with the Convention’s Constitution, Bylaws 

or any special rules of order. The President may appoint a parlia-

mentarian who shall serve at the pleasure of the President.

ARTICLE XIII

INDEMNIFICATION
The Convention, and its respective agencies for their work, shall 

indemnify any director or officer or former director or officer of 
the Corporation, and their respective heirs, administrators, succes-

sors, and assigns, against any and all expenses, including amounts 
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SECTION 2.  This Convention shall never attempt to exercise 

authority over any cooperating church but shall always cheerfully 

recognize and uphold the church’s autonomy under Christ.

SECTION 3.  The Convention shall receive assets for the approved 

work of the Convention and its agencies, and shall dispense these 

funds according to the expressed will and direction of the Conven-

tion.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS
SECTION 1.  The officers of this Convention shall be President, 

First Vice President, Second Vice President and Recording Secre-

tary who shall be elected at each annual meeting by the duly elected 

messengers present and voting, and who shall hold their offices until 
their successors are elected and installed. The office of treasurer 
shall be filled by the Executive Director of the Alaska Baptist Con-

vention who is elected for an indefinite term by the Alaska Baptist 
Convention. The Convention may establish other offices through 
its Constitution and Bylaws as it deems necessary and helpful to its 

work.

SECTION 2.  If the President, for any reason, cannot complete the 

term for which elected, then the First Vice President shall imme-

diately become President and shall serve for the remainder of the 

term. If the First Vice President is unable to serve, the Second Vice 

President shall fill the office.
SECTION 3.  The employees or immediate family of an employee 

(spouse, child, or sibling) of the Convention or its Agencies shall not 

be eligible for election to the offices of President, First Vice Presi-
dent, Second Vice President or Recording Secretary.

ARTICLE IX

DISSOLUTION
Upon dissolution of Alaska Baptist Convention, Inc., the Executive 

Board [serving at the time] shall, after paying or making provision 

for the payment of all the liabilities of the Corporation, dispose of all 

the assets of the Corporation exclusively for the purposes of the Cor-

poration in such a manner, or to such organization or organizations 

organized and operated exclusively for religious purposes as shall be 

at the time qualify as an exempt organization or organizations under 

section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the cor-

responding provision of any future Internal Revenue Code), as the 

Executive Board shall determine. Any such assets not so disposed 

of shall be dispersed by the Superior Court of the Borough in which 

the principal office of the Corporation is then located, exclusively 
for such purposes or to such organization(s), as said Court shall 

determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such 

purposes.

ARTICLE X

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE
The address of the initial registered and principal office of the 

Alaska Baptist Convention, Inc. in Alaska is 1750 O’Malley Road, 

Anchorage, Alaska 99507. All mail should be sent to 1750 O’Malley 

Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507.

ARTICLE XI

BOARDS, COMMITTEES,
AND MEMBERS OF COMMITTEES

SECTION 1.  Directors of the Boards and members of committees 

shall be elected by the Convention, and the plan of organization 

shall be established in the Constitution and Bylaws of the Conven-

tion.

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF THE

ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME
The name of this non-profit Corporation shall be the Alaska Bap-

tist Convention, Inc. The address is 1750 O’Malley Road, Anchor-

age, Alaska 99507.

ARTICLE II

DURATION
The period of duration is perpetual.

ARTICLE III

NON-PROFIT CORPORATION
The Corporation is a non-profit Corporation organized under the 

Alaska Non-Profit Corporation Act and shall have all the powers, 
duties, authorizations and responsibilities as provided therein. The 

corporation shall neither have nor exercise any power, nor engage 

directly or indirectly in any activity that would invalidate its status 

as an organization exempt from federal income tax and described in 

Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amend-

ed, or the corresponding provision or provisions of any subsequent 

the United States Internal Revenue law or laws (the “Internal Reve-

nue Code of 1986”), or that would invalidate its status as a non-prof-

it Corporation under the Alaska Non-Profit Corporation Act.

ARTICLE IV

PURPOSE
The purpose of this non-profit Corporation, hereafter known as the 

Convention, shall be to furnish a medium of cooperation for the co-

operating Baptist churches of Alaska in their divinely commissioned 

work of missions, education, and benevolence.

ARTICLE V

MEMBERSHIP
SECTION 1.  The members of this Convention shall consist of 

messengers to the Convention in session, elected by the Baptist 

churches in Alaska, cooperating with and contributing to the Con-

vention through the Cooperative Program, and sympathetic with 

its purposes and work and in harmony with the general doctrinal 

reflections of the Baptist Faith and Message.
SECTION 2.  Each church shall be entitled to messengers to the 

Convention, the number, criteria, rights, and responsibilities of 

messengers to be established in the Convention’s Constitution and 

Bylaws.

ARTICLE VI

MEETINGS
SECTION 1.  The Convention shall meet annually; the dates and 

places of the annual sessions are to be approved by the Convention.

SECTION 2.  Special meetings of the Convention shall be called 

by the Convention in session or the Executive Board according to 

the Constitution and Bylaws of the Convention.

ARTICLE VII

GOVERNANCE
SECTION 1.  This Convention is an autonomous body made up of 

messengers in session from cooperating Baptist churches in Alaska 

to fulfill the purpose for which the Convention was organized by the 
churches.
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SECTION 2.  The Executive Board shall serve as the Convention 

ad interim and as the Convention’s principal advisory committee on 

its total program.

SECTION 3.  The Executive Board shall serve as the Convention’s 

operating board for all programs not specifically assigned elsewhere.

ARTICLE XII

CONSTITUTION AND BYLAWS
The Convention shall establish a Constitution and Bylaws consis-

tent with these articles.

ARTICLE XIII

INDEBTEDNESS
The highest amount of indebtedness or liability to which the Con-

vention may be subject shall be defined in the Convention’s Consti-
tution and Bylaws.

ARTICLE XIV

AMENDMENT
Alterations may be made in these Articles by a vote of two-thirds 

of the members present when the vote is taken, without regard to 

total enrollment, at an annual meeting of the Convention, provided 

(1) no amendment may be consi dered after the second session of 

the Convention and (2) that an amendment shall be so approved by 

two successive annual Conventions and (3) that the proposed change 

be submitted in writing to the President of the Executive Board of 

the Convention at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 

annual session and submitted by the Executive Board to the Con-

vention office sixty (60) days prior to the annual session then and 
published in the state Baptist paper or mailed to the churches thirty 

(30) days prior to the annual session.

ARTICLE XV

AUTHORITY-SUPERSEDE
These Articles of Incorporation correctly set forth the provisions of 

the Articles of Incorporation of the ALASKA BAPTIST CONVEN-

TION as amended. They have been adopted as required by law and 

they supersede the original Articles of Incorporation and all amend-

ments.

ARTICLE XVI

ADOPTION
Following notice as provided by law and the Bylaws of the Cor-

poration, and at meetings on the 9th day of August 2000 and the 8th 

day of August 2001, at which there was a quorum of members pres-

ent, the foregoing Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation 

were adopted by a two-thirds majority of members entitled to vote.

ARTICLE XVII

SUPERSEDURE
Except for the designated amendments, these Restated Articles 

of Incorporation correctly set out without changing the provisions 

of the articles being amended, and the Restated Articles together 

with the designated amendments supersede the original Articles of 

Incorporation.
Amended and restated in its entirety on the above-noted dates.
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eligible to serve as elected officers of the Convention, with the ex-

ception of the Executive Director-Treasurer, who serves an indefinite 
term.

SECTION 4.  Officers shall serve for one (1) year and hold office 
until their successors are elected and qualified; however, no officer 
may serve more than two (2) complete successive terms in the same 

office. Terms of office shall commence at final adjournment of the 
Convention in session at the time of their election and terminate at 

final adjournment of the succeeding regular session of the Conven-

tion. In case of death, disability of, or other cause making necessary 

the retirement of the President, the Vice Presidents shall succeed in 

order. The Executive Board shall determine when an office is vacant 
due to the disability of an incumbent.

SECTION 5.  The President shall preside over the deliberations 

of the Convention and shall perform such duties as may be custom-

ary to the position or as determined in the Constitution and Bylaws 

of the Convention and shall, by his election, become an ex officio 
member, with vote, of all Convention agencies, committees and 

boards.  He shall serve as an advisor to the Executive Board for one 

full year immediately following tenure as President of the Conven-

tion. The President is empowered to appoint the First or Second Vice 

Presidents to serve as ex officio member, with a vote, of any agency, 
committee or board in his/her place.

SECTION 6.  The Vice Presidents may, in the absence of the Pres-

ident or when requested by the President, preside over the Conven-

tion and shall perform such other duties as may be provided in the 

Constitution and Bylaws of the Convention or as requested by the 

President.

SECTION 7.  The Recording Secretary shall certify and produce 

the official minutes of all sessions of the Convention and Executive 
Board minutes.

ARTICLE IV

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
SECTION 1.  The Convention shall employ an Executive Director 

as its chief executive officer and treasurer. He shall provide spiritual 
leadership for the total program of the Convention.

When a vacancy of the Executive Director position occurs, the 

SECTION 2.  Executive Board of the Convention shall recommend 

a candidate for the position of Executive Director to the Conven-

tion. The Executive Committee of the Board plus three members 

of the Executive Board elected at large by the Executive Board in 

executive session will serve as the Search Committee. The Search 

Committee will bring a recommendation to the Executive Board. A 

two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Executive Board is necessary to nom-

inate a candidate to the Convention in session. With permission of 

the candidate, the Executive Board shall release biographical data to 

the churches of the Convention. When a vacancy occurs, the Exec-

utive Board may select an interim Executive Director to serve until 

the Convention acts to elect a successor.

SECTION 3.  The Convention in session, either in an Annual Con-

vention or in a special session called for such purpose, shall elect an 

Executive Director for an indefinite term upon the recommendation 
of the Executive Board.

SECTION 4.  The Policies Manual shall describe the tasks and 

responsibilities of the Executive Director.

SECTION 5.  The Convention in session may terminate the 

Executive Director by majority vote. Or the Executive Board may 

terminate the Executive Director by a two-thirds vote of the elected 

Directors.

BYLAWS

ALASKA BAPTIST CONVENTION, INC.

ARTICLE I

MESSENGERS
SECTION 1.  Each qualifying church, as stated in Article III of 

the Constitution, shall present to the Credentials Committee of the 

Convention a list of its elected messengers, according to the Consti-

tution, Article III, received or post-marked no less than thirty (30) 

days prior to the annual meeting if possible. If for some reason the 

church cannot comply with this request, messengers will be permit-

ted to register the day of the meeting, provided they have written 

authority by the church’s pastor or clerk to act as “messenger” on 

behalf of the church. Special sessions may be convened in accor-

dance with Article II, Section 4.

SECTION 2.  Each messenger shall register with the Credentials 

Committee prior to being seated as a messenger to the Convention.

SECTION 3.  The Credentials Committee shall review the creden-

tials of the registered messengers and make its report to the Conven-

tion as the first item of business in the first meeting of the Annual 
Convention.

ARTICLE II

MEETINGS
SECTION 1.  The regular meetings of the Convention shall be 

known as the Annual Convention, and shall be for the purpose of 

electing officers, receiving reports of officers, committees, and 
boards, and for any other business that may arise.

SECTION 2.  Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised (Latest 

Edition) shall be recognized as the standard authority to guide the 

Convention on questions of parliamentary law and custom.

SECTION 3.  The Convention shall determine its order of business 

at the first meeting of the Annual Convention.
SECTION 4.  Special sessions of the Convention may be sched-

uled. The Executive Board may call the Convention into special 

session if it deems it necessary; a two-thirds vote is necessary to do 

so. The Convention in session can call for a special session by a ma-

jority vote. A thirty (30) day notice must be given in writing to each 

church and must state the purpose of the special session. Names of 

messengers must be provided to the convention office no less than 
five days prior to the special session

SECTION 5.  The minutes of the Annual Convention shall be 

approved by the Executive Board in its organizational meeting fol-

lowing the Annual Convention. The minutes of the business sessions 

shall be reported by the Recording Secretary in the state Baptist 

paper in the month following the Annual Convention.

ARTICLE III

OFFICERS
SECTION 1.  The officers of the Convention shall be President, 

First Vice President, Second Vice President, and Recording Secre-

tary. The office of Treasurer shall be filled by the Executive Director 
of the Convention for an indefinite term.

SECTION 2.  Officers shall be chosen annually from messen-

gers in attendance at the Convention. Officers shall be members of 
cooperating Alaska Baptist Convention churches. Nominations shall 

be from the floor, and election shall be in a following session. The 
election shall be by ballot except when there is a single nominee for 

an office. In the latter case, the President shall instruct the secretary 
to cast a unanimous ballot for the nominee.

SECTION 3.  Employees or immediate family of an employee 

(spouse, child, or sibling) of the Convention or its agencies, are not 
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members for the Board of Directors of the agencies of the 

Convention according to the Constitution and Bylaws of 

the Convention. Nominees are to be chosen at large keep-

ing a balance such as male/female, race, clergy/laity and 

area of residence in the state. At least one person whose 

church is in the geographical area of each association shall 

be included. The committee should present a progress re-

port to the Executive Board at its spring meeting and a full 

report is to be sent to the Executive Director for the Book 

of Reports for the Convention by sixty (60) days prior to 

the annual session.

ARTICLE VI

EXECUTIVE BOARD
SECTION 1.  The Executive Board shall organize itself at the first 

Board meeting following the Annual Baptist Convention’s Annual 

Session. The organization shall include an Executive Committee, 

an Administration and Personnel Committee, Budget and Finance 

Committee, and Missions and Church Development Committee. The 

Board may establish other committees as needed. With the exception 

of the Executive Committee, each committee will have at least six 

members. In consultation with the Executive Director, First and Sec-

ond Vice Presidents, and the Recording Secretary, the President shall 

complete said organizational recommendations within thirty (30) 

days following the Alaska Baptist Convention’s Annual Session. 

In the event of an emergency requiring Board action between the 

Annual Session and first scheduled Executive Board Meeting, the 
President, in consultation with the other officers, shall create a tem-

porary Executive Committee for the purpose of dealing with matters 

requiring emergency action. This said committee to be recommend-

ed to the Executive Board for approval at its first meeting.
SECTION 2.  Executive Committee. The Executive Board shall 

establish an Executive Committee which shall meet as necessary 

between sessions of the Executive Board. The Executive Committee 

shall perform the duties assigned to it by the Executive Board. The 

Executive Committee is made up of the four elected ABC officers, 
the three Executive Board Committee Chairs, and the Executive 

Director. The specific duties of the committee are to perform duties 
between sessions of the Executive Board as assigned, help prepare 

Board agenda, recommend the Executive Board organization and 

temporary work groups, supervise the Executive Director on behalf 

of the Board, serve as the search committee for an Executive Di-

rector (along with three Executive Board members elected at large) 

when vacancy occurs, and work with the Executive Director in the 

recommendation of prospective elected staff personnel. Any deci-

sions approved by the Executive Committee would need a majority 

vote. In the case of a tie vote, the action would be referred to the 

appropriate Executive Board Committee for discussion and brought 

before the Board at the next Board meeting for vote. Five members 

of the Executive Committee must vote in the affirmative to pass any 
measure regardless of how many committee members are present at 

the meeting.

SECTION 3.  Administration and Personnel Committee. The 

committee will recommend staff organization and personnel policies 

to the Executive Board, oversee the state Baptist paper, and review 

with the Executive Director the support staff employment policies 

and procedures. 

SECTION 4.  Missions and Church Development Committee. The 

committee is to oversee functions and programs of Church Planting 

and Ministry Evangelism. The committee will work with staff in 

long-range planning, proposing program objectives and priorities 

to the Board and in the evaluation of program accomplishments. It 

ARTICLE V

CONVENTION COMMITTEES
SECTION 1.  STANDING COMMITTEES

The Committee on Committees shall nominate the Constitution 

and Bylaws Committee, including its chairperson, for election by the 

Convention in session. The committees will elect their own secre-

tary. The committees will schedule its meetings as needed but should 

utilize the times around activities of the Convention, such as the 

Evangelism Conference. The committee should review its work and 

consult with the Convention President and Executive Director. The 

Resolutions Committee shall be composed of the ABC officers and 
the Executive Director.

a. Constitution and Bylaws Committee. The principal duty 

of the committee is to review the Constitution and Bylaws 

of the Alaska Baptist Convention and the Bylaws of its 

agencies and to recommend changes it deems necessary. 

The committee should present its recommendations to the 

Executive Director, and the Executive Board, ninety (90) 

days prior to the annual session, and publish the recom-

mendations in the state Baptist paper or mail to the church-

es thirty (30) days prior to the annual session.

b. Resolutions Committee. The committee shall review all 

properly submitted resolutions and shall present resolutions 

to the Convention for its consideration. All proposed reso-

lutions to the Convention are to be submitted in writing to 

the Convention Office 45 days prior to the annual meeting.
SECTION 2.  ANNUAL COMMITTEES

Annual Committees and their chairperson are appointed by the 

President of the Convention, in consultation with the other officers, 
within forty-five (45) days following the Annual Convention.
a. Order of Business Committee. The committee is to plan the pro-

gram for the Annual Convention. They will also assist the Presi-

dent and the Executive Director in enlisting program personnel; 

assist the President in amending the order of business during the 

convention, and assist with other related matters as requested.

a. Credentials Committee. The committee is to certify mes-

sengers from churches of the Alaska Baptist Convention. 

They will present messengers with badges, ballots, and ma-

terials for the execution of their duties. The committee will 

also assist the President in all balloting, certifying votes, 

and elections, and assist in related matters as requested.

b. Committee on Committees. The committee is to recom-

mend committee members according to the requirements 

of the Constitution and Bylaws. They are to gather sugges-

tions from the churches, including biographical data, and 

if possible, schedule an interview by one of the members 

with the candidate. The committee should present a prog-

ress report to the Executive Board at its spring meeting 

and a full report is to be sent to the Executive Director for 

the Book of Reports for the Convention by sixty (60) days 

prior to the annual session.

c. Time, Place, and Preacher Committee. The committee is to 

select an adequate site for the annual meeting of the Con-

vention, considering the rotation of cities for the Conven-

tion, availability of local Baptist families to host messen-

gers, adequate meeting space, and adequate hotel/motel 

rooms. The committee will name the convention preacher 

and the alternate for the next annual meeting. The Execu-

tive Board will recommend to the committee the times and 

dates of the annual meeting two to five years in advance.
d. Committee on Boards. The committee is to recommend 

members for the Executive Board of the Convention and 
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program.

SECTION 17.  To assist the Budget and Finance Committee in 

the fulfillment of their duties in the assessment of the Convention’s 
financial records, to receive and publish their reports in the Book 
of Reports, and to act upon their recommendations concerning the 

management of the accounts.

SECTION 18.  To approve staff organization and to employ elect-

ed staff personnel upon recommendation of the Executive Director. 

The Executive Board shall approve personnel policies.

SECTION 19.  Directors are expected to attend all Executive 

Board committee meetings and plenary sessions. Failure to do so 

may result in their removal by the Executive Board or the Conven-

tion in session. The Director is responsible for notifying the Presi-

dent or the Convention office in case of an emergency necessitating 
an absence.

SECTION 20.  The Executive Board shall meet at least two (2) 

times a year and additional times as determined by the Board. The 

organizational meeting of the Executive Board shall be held follow-

ing the Annual Convention.

SECTION 21.  The Executive Board may be called into special 

session by the Executive Committee.

SECTION 22.  A majority of the Executive Board shall be consid-

ered a quorum.

SECTION 23.  To prepare and publish a comprehensive report of 

the affairs of the Convention and a summary of the actions taken by 

the Executive Board in an Annual Book of Reports.

SECTION 24.  To publish a summary of the Executive Board 

actions in the state Baptist paper after each session.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDMENTS
Amendments may be made in these Bylaws by a vote of twothirds 

of the members present when the vote is taken without regard to 

total enrollment at any annual meeting of the Convention, provided 

(1) no amendment may be considered after the second session of the 

Convention, (2) and that the proposed change be submitted in writ-

ing to the Convention office and to the Constitution Bylaws Com-

mittee at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the Annual 

Convention and published in state Baptist paper or mailed to the 

churches thirty (30) days prior to the annual Convention.
Restated in its entirety January 22, 2001

Revised August 7, 2002

Revised September 28, 2011, Annual Convention

Revised September 28, 2015, Annual Convention

will also make requests for calendar dates, allocation of budget and 

capital needs, and will recommend the assignment and support of 

missionary personnel. The committee is to recommend the annual 

goal and expenditures of the Valeria Sherard State Mission Offering, 

Annie Armstrong North American Mission Offering, Lottie Moon 

International Mission Offering, and will oversee the 2000 Club pro-

gram. The state Director of Missions and the Directors of Missions 

for the Associations shall be ex officio members, without a vote, of 
the committee. 

SECTION 5.  Budget and Finance Committee. The committee is 

to serve as the budget committee of the Board, review, evaluate and 

recommend financial policies of the Convention to the Executive 
Board, arrange for and review the annual assessment and report 

assessment to the Executive Board, study giving trends, review 

periodic financial statements, and approve line item changes within 
the budget as permitted by the Convention policies.

SECTION 6.  The Executive Board is to serve as the Convention 

ad interim and as the Convention’s principal advisory on its total 

program. The Executive Board shall not contravene the actions or 

policies of the Convention.

SECTION 7.  To serve as the Convention’s operating board for all 

programs not assigned to other boards.

SECTION 8.  To evaluate the performance of the Executive Di-

rector-Treasurer of the Convention, and to assist him in the exercise 

of his duties as the chief executive officer and spiritual leader in 
carrying out the programs of the Convention.

SECTION 9.  To act as fiduciary, fiscal representative and agent 
of the Convention in all matters not assigned to agencies’ boards, to 

execute any and all deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, assignments, or 

other conveyance that the Executive Board may deem in its official 
capacity.

SECTION 10.  The Convention herewith empowers and directs 

the President of the Convention or the Executive Director of the 

Convention, to sign in an official capacity for the Convention all 
such aforementioned deeds, mortgages, deeds of trust, assignments, 

or other conveyances.

SECTION 11.  All gifts of money other than the general budget 

of the Alaska Baptist Convention or other property made to the 

corporation shall be disbursed according to the donor’s designation. 

The corporation shall have the power at all times to accept or reject 

designated gifts. Undesignated gifts shall be distributed in accor-

dance with the Corporation’s budget.

SECTION 12.  To act upon the recommendations of the Commit-

tee on Committees and Committee on Boards to fill any vacancies 
occurring between Annual Conventions.

SECTION 13.  To have oversight of the arrangements of the Con-

vention sessions.

SECTION 14.  To present to the Convention a proposed budget 

for the forthcoming year. The Budget and Finance Committee of 

the Board shall serve as the budget committee for the Convention. 

The Executive Board shall publish and distribute to all the churches 

of the Convention copies of the proposed budget at least thirty (30) 

days before submitting it to the Convention for final approval.
SECTION 15.  To establish and revise policies relating to the 

duties assigned to the Executive Board by the Convention and to 

maintain a Policies Manual. The Executive Board shall work closely 

with the Executive Director to ensure an organization that is both 

functional and accountable. The Policies Manual is subject to the 

review and amendment of a simple majority of the Executive Board

SECTION 16.  To be responsible for long-range planning of the 

Convention and its programs and to coordinate the long-range plan-

ning of an agency’s board with the total Alaska Baptist Convention 
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MEETINGS
The Board of Directors shall have at least two meetings each year 

as determined by the Board. The first meeting shall be within sixty 
(60) days of the election of new directors by the Alaska Baptist 

Convention in session.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
The Board shall elect a President, First Vice President, Second 

Vice President, and Secretary. The officers shall be elected at the 
first meeting following the Annual Convention of the Alaska Baptist 
Convention. The Executive Director shall also serve as Treasurer. 

The officers shall constitute an Executive Committee, which shall 
have authority to conduct business between meetings of the Board. 

The duties of the Executive Committee shall be described in the 

Bylaws of the Board. 

ARTICLE IX

BYLAWS
The Board shall develop Bylaws to orderly conduct its assigned 

purposes. These Bylaws must be consistent with the Corporation’s 

Articles of Incorporation.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENTS
Alterations may be made in these Articles by a vote of two-thirds 

of the members present when the vote is taken, without regard to 

total enrollment, at any annual meeting of the Convention, provided 

(1) no amendment may be consi dered after the second session of 

the Convention and (2) that an amendment shall be so approved by 

two successive annual Conventions and (3) that the proposed change 

be submitted in writing to the President of the Executive Board of 

the Convention at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 

annual session and submitted by the Executive Board to the Con-

vention office sixty (60) days prior to the annual session then and 
published in the state Baptist paper or mailed to the churches thirty 

(30) days prior to the annual session.

ARTICLE XI

AUTHORITY-SUPERSEDE
These Articles of Incorporation correctly set forth the provisions 

of the Articles of Incorporation of the ALASKA BAPTIST FAMILY 

SERVICES as amended. They have been adopted as required by law 

and they supersede the original Articles of Incorporation. 

ARTICLE XII

ADOPTION
Following notice as provided by law and the Bylaws of the Corpo-

ration, and at a meeting on the 9th day of August,  2000, and the 8th 

day of August, 2001, at which there was a quorum of members pres-

ent, the foregoing Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation 

were adopted by a two-thirds majority of members entitled to vote.

ARTICLE XIII

SUPERSEDURE
Except for the designated amendments, these Restated Articles of 

Incorporation correctly set out without change the provisions of the 

articles being amended, and the Restated Articles together with the 

designated amendments supersede the original Articles of Incorpo-

ration.
Amended and restated in its entirety on the above noted dates.

Article I corrected to meet State Statues by the Executive Board 

11/06/01.

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF THE

ALASKA BAPTIST FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME
The name of this Corporation is Alaska Baptist Family Services, 

Inc., and the period of duration is perpetual. The address is 1600 

O’Malley Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507

ARTICLE II

PURPOSE
The purpose of this corporation is to conduct the programs of 

childcare and Christian counseling, which has been assigned to the 

corporation by the Alaska Baptist Convention. The Corporation shall 

conduct these programs on behalf of the Alaska Baptist Convention 

and its churches.

ARTICLE III

NON-PROFIT
SECTION 1.  The Corporation is a non-profit Corporation and 

shall have a perpetual existence. No part of the net earnings of the 

Corporation shall inure to the benefit of any member, trustee, officer 
of the corporation, or any private individual except that reason-

able compensation may be paid for services rendered to or for the 

corporation. No member, director, officer of the Corporation, or any 
private individual shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any 

of the corporate assets.

SECTION 2.  In case of dissolution, all properties and assets shall 

be returned to the Alaska Baptist Convention after all liabilities have 

been paid and discharged.

SECTION 3.  No part of the activities of the Corporation shall be 

carrying on propaganda, or otherwise attempting, to influence leg-

islation, or participating in, or intervening in any political campaign 

on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE IV

MEMBERSHIP
The member of this Corporation is the Alaska Baptist Convention 

in session, which shall consist of messengers elected by Baptist 

churches in Alaska contributing to the Convention through the Co-

operative Program, cooperating with and sympathetic with its pur-

pose and work and in harmony with the general doctrinal reflections 
of the Baptist Faith and Message. The meetings of the member shall 

be as provided in the Constitution and By-laws of the Alaska Baptist 

Convention. 

ARTICLE V

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors shall consist of nine (9) persons who shall 

be elected by the Alaska Baptist Convention in annual session upon 

recommendation by its Committee on Boards. In addition, the Pres-

ident of the Alaska Baptist Convention, the Executive Director of 

the Alaska Baptist Convention, and the Executive Director of Alaska 

Baptist Family Services shall be ex officio members, with vote, of 
the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

AUTHORITY OF BOARD
The affairs of this Corporation shall be managed by the Board of 

Directors who shall have authority as defined in the Bylaws of the 
corporation.

ARTICLE VII
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c.  employ personnel in behalf of the Corporation,

d.  contract through its staff in behalf of the Corporation,

e.  develop and conduct a long-range plan for the develop-

ment of the Corporation in  fulfilling its purpose,
f. approve capital improvement and expansion projects in 

behalf of the Corporation up to $500,000,

g. make a comprehensive report to the Alaska Baptist Con-

vention Annual Session concerning the conduct of the 

assigned programs; this report to include a finance and 
audit report, projected budget, program objectives, and 

long range goals,

h.  develop and approve policies to guide the staff and work 

of the Corporation,

i.  and other duties as may be necessary, which are not other-

wise prohibited by the  Alaska Baptist Convention and fed-

eral and state law, to carry out the Corporation’s purpose.

SECTION 4.  Standing Committees.  The Board of Directors may 

establish one or more standing committees as needed and their orga-

nization and responsibilities shall be defined in the Policies Manual.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS AND EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
SECTION 1.  Elections.  The Directors will elect the officers of the 

Alaska Baptist Family Services.  Such election will regularly take 

place at the organization meeting of the Directors.  A person elected 

to any office will continue to hold that office for one year or until the 
election of his successor.

SECTION 2.  Officers
a. President.  The President will preside at all meetings of the Di-

rectors.  He shall perform such other duties as normally pertain 

to the office of President.
a. Vice Presidents.  A First and Second Vice President may 

be elected by the Directors, who will be vested with all 

the powers and charged with all of the duties (including 

those herein specifically set forth) of the chairperson in 
the event of his absence or disability.  The Vice Presidents 

will perform such other duties as may from time to time 

be delegated or assigned to them by the President or the 

Directors.

b. The Secretary.  The secretary will keep the minutes of 

meetings of the Directors, see that all notices are duly giv-

en in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws, or as 

required by law, be custodian of the records of the Corpo-

ration, perform all duties incident to the office.
c. The Treasurer.  The responsibilities of Treasurer are given 

to the Executive Director of Alaska Baptist Family Ser-

vices for an indefinite term.
SECTION 3.  The Executive Committee.  The Executive Commit-

tee shall consist of officers of the Board of Directors, President, First 
Vice President, Second Vice President, and Secretary. The President 

and the Executive Director of the Alaska Baptist Convention shall be 

ex-officio members, with vote, of the Board and the Executive Com-

mittee. The Executive Committee shall act as a body in all matters 

committed to it by the Board of Directors, including emergency mat-

ters, which may arise between meetings of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

LIMITATION OF POWERS
SECTION 1.  The Alaska Baptist Convention prohibits the Board 

to conduct fundraising without approval of the Alaska Baptist Con-

vention.

SECTION 2.  The Board cannot take any action which is contrary 

BYLAWS

OF

ALASKA BAPTIST FAMILY SERVICES, INC.

ARTICLE I

PURPOSE AND MEMBERSHIP
The purpose and membership of the Corporation are set forth in 

the Articles of Incorporation of  Alaska Baptist Family Services.

ARTICLE II

AUTHORITY
The Board of Directors are elected by the Alaska Baptist Conven-

tion to manage the corporation and to fulfill an assigned purpose 
in keeping with the goals and spiritual commitments of the Alaska 

Baptist Convention.  The directors and the board shall not act con-

trary to these goals and commitments.

ARTICLE III

PROGRAMS
SECTION 1.  PROGRAM OF CHILDCARE: The Corporation 

shall conduct and manage a childcare program on behalf of the 

Alaska Baptist Convention and its churches.  The program may in-

clude residential care, adoptive services, foster home care, and other 

services to children as deemed appropriate by the directors of the 

Corporation. The Corporation shall not discriminate against children 

because of race, religion, or residency within the State of Alaska.

SECTION 2.  PROGRAM OF CHRISTIAN COUNSELING: 

The Corporation shall conduct and manage a program of Christian 

counseling in Alaska on behalf of the Alaska Baptist Convention and 

its member churches.  The services may include counseling to the 

staff, children, and families of the Corporation’s child-care program, 

the members of the churches of the Alaska Baptist Convention, 

and the general public, as resources permit.  The program also may 

include a Corporation directed program of training and supervising 

of Christian counselors, giving priority to the staff and members of 

the churches of the Alaska Baptist Convention.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SECTION 1. The Board of Directors shall consist of nine (9) per-

sons who are elected by the Alaska Baptist Convention in session. 

The nominated directors shall have been an active member of a Bap-

tist church cooperating with the Alaska Baptist Convention for at 

least one year and as further defined in Article V Section 2 (e) of the 
Bylaws of the Alaska Baptist Convention.  In addition, the President 

of the Convention, the Executive Director of the Convention, and 

the Executive Director of the Alaska Baptist Family Services shall 

be ex officio members, with vote, of the Board of Directors.
SECTION 2.  A term of service is three (3) years.  The expiration 

of terms should be planned so that one-third of the Directors will 

rotate off the Board each year.  Directors having served two con-

secutive terms of three (3) years shall be eligible for reelection only 

after as much as one year has elapsed.  Vacancies may be filled by 
the Executive Board of the Alaska Baptist Convention upon the 

recommendation of the Committee on Boards. The elected Directors 

shall take office after the close of the Alaska Baptist Convention, or 
immediately, if elected by the Executive Board to fill a vacancy.

 SECTION 3.  The duties of the Board of Directors are to:

a.  act as fiduciary, fiscal representative, and agent of the 
Corporation,

b.  take, hold, or transfer title to properties, both real and 

personal, in behalf of the Corporation,
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an annual certified audit of the Alaska Baptist Family Services by 
a certified public accountant. The audit report shall be included as 
information in the corporation’s report to the Annual Convention of 

the Alaska Baptist Convention.

SECTION 3.  The Board of Directors shall develop and approve 

an annual budget, following guidelines as outlined in the Policies 

Manual.

ARTICLE XI

STAFF PERSONNEL
SECTION 1.  The Executive Director of the Alaska Baptist Family 

Services shall be elected by the Board of Directors subject to the 

Policies Manual of the Alaska Baptist Family Services.

SECTION 2. The Board of Directors shall approve the staff 

organization and shall employ personnel according to the Policies 

Manual. No member of the immediate family can be employed as 

staff or support staff of Alaska Baptist Family Services.

ARTICLE XII

OPERATING ORGANIZATION

The operating organization of the Alaska Baptist Family Services 

shall be governed by the policy set forth in the Policy Document of 

this agency.

ARTICLE XIII

AMENDMENTS
Amendments  may be made in these Bylaws by a vote of 

two-thirds of the members present when the vote is taken without 

regard to total enrollment at any annual meeting of the Convention, 

provided (1) no amendment may be consi dered after the second 

session of the Convention, (2) and that the proposed change be 

submitted in writing to the Convention office and the Constitution 
and Bylaws Committee at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior 

to the Annual Convention and published in the state Baptist paper or 

mailed to the churches thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Conven-

tion.
Restated in its entirety August 8, 2001

to the laws of Alaska and the Articles of Incorporation of the Corpo-

ration, its Bylaws and policies.

SECTION 3.  The Corporation cannot transfer title of the Corpora-

tion’s real estate or mortgage or pledge the assets of the Corporation 

without the approval of the Alaska Baptist Convention.

SECTION 4.  The entire Board of Directors may be replaced by 

the Alaska Baptist Convention, upon recommendation of the Execu-

tive Board thereof, if the Board of Trustees shall permit the corpo-

ration to incur operating expenses in excess of income available for 

operations.  

SECTION 5.  Individual members of the Board may be replaced 

by the Alaska Baptist Convention or the Executive Board of the 

Alaska Baptist Convention thereof, for misfeasance, malfeasance, 

incapacity, failure to perform their proper duties, or conduct which 

would bring discredit upon the corporation.

ARTICLE VII

INDEMNIFICATON
The Corporation shall indemnify any trustee or officer or former 

director or officer of the Corporation, and their respective heirs, 
administrators, successors, and assigns, against any and all expenses, 

including amounts paid upon judgments, counsel fees, and amounts 

paid in settlement (before or after suit is commenced), actually and 

reasonably incurred by such persons in connection with the defense 

or settlement of any claim, action, suit or proceeding in which they, 

or any of them, are made parties, or a party, or which may be assert-

ed against them or any of them, by reason of having been trustees or 

officers or a trustee or officer of the Corporation; provided, however, 
that such indemnity should not be operative with respect to (a) any 

matter as to which such person shall 

have been adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable 

for negligence or misconduct in the performance of his duties as 

such trustee, officer, or employee, or (b) any matter settled or com-

promised, unless, in the opinion of independent counsel selected by 

or in a manner determined by the trustees, there is not reasonable 

ground for such person’s being adjudged liable for negligence or 

misconduct in the performance of his duties as such trustees or 

officer.

ARTICLE VIII

PARLIAMENTARY AUTHORITY
Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised (latest edition), shall be 

the parliamentary guide in all matters pertaining to the conduct of 

business by the Board of Directors and its Executive Committee.

ARTICLE IX

MEETINGS
SECTION 1.The Board of Directors will meet a minimum of two 

(2) times a year.  The dates will be set by the Board of Directors.  

Special meetings may be called by the Executive Committee and 

sufficient notice shall be given to allow the Directors to attend.
SECTION 2.  A quorum shall consist of the majority of the Board 

of Directors.

ARTICLE X

FINANCES
SECTION 1.  The fiscal year shall be from July 1 through June 

30.  After the Executive Board of the Alaska Baptist Convention 

has approved the budget for Alaska Baptist Family Services for 

recommendation to the Convention, Alaska Baptist Family Services 

is authorized to use such budget for the beginning of its fiscal year 
until the Convention meets to approve the budget and shall use the 

budget thereafter as adopted by the Convention.

SECTION 2.  The Board of Directors shall authorize and require 

bylaWs of The alaska bapTisT faMily serviCes, inC.



Articles of
Incorporation

and
Bylaws

of the
Alaska Baptist 

Foundation



82 AlAskA BAptist Convention 74th AnnuAl Meeting Book of RepoRts

Convention.  The President of the Alaska Baptist Convention, the 

Executive Director of the Alaska Baptist Convention, and the Execu-

tive Director-Treasurer of the Alaska Baptist Foundation shall be ex 

officio members, with vote, of the Board of Directors. The number, 
criteria, term of service, and organization shall be defined in the 
Bylaws of the corporation.

SECTION 2.  The Board of Directors shall meet at least two (2) 

times a year and at other times as determined by the Board.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS
Officers shall be President, Vice President, Secretary, and such 

other officers as required.  The Executive Director shall serve as 
Treasurer. Their duties are defined in the Bylaws of the Foundation.

ARTICLE IX

TERRITORY
The territory in which the operations of the Corporation are 

principally to be conducted is the United States of America, and 

its possessions, but the operations of the Corporations shall not be 

limited to such territory, however, the chief business shall be in the 

state of Alaska.

ARTICLE X

AMENDMENT
Alterations may be made in these Articles by a vote of twothirds 

of the members present when the vote is taken, without regard to 

total enrollment, at any annual meeting of the Convention, provided 

(1) no amendment may be considered after the second session of 

the Convention and (2) that an amendment shall be so approved by 

two successive annual Conventions and (3) that the proposed change 

be submitted in writing to the President of the Executive Board of 

the Convention at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 

annual session and submitted by the Executive Board to the Con-

vention office sixty (60) days prior to the annual session then and 
published in the state Baptist paper or mailed to the churches thirty 

(30) days prior to the annual session.

ARTICLE XI

AUTHORITY-SUPERSEDE
These Articles of Incorporation correctly set forth the provisions of 

the Articles of Incorporation of the ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDA-

TION as amended.  They have been adopted as required by law and 

they supersede the original Articles of Incorporation and all amend-

ments.

ARTICLE XII

ADOPTION
Following notice as provided by law and the Bylaws of the Corpo-

ration, and at a meeting on the 9th  day of  August,  2000 and the 8th 

day of August, 2001, at which there was a quorum of members pres-

ent, the foregoing Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation 

were adopted by a two-thirds majority of members entitled to vote.

ARTICLE XIV

SUPERSEDURE
Except for the designated amendments, these Restated Articles of 

Incorporation correctly set out without change the provisions of the 

articles being amended, and the Restated Articles together with the 

designated amendments supersede the original Articles of Incorpo-

ration.
Amended and restated in its entirety on the above noted dates.

Revision First Vote 10-1-03 Annual Meeting

Revision Second Vote 10-5-2004 Annual Meeting

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

OF THE

ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

NAME
The name of this Corporation is Alaska Baptist Foundation, Inc. The 

address is 1750 O’Malley Road, Anchorage, Alaska 99507.

ARTICLE II

DURATION
The period of duration is perpetual

ARTICLE III

PURPOSE
The purpose(s) for which this Corporation is organized are to receive 

and maintain a fund or funds of real or personal property, or both, and 

subject to the restrictions and limitations hereinafter set forth, to use and 

apply the whole or any part of the income there from and the principal 

thereof exclusively for charitable, religious, or educational purposes ei-

ther directly or by contribution to Baptist organizations duly authorized 

to carry on charitable, religious, or educational activities.

ARTICLE IV

NATURE
No part of the net earnings of the Corporation shall inure to the benefit 

of any member, trustee, officer of the Corporation, or any private indi-
vidual, except that reasonable compensation may be paid for services 

rendered to or for the Corporation affecting one or more of its purpos-

es, and no member, trustee, officer of the Corporation, or any private 
individual shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the 

corporate assets on dissolution of the Corporation.  No part of the activ-

ities of the Corporation shall be carrying on propaganda, or otherwise 

attempting to influence legislation, or participation in, or intervening 
in, including the publication or distribution of statements, any political 

campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office.

ARTICLE V

MEMBER
SECTION 1. The member of this Corporation is the Alaska Baptist 

Convention in session which shall consist of messengers elected by 

Baptist churches in Alaska contributing to the Convention through the 

Cooperative Program, cooperating with and sympathetic with its pur-

pose and work and in harmony with the general doctrinal reflections of 
the Baptist Faith and Message.

SECTION 2.  The member, Alaska Baptist Convention, shall establish 

a Board of Directors to manage the affairs of the Alaska Baptist Founda-

tion between annual meetings of the Convention.

SECTION 3.  The Alaska Baptist Foundation is subject to the Consti-

tution and Bylaws of the member as well as the Bylaws of the Founda-

tion.

ARTICLE VI

POWERS
The powers of the Foundation are defined in the Corporation’s 

Bylaws.  Also, in general, the Foundation is to exercise such other 

powers which now are, or hereafter may be, conferred by law upon 

a Corporation organized for the purposes herein above set forth, or 

necessary or incidental to the powers as conferred, or conducive 

to the attainment of the purpose of the corporation, subject to such 

limitations as are or may be prescribed by law.

ARTICLE VII

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SECTION 1.  The Board of Directors shall be composed of 

members elected by the Alaska Baptist Convention in the Annual 

arTiCles of inCorporaTion of The alaska bapTisT founDaTion, inC.
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SECTION 3.  Authority.  The Directors shall have and exercise 

full authority with reference to the investment, reinvestment and 

administration of the principal of all funds and property devised, 

bequeathed, given or transferred to the Corporation, and shall have 

authority to execute proper transfers, assignments, contracts, deeds, 

releases, receipts, acquittance, and any and all instruments that may 

be necessary in the administration of the property and assets of the 

Corporation, and the purchaser or transferee of property, real or per-

sonal, into the application of proceeds so long as such instrument or 

instruments so delivered to him or them is executed by the President 

or Vice President of the Board of Directors and, in the case of real 

estate, attested by the secretary under the seal of the Corporation 

and upon proper resolution of the board of directors.  Where funds 

or property are given or devised to said Corporation, in accordance 

with specific conditions and provisions as to how the same shall be 
administered or distributed, said directors shall have full authority 

to carry out such specific directions.  In the absence of such spe-

cific directions, said directors shall have authority of said funds or 
property and to administer the same in such manner as to realize the 

best return by way of rental, interest or other income, and make full 

accounting of all such funds and property so administered by them 

to the Executive Board of the Convention or at the next session of 

the Alaska Baptist Convention.

SECTION 4.  Meetings.  The Directors shall hold at least two (2) 

meetings annually, at such time and place as they may determine.  

Called meetings may be held upon call of the President or upon the 

request of any three (3) Directors, and the President or secretary 

shall give sufficient notice of the time and place thereof to enable the 
directors to attend.

SECTION 5.  Quorum.  A quorum of the Board shall consist of a 

simple majority of the eligible directors.

SECTION 6.  Committees.  The Directors may, at their first meet-
ing or any subsequent meeting, elect from their own number such 

committee, or committees as needed, and delegate to it or them such 

authority as may be deemed advisable, so long as the same shall be 

within the limits of their own authority and discretion.

SECTION 7.  Compensation.  No Director of this Corporation 

shall receive, or lawfully be entitled to receive, any salary or remu-

neration for services connected with the administration of the affairs 

of this corporation.  Actual expenses incurred by any such director 

may be refunded when authorized. 

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS
SECTION 1.  Elections.  The Directors will elect the officers 

of the Foundation.  Such election will regularly take place at the 

organization meeting of the Directors.  A person elected to any office 
will continue to hold that office for one year or until the election of a 
successor.

SECTION 2.  Officers
a. President.  The President will preside at all meetings of the 

Directors and shall perform such other duties as normally 

pertain to the office of President.
b. Vice President.  A Vice President may be elected by the Di-

rectors, who will be vested with all the powers and charged 

with all of the duties (including those herein specifically 
set forth) of the President in the event of his absence or 

disability.  The Vice President will perform such other 

duties as may from time to time be delegated or assigned 

by the President or the directors.

c. Secretary.  The secretary will keep the minutes of meet-

ings of the Directors, see that all notices are duly given 

BYLAWS

OF

ALASKA BAPTIST FOUNDATION, INC.

ARTICLE I

PURPOSE AND MEMBERSHIP
The purpose and membership of the Corporation are set forth in 

the Articles of Incorporation of the Alaska Baptist Foundation.

ARTICLE II

AUTHORITY
SECTION 1.  To accept, acquire, receive, take, and hold by be-

quest, devise, grant, gift, purchase, exchange, lease, transfer, trust or 

act as trustee of, judicial order or decree, or otherwise for any of its 

objects and purpose, any property, both real and personal, of what-

ever kind, nature, or description and wherever situated.

SECTION 2.  To sell, exchange, convey, mortgage, lease, transfer 

or otherwise dispose of, any such property, both real and personal, as 

the objects and purposes of the Corporation may require, subject to 

such limitations as may be prescribed by law.

SECTION 3.  To borrow money and, from time to time, to make, 

accept, endorse, execute, and issue bonds, debentures, promissory 

notes, bills of exchange, and other obligations of the corporation for 

monies borrowed or in payment for property required or for any of 

the other purposes of the corporation, and to secure the payment of 

any such obligations by mortgage, pledge, deed, indenture, agree-

ment or other instrument of trust, or by other lien upon, assignment 

of or agreement in regard to all or any part of the property, rights, or 

privileges of the Corporation wherever situated, whether now owned 

or thereafter to be acquired.

SECTION 4.  To invest and reinvest in funds in such stock, com-

mon or preferred, bonds, debentures, mortgages, or in such other se-

curities and property as its Board of Directors shall deem advisable, 

subject to the limitations and conditions contained in any bequest, 

devise, grant or gift.

ARTICLE III

ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Convention of the Alaska Baptist Convention shall 

constitute the annual meeting of the Member at which time the Alas-

ka Baptist Foundation shall make its report and recommendations.

ARTICLE IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SECTION 1.  Membership.  The Board of Directors shall consist 

of no more than nine and no less than six members, of which at least 

one (1) or no more than three (3) shall be ordained ministers. The 

nominated Directors shall have been an active member of a Baptist 

church cooperating with the Alaska Baptist Convention for at least 

one year and as further defined in Article V Section 2 (e) of the By-

laws of the Alaska Baptist Convention. Directors shall be elected for 

a term of three (3) years and may be eligible for one additional term.  

The expiration of terms should be planned so that one-third of the 

directors will rotate off the board each year. Upon recommendation 

of the Committee on Boards, the Executive Board of the Convention 

may elect persons to fill vacancies until the Convention meets.
SECTION 2.  Duties.  It shall be the duty of the Directors to invest 

and reinvest all funds delivered to the Corporation by gifts, devise, 

bequest or otherwise, as well as the undistributed income arising 

from such investment, and to make distribution thereof.  The Direc-

tors shall faithfully make an accounting at its annual meeting of their 

administration of all funds entrusted to them to the Alaska Baptist 

Convention at its annual meetings.

bylaWs of The alaska bapTisT founDaTion, inC.
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bylaWs of The alaska bapTisT founDaTion, inC.
matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged in such 

action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct 

in the performance of his duties as such trustee, officer, or employ-

ee, or (b) any matter settled or compromised, unless, in the opinion 

of independent counsel selected by or in a manner determined by 

the trustees, there is not reasonable ground for such person’s being 

adjudged liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of 

his duties as such trustees or officer.

ARTICLE IX

AMENDMENTS
Amendments may be made in these Bylaws by a vote of twothirds 

of the members present when the vote is taken without regard to 

total enrollment at any annual meeting of the Convention, provided 

(1) no amendment may be considered after the second session of 

the Convention, (2) and that the proposed change be submitted in 

writing to the Convention office and the Constitution and Bylaws 
Committee at least one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the 

Annual Convention and published in state Baptist paper or mailed to 

the churches thirty (30) days prior to the Annual Convention.
Revised 09-25-13 Annual Meeting

in accordance with the provisions of these bylaws, or as 

required by law, be custodian of the records of the Founda-

tion and of its seal and, in general, perform all duties inci-

dent to the office. Except, as may otherwise be specifically 
provided in a resolution of the Directors, the secretary will 

be a proper officer to impress the Foundation’s seal on any 
instrument signed by the President or Vice President, and 

to attest to the same.

d. Treasurer.  The responsibilities of Treasurer are given 

to the Executive Director, unless and until the Board of 

Directors shall elect a person who is not also serving as 

Executive Director of the Convention.

ARTICLE VI

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR-TREASURER
SECTION 1.  Employment.  The Executive Director of the Alaska 

Baptist Convention shall also serve in the capacity of the Executive 

Director-Treasurer of the Foundation, unless and until the Board of 

Directors shall elect a person who is not also serving as Executive 

Director of the Convention.

SECTION 2.  Duties.  The Executive Director-Treasurer of the 

Foundation, subject to the provisions hereof, and to such regula-

tions as may from time to time be prescribed by the Trustees, shall 

actively administer the affairs of the office, supervise the work of 
other Foundation employees, and generally represent the Foundation 

in matters pertaining to the Foundation.  He shall have the custody 

of the funds, securities and property of the Corporation, and shall 

deposit all funds belonging to the Corporation in such banks or trust 

companies as may from time to time be designated by the Board of 

Directors.  Said funds may be withdrawn only upon draft or check 

co-signed by the Executive Director-Treasurer and President.  The 

Executive Director-Treasurer shall cause to be published a report 

of all receipts and disbursements and shall furnish any interested 

institution any information requested concerning the investment of 

funds for such institution.

ARTICLE VII

DISTRIBUTION
All funds so received and administered by the Corporation and dis-

tributed as herein provided shall be so administered and distributed, 

within the meaning of Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1954 and exempt from taxation under Section 501 (a) of 

the Internal Revenue Code, for the benefit of Baptist institutions and 
agencies located in the territory of the Southern Baptist Convention, 

and of causes, agencies and institutions fostered by, and having the 

official sanction of, the Alaska Baptist Convention or the Southern 
Baptist Convention, and for other purposes duly qualified under Sec-

tion 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 and approved 

by the directors of the Alaska Baptist Foundation.

ARTICLE VIII

INDEMNIFICATION
The corporation shall indemnify any trustee or officer or former 

director or officer of the corporation, and their respective heirs, 
administrators, successors, and assigns, against any and all expenses, 

including amounts paid upon judgments, counsel fees, and amounts 

paid in settlement (before or after suit is commenced), actually and 

reasonably incurred by such persons in connection with the defense 

or settlement of any claim, action, suit or proceeding in which they, 

or any of them, are made parties, or a party, or which may be assert-

ed against them or any of them, by reason of having been trustees or 

officers or a trustee or officer of the corporation; provided, however, 
that such indemnity should not be operative with respect to (a) any 
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Session Date Place President 1st Vice-Pres. 2nd Vice-Pres. Rec. Secretary Exec. Secretary Annual Sermon

Organized Mar 27-28, 1946 First, Anchorage Felton Griffin C. O. Dunkin J. T. Spurlin

1st Aug 22-23, 1946 First, Anchorage J. T. Spurlin Odell Lane C. O. Dunkin Felton Griffin Felton Griffin

2nd Aug 30-31, 1947 First, Juneau J. T. Spurlin Odell Lane O. R. Cary Felton Griffin O. R. Cary

3rd Sep 8-9, 1948 First, Anchorage J. T. Spurlin Felton Griffin Helen Carpenter B. C. Evans O. R. Cary

L. L. Richardson

4th Aug 24-25, 1949 First, Fairbanks Felton Griffin O. R. Cary W. A. Petty B. C. Evans H. F. Burns

5th Aug 15-17, 1950 Calvary, Anchorage Jimmy Bolton O. R. Cary Jane Chandler W. F. Lewis Odell Lane

6th Aug 14-16, 1951 Kodiak Jimmy Bolton Felton Griffin Ruth W. Murdock Russell Simmons B. I. Carpenter

7th Jul 29-31, 1952 First, Ketchikan Felton Griffin O. R. Cary John Defoore Russell Simmons O. R. Cary

8th Sep 22-24, 1953 First, Fairbanks O. R. Cary Velton Walker Avery Richey Russell Simmons Dan Tyson

James Rose

9th Aug 17-19, 1954 First, Juneau Dan Tyson Avery Richey Georgia Simmons Russell Simmons John Denton

10th Aug 23-25, 1955 First, Valdez John Defoore John Dickerson Georgia Simmons Russell Simmons M. L. McKay

11th Aug 7-8, 1956 Faith, Spenard B. I. Carpenter John Dickerson Georgia Simmons L. A. Watson James Rose

12th Aug 13-15, 1957 First, Anchorage B. I. Carpenter James Rose M. L. McKay Georgia Simmons L. A. Watson Richard Miller

13th Aug 12-14, 1958 Calvary, Anchorage E. E. Evans Harry Borah Georgia Simmons L. A. Watson

14th Aug 11-13, 1959 First, Sitka Felton Griffin O. W. Marson Robert Gingrich Mrs. Donald Davis L. A. Watson Carl Elder

15th Oct 23-27, 1960 First, Fairbanks Carl Elder Jack Turner Marion B. Dunham Mrs. Donald Davis L. A. Watson John Jeffcoat

Jack Turner M. B. Dunham

16th Oct 24-26, 1961 Faith, Spenard Bill Parson James Dotson H. M. McCowen Mrs. Donald Davis L. A. Watson James Akin

James Dotson H. M. McCowen

17th Aug 14-16, 1962 First, Valdez James Dotson John Jeffcoat William Hansen James Henderson L. A. Watson S. W. Driggers

John Jeffcoat William Hansen

18th Aug 13-15, 1963 First, Anchorage John Jeffcoat William Hansen Aubrey Short Frances Sutherlin William Hansen Felton Griffin

Aubrey Short

19th Aug 13-14, 1964 First, Ketchikan Aubrey Short James Whisenhant Samuel Ganaway John Camp William Hansen M. L. McKay

James Whisenhant Samuel Ganaway

20th Aug 10-12, 1965 University, College James Whisenhant John Canning Oliver W. Marson Bernice Gillespie William Hansen John Canning

Oliver W. Marson

21st Aug 16-18, 1966 Muldoon Road John Canning O. W. Marson Leo A. Josey Bernice Gillespie E. W. Hunke, Jr. Edward Wolfe

O. W. Marson Leo A. Josey

22nd Nov 7-8, 1967 First, Anchorage O. W. Marson Edward Wolfe Leo A. Josey Bernice Gillespie E. W. Hunke, Jr. Virgil Chron

23rd Aug 13-16, 1968 First, Fairbanks Edward Wolfe Roy Moore Marion B. Dunham Milidene McConnell E. W. Hunke, Jr. Harley Shield

24th Aug 12-14, 1969 First, Sitka Edward Wolfe Bill Duncan Clifford McConnell Milidene McConnell E. W. Hunke, Jr. James Akin

25th Aug 11-13, 1970 First, Anchorage Bill Duncan Richard Miller Milidene McConnell E. W. Hunke, Jr. Felton Griffin

26th Aug 10-12, 1971 University, College Bill Duncan Tom Kilpatrick Rawls Pierce Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Vern Baker

27th Aug 15-17, 1972 First, Juneau Kelly Dickson Herb Cotton Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Tommie B. Allen

28th Aug 14-16, 1973 First, Soldotna Herb Cotton Hollis Bryant Louise Yarbrough Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Wesley Pruitt

29th Aug 13-15, 1974 Calvary, Anchorage Herb Cotton Don Davis Gene Medaris Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Earl Midkiff

30th Aug 12-14, 1975 First, North Pole Virgil Chron Keith Foster W. D. Kirk Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Clifford McCo-
nnell

31st Aug 10-12, 1976 First, Sitka Virgil Chron Don Davis Bill Lyons Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Don Davis

32nd Aug 16-18, 1977 New Hope, Anch Alvin Wood Ferrell Mills Bill Lyons Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Bill Lyons

33rd Nov 14-16, 1978 First, Kenai Alvin Wood Ferrell Mills Maurice Murdock Dixie L. Foster J. Troy Prince Paul Greene

34th Aug 14-16, 1979 First, Fairbanks William B. Lyons Louise Yarbrough Maurice Murdock Dixie L. Foster Allen H. Meeks, 
Int

Bill D. Duncan

35th Aug 12-14, 1980 Faith, Anchorage William B. Lyons Louise Yarbrough Judson Owen Dixie L. Foster Allen H. Meeks, 
Int

Ferrell Mills

36th Aug 11-13, 1981 First, Soldotna Ferrell Mills Al Allen Roy Williams Milidene McConnell Allen H. Meeks, 
Int

John McClung

37th Aug 10-12, 1982 Moose Creek, N.P. Ferrell Mills Roy Williams Shirley Miebs John H. Allen Bob Chadwick

38th Aug 9-11, 1983 First, Anchorage Roy Williams Bill Branch Milidene McConnell John H. Allen Glen Little

39th Aug 7-9, 1984 First, Kenai Roy Williams Glen Little Paul Brewer Milidene McConnell John H. Allen Judson Owen

40th Aug 6-8, 1985 University, Fairbanks Neil Thompson Royce Christmas Bill Branch Milidene McConnell John H. Allen Dale Holley

hisToriCal Table
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Session Date Place President 1st Vice-Pres. 2nd Vice-Pres. Rec. Secretary Exec. Secretary Annual Sermon

41st Aug 5-7, 1986 First, Anchorage Neil Thompson Royce Christmas Leonard Everman Milidene McConnell John H. Allen Felton Griffin

42nd Nov 9-10, 1987 First, Soldotna Royce Christmas Judson Owen Johnny McCoy LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan, 
Int

Don Tallison

Judson Owen Johnny McCoy

Session Date Place President 1st Vice-Pres. 2nd Vice-Pres. Rec. Secretary Exec. Secretary Annual Sermon

43rd Aug 9-10, 1988 Muldoon Denali Judson Owen Carl Johnson Johnny McCoy LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Morris Wall

44th Aug 8-9, 1989 Glacier Valley, Juneau Judson Owen Carl Johnson Bill Branch LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Marlin Starnes

45th Aug 7-8, 1990 Shannon Park A. B. Colyar Mike Procter Mark Kisselberg LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Lewis McClendon

46th Aug 6-7, 1991 South Anchorage A. B. Colyar Mike Procter Paul Brewer LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Bob Jones

47th Aug 4-5, 1992 First, Kenai Walter Davidson Mike Procter Paul Brewer LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Johnny Jackson

48th Aug 3-4, 1993 First, North Pole Walter Davidson Johnny McCoy LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Paul Brewer

49th Aug 9-10, 1994 College Heights Tim Clark Bob Jones Paul Brewer LaVerne Bradshaw Bill G. Duncan Tim Clark

50th Aug 8-9, 1995 First, Anchorage Tim Clark Bob Jones Dean Blankenship LaVerne Bradshaw W. C. Garland, Int Felton Griffin

51st Aug 6-7, 1996 First, Anchorage Wally Smith Shirley Miebs LaVerne Bradshaw Cloyd Sullins Earl Midkiff

52nd Aug 5-6, 1997 Chapel, Juneau Wally Smith Terry Hill Jim Clark LaVerne Bradshaw Cloyd Sullins Bob Buster

53rd Aug 11-12, 1998 University, Fairbanks Wally Smith Marvin Owen Royce Christmas LaVerne Bradshaw Cloyd Sullins Marvin Owen

54th Aug 10-11, 1999 First, Wasilla Marvin Owen Georgie Owen LaVerne Bradshaw Cloyd Sullins Don Shannon

55th Aug 8-9, 2000 Rabbit Creek, Anch Marvin Owen Denver Copeland Georgie Owen Debra Long Cloyd Sullins Jerry Pinkerton

56th Aug 7-8, 2001 College Heights Marvin Owen Leon May Debra Long David Baldwin Johnny McCoy

57th Aug 6-7, 2002 South Anchorage Jack Green Leon May Scott Coffman Judy Zach David Baldwin Terry Hill

58th Sep 30-Oct 1, 
2003

Moose Creek, N.P. Leon May John Mortensen Mark Goodman Judy Zach David Baldwin Frank Taylor

59th Oct 5-6, 2004 Muldoon Road Bapt Leon May Mark Goodman Bruce Rowell Ruby Stogsdill David Baldwin Fred Stroud

60th Aug 16-17, 2005 Glacier Valley, Juneau Bruce Rowell Tom Hoffman Gary Cox Ruby Stogsdill David Baldwin Bruce Rowell

61st Aug 15-16, 2006 First, Fairbanks Bruce Rowell Gary Cox Herb Johnston Colleen Cannon David Baldwin Gary Cox

62nd Sep 25-26, 2007 The Crossing@
Birchwood

Gary Cox Charles Worthy Ed Gregory Colleen Cannon David Baldwin David George

63rd Sep 30-Oct 1, 
2008

FBC, Palmer Gary Cox Charles Worthy Ed Gregory Judy Zach David Baldwin John Forrester

64th Sep 29-30, 2009 Lighthouse Com-
munity

Ed Gregory Bryan Myers John Jemar Judy Zach David Baldwin Scott Coffman

65th Sep 28-29, 2010 First Baptist Church, 
Wasilla

Ed Gregory Bryan Myers Tom Hoffman Georgie Owens David Baldwin John Smith

66th Sep 27-28, 2011 First, North Pole Charles Worthy Tom Hoffman Garry Loeffler Shirley Bearce Mike Procter Kerry Chadwick

67th Sep 25-26, 2012 Rabbit Creek, Anch Charles Worthy Tom Hoffman Garry Loeffler Courtney Lyle Mike Procter Don Shannon

68th Sep 24-25, 2013 Glacier Valley, Juneau Don Shannon Johnny McCoy  Re-
signed (4/7/2013)

Jack Sherman Mary Sue Foster Mike Procter Jimmie Stringer

Jack Sherman

69th Sep 29-Oct 1, 
2014

College Heights, 
Soldotna

Don Shannon Jack Sherman Harold Conrad Mary Sue Foster Mike Procter Bryan Myers

70th Sep 28-30, 2015 FBC, Palmer Todd Burgess Eric Ash Harold Conrad Judy Rice Mike Procter Tom Hoffman

71st Sep 26-28, 2016 University Bap-
tist-Fairbanks

Todd Burgess Eric Ash Eric Jones Judy Rice Randy Covington Lawrence Ellison

72nd Sep 25-27, 2017 FBC, Ketchikan @ 
Civic Center

Bryan Myers Eric Jones Tracy Simmons Donna Fleury Randy Covington Gordon Mills

73rd Sep 25-26, 2018 FBC, Wasilla Bryan Myers Tracy Simmons Cliff Day Donna Fleury Randy Covington Troy Gourley
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Adelphoi M CBA 13 0 0 12 0 0 5,000 2,200

Agape Fellowship M HPBA 42 2 2 49 39 0 - 8,639

Alaska Iu-Mienh First Baptist Church M CBA 126 15 - 65 20 0 15,622 3,562

Anchor Baptist Church C TBA 12 0 - 32 7 21 24,203 18,253

Anderson Community Church M TVBA 18 0 0 18 9 12 500 150

Aquillaq Baptist Mission M CBA 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0

Big Lake Baptist Church C HPBA 171 1 - 100 80 80 178,624 25,796

Bodenburg Butte Baptist Church C HPBA 9 0 - 30 7 - 12,050 1,350

Calvary Baptist Church C CBA 80 10 - 50 58 - 88,050 9,892

Catalyst Church M CBA - 2 - 40 40 0 - 0

Christ Community Church C CBA 132 7 - 115 51 60 177,000 4,200

Clearwater Baptist Church C TVBA 150 18 15 170 185 0 125,000 30,000

Cliffside Community Chapel C CBA - - - - - - - -

Coffman Cove Community Baptist Church C TBA 14 0 - 18 4 0 - 15,488

Cold Bay Chapel C CBA - - - - - - - -

College Heights Baptist Church C ABC 348 9 2 150 135 210 538,078 1,150

Cottonwood Creek Cowboy Church M HPBA 20 2 5 8 5 0 1,117 1,219

Cross Roads Baptist Church C TVBA 400 1 0 48 34 81 163,303 34,500

CrossCountry Church C HPBA 139 1 8 109 75 86 202,334 4,440

Dillingham Bible Fellowship C HPBA 32 0 0 75 80 0 136,417 41,699

Eagle River Korean Baptist Church C CBA 25 2 23 - 20 0 15,000 4,600

Emmanuel Baptist Church C TBA 15 0 4 16 10 0 32,989 3,981

Fairbanks Korean Baptist Church C TVBA 13 0 - 10 5 5 13,541 672

Fairview Loop Baptist Church C HPBA 278 12 0 165 145 95 384,479 110,699

Faith Baptist Church C TVBA 76 2 1 55 48 0 154,508 12,598

Filipino Bible Church C CBA 100 8 - 145 127 50 - -

First Baptist Church of Anchorage C CBA 946 9 6 89 149 136 269,780 26,138

First Baptist Church of Eagle River C CBA 212 1 2 - 78 99 329,282 74,919

First Baptist Church of Fairbanks C TVBA 38 3 4 20 6 0 63,298 15,065

First Baptist Church of North Pole C TVBA 137 5 23 200 140 119 375,488 99,924

First Baptist Church-Delta Junction C TVBA 86 13 - 130 57 148 349,972 242,012

First Baptist Church-Juneau C TBA 155 2 3 50 50 79 140,889 43,793

First Baptist Church-Kenai C ABC 429 2 6 55 35 105 146,817 25,137

First Baptist Church-Ketchikan C TBA 130 4 5 95 50 0 130,000 22,000

First Baptist Church-Kotzebue C CBA 40 3 0 25 12 70 100,000 29,520

First Baptist Church-Palmer C HPBA 651 4 6 105 55 106 272,674 12,374

First Baptist Church-Petersburg C TBA 51 3 7 52 41 56 131,566 23,252

First Baptist Church-Sitka C TBA 69 1 0 35 25 - 95,357 0

First Baptist Church-Soldotna C CBA 64 1 5 30 16 0 79,142 1,006

First Baptist Church-Valdez C HPBA 153 3 - 73 80 132 204,422 43,920

First Baptist Church-Wasilla C HPBA 986 11 8 117 50 275 305,204 76,278

First Baptist Church-Willow C HPBA 118 7 0 40 30 34 104,310 20,512

First Hmong Baptist Church C CBA 56 0 - - 7 1 9,121 0

First Korean Baptist Church C CBA 100 5 - 80 30 40 50,000 10,000

annual ChurCh profile DigesT
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First Native Baptist Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

Friendship Baptist Mission C TVBA 15 0 0 28 15 0 38,000 11,200

Frontier Baptist Church M TVBA 29 1 - 30 19 8 52,367 21,200

Frontier Fellowship C CBA 60 2 6 35 20 12 - -

Frontier Native M CBA 17 1 - 8 8 0 8,364 1,946

Frontier Southern Baptist Church C CBA 80 4 3 70 35 40 140,000 20,400

Gilead Ministries C CBA 19 3 - 9 20 - 70,000 -

Glacier Valley Baptist Church C TBA 143 7 5 76 37 126 188,719 44,993

Grandview Baptist Church C CBA 193 4 8 108 82 96 368,702 85,016

Greater Friendship Baptist Church C CBA 656 9 20 127 62 131 298,725 37,645

Hillside Baptist Church C CBA 118 0 0 57 50 72 169,423 30,846

Hoonah Baptist Mission M TBA 6 0 0 4 4 34 1,200 0

Iglesia Bautista Hispana Sunset Hills M CBA 13 - 2 10 6 - 11,650 1,265

Immanuel Baptist Church C CBA 84 4 0 40 21 58 90,670 14,950

Journey Church M HPBA - - - - - - - -

Juneau Korean Baptist Church C TBA 16 0 0 15 6 0 0 5,425

Kasaan Fellowship M TBA 0 0 0 6 5 0 1,000 0

Ketchikan Filipino Baptist Mission M TBA 16 1 - 14 14 0 11,700 900

Kiana Baptist Mission M CBA - - - - - - - -

Kobuk Baptist Mission M CBA 16 0 - 14 8 25 - -

Korean New Central Baptist Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

Lighthouse Community Church C ABC - - - - - - - -

Malamalama Fou Church M CBA 40 - - 23 14 12 9,600 900

Montana Creek Baptist Church C HPBA 71 2 - 54 33 63 110,787 23,295

Moose Creek Baptist Church C TVBA 65 2 0 35 20 27 52,000 5,790

Moose Pass Community Church C ABC - - - - - - - -

Morning Star Baptist Church C TVBA - - - - - - - -

Mount Pleasant Baptist Church C TVBA 178 11 - 100 80 65 0 0

Mount Redoubt Baptist Church C ABC 8 4 0 12 5 0 29,695 -

Mountain View Community Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

Muldoon Road Baptist Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

New Birth Christian Church C TVBA 50 5 - 30 12 0 - 5,500

New Grace Christian Church C CBA 250 4 - 180 50 - - -

New Hope Baptist Church C CBA 204 9 8 100 70 100 152,863 20,261

New Hope Fellowship C TBA 21 - - 25 7 0 63,359 7,265

North Bear Street Baptist Church C HPBA 5 0 0 11 9 0 25,552 1,411

North Tongass Baptist Church C TBA 30 0 0 12 12 0 - 30,000

Northern Lights Missions M TVBA - 3 - 30 30 300 - 176,000

Pathway Discipleship church M CBA 0 0 0 0 0 65 1,600 4,500

Pioneer Baptist Church of Wasilla C HPBA 25 0 - - 35 36 - -

Rabbit Creek Church C CBA 403 38 - 376 296 0 837,984 105,265

River in the Desert Community Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

Riverside Chapel C ABC - - - - - - - -

Roots @ Night M CBA 18 3 0 18 0 0 2,400 300

annual ChurCh profile DigesT
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Roots Family Church, Kasilof M CBA 50 5 - 35 16 0 - 250

Roots Family Church, Soldotna C CBA 46 4 1 46 10 43 11,000 1,500

Sabbath Peace Fellowship M HPBA 42 2 2 40 35 0 4,800 1,440

Salcha Baptist Church C TVBA 86 5 3 75 57 55 111,468 36,481

Sand Lake Fellowship M CBA 35 3 5 28 28 42 14,264 1,526

Sand Point Chapel C CBA 20 - - 39 12 30 72,787 5,999

Schrock Road Community Church C HPBA - - - - - - - -

Settler’s Bay Community Church C HPBA - - - - - - - -

Seward Bible Church C CBA 6 0 0 15 0 0 0 0

Shannon Park Baptist Church C TVBA 80 17 11 90 50 0 - -

Shungnak Baptist Mission M CBA 1 0 0 14 5 40 3,500 0

Solid Rock Baptist Church C CBA - - - - - - - -

St  John Baptist Church C TVBA 40 4 4 35 12 0 40,000 10,100

Sunset Hills Baptist Church C CBA 142 1 1 87 56 200 234,517 42,706

Tenakee Springs Community Church M TBA 19 0 3 22 0 0 8,500 437

Tetlin Community Church M TVBA 25 0 0 22 15 19 2,231 0

The Crossing @ Birchwood C CBA 825 44 - 852 400 576 - 287,600

Thorne Bay Baptist Church C TBA - 5 - 45 18 20 27,000 2,200

Togiak Baptist Mission M TVBA 18 0 2 15 8 0 3,600 850

Transitional Ministries M CBA 15 1 - 30 10 0 1,300 75

True North Church C CBA 210 2 - 190 120 0 312,000 30,920

True North Church Girdwood M CBA 30 2 - 40 25 0 31,781 3,756

UBC-Chinese Fellowship M TVBA 45 1 - 35 5 0 9,513 1,929

Unalaska Reformed Church C ABC 6 0 - 13 10 0 19,640 2,140

University Baptist Church-Anchorage C CBA 136 4 - 70 96 42 104,000 30,000

University Baptist Church-Fairbanks C TVBA 223 1 5 171 98 0 215,959 28,088

Valley View Baptist Church C CBA 64 2 2 37 22 0 108,000 16,775

Wasilla Korean Baptist Church C HPBA 40 0 0 35 5 0 50,000 5,300

Whittier Christian Community Church C CBA 30 2 - 30 20 20 - -

2017-2018 Totals  11,717 391  226  6,444 4,313  4,487  9,547,357  2,267,283 

2016-2017 Totals  11,490 407  362  6,416 4,052  4,682  9,577,013  2,219,622 

Amount of difference  227 (16)  (136)  28  261  (195)  (29,656)  47,661 

annual ChurCh profile DigesT



Section VIII
Annual Meeting 

Program
and Personnel



Tuesday Evening, September 24, 2019

Presiding: Scott Belmore, First Vice President

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

Scripture and Prayer Philip Coleman

Updated Registration Report Krista Oldman

Balloting Randy Covington

Executive Committee of the 

     Southern Baptist Convention (SBC) Report Ashley Clayton

Prayer for SBC David Becker

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

North American Mission Board (NAMB) Report Rick Curtis

Prayer for NAMB Brian Moore

Presentation from International

     Mission Board (IMB) Missionaries Kyle and Jackie Kirkpatrick

Prayer for IMB Butch Strickland

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

President’s Message Tracy Simmons

Announcements and Adjournment Scott Belmore

Benediction Dan Smouse

Tuesday Afternoon, September 24, 2019

Presiding: Tracy Simmons, President

Registration

Welcome From Host Church Scott Coffman

Scripture and Prayer Willie Tauanu’u

Registration Report Krista Oldman

Adoption of Program 

Executive Director/Treasurer Report Randy Covington

Evangelism and Church Development Report Jimmy Stewart

Church Planting and Missions Report Jae McKee

Presentation and Adoption of 2019 Budget 

RECESS

Birchwood Behavioral Health Report David Banks

Alaska Baptist Foundation Report Randy Covington/Adam Long

WMU Report Angela Jones

Committee Reports Leon May

Committees On Boards; Committees; and Time, Place, Preacher 

Miscellaneous Business Tracy Simmons

Nominations for President Randy Covington

Nominations for Vice Presidents Randy Covington

Nominations for Recording Secretary Randy Covington

Announcements and Adjournment Tracy Simmons

Prayer/Benediction Blake Hart

Wednesday Morning, September 25, 2019

Presiding: Cliff Day, Second Vice President

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

Scripture and Prayer Paul Frost 

Updated Registration Report Krista Oldman

Gateway Seminary Warren Haynes

California Baptist University John Montgomery

Introduction of New Personnel to the State Randy Covington

Greetings from Mosaic Ministries Scott Belmore

State Mission Emphasis Jae McKee

Valeria Sherard State Mission Offering

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

Wayland Baptist University Report iJohn Jemar

Implementation Team Report Jeff Anderson

Worship through Music Greg Crawford

Annual Sermon Michael Bunton

 Al Weeks (alternate)

Officer Election Results Randy Covington
Installation of New Officers Randy Covington
Recognition of Guests Randy Covington

Announcements and Adjournment Cliff Day

Benediction Todd Buck

Supper provided

Please take this opportunity to view the 

Alaska Disaster Relief

Laundry/Shower Trailer

Lunch provided

Please join us in Fellowship Hall

7:15 am

Question/Answer time for the 

Implementation Team

Breakfast provided

prograM
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Banks, David  Executive Director/Treasurer, Alaska Baptist Family Serviced, DBA Birchwood Behavioral Health

Becker, David Pastor, First Baptist Church, Delta Junction

Belmore, Scott First Vice President, Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network
Director, Mosaic Campus Ministries

Buck, Todd Pastor, Tenakee SpringsCommunity Church

Bunton, Michael Pastor, Greater Friendship Baptist Church, Anchorage

Clayton, Ashley, Dr. Vice President for Cooperative Program and Stewardship,
 Executive Committee, Southern Baptist Convention

Coffman, Scott Pastor, College Heights Baptist Church, Soldotna

Coleman, Philip Pastor, True North Church, Anchorage

Covington, Randy, Dr. Executive Director/Treasurer,
 Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network
 Executive Director/Treasurer, Alaska Baptist Foundation

Crawford, Greg Associate Pastor of Worship and Education, College Heights Baptist Church, Soldotna

Curtis, Rick Assistant to the President for Convention and Associational Relations, NAMB

Day, Cliff Second Vice President, Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network
 Pastor, First Baptist Church, Sitka

Frost, Paul Pastor, Togiak Baptist Mission

Hart, Blake Pastor, Hillside Baptist Church, Anchorage

Haynes, Warren, Dr. Director of the ADVANCE Program, Gateway Seminary

Jemar, John Associate Dean, Wayland Baptist University, Anchorage

Jones, Angela President, Alaska WMU
 Member,  New Birth Christian Church

K, K and J International Mission Board personnel

Long, Adam Foundation Coordination Director, Alaska Baptist Foundation

May, Leon Chair, Committees on Boards, Committees and Time, Place, Preacher
 Pastor, River In The Desert Community Church

McKee, Jae Director of Church Planting and Missions,
 Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network

Montgomery, John, Dr. Dean of Spiritual Life, California Baptist University

Moore, Brian Pastor, Roots Family Church, Kasilof

Oldman, Krista Chair, Credentials Committee
 Member, First Baptist Church, Wasilla

Simmons, Tracy President, Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network
 Pastor, Christ Community Church, Anchorage

Smouse, Dan Pastor, Lighthouse Community Church, Nikiski

Stewart, Jimmy Director of Evangelism and Church Development,
 Alaska Baptist Convention, DBA Alaska Baptist Resource Network

Strickland, Butch Director of Missions, Chugach Baptist Association and Hatcher Pass Baptist Association

Tauanu’u, Willie Pastor, University Baptist Church, Anchorage

Weeks, Al Pastor, First Baptist Church, Kenai

prograM personnel
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proposeD CalenDar 2019-2020
June 2020

•	 Alaska Native Youth Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 1 through 
Friday, June 5)

•	 WMU National Annual Meeting; Orlando, FL, (Sunday, June 7 
through Monday, June 8)

•	 Youth Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 15 through Friday, June 
19)

•	 Southern Baptist Convention; Orlando, FL, (Tuesday, June 9 
through Wednesday, June 10)

•	 Boys Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 8 through Friday, June 12)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, K-2nd grade (Wednesday, June 
17-Friday, June 19)

•	 Girls Camp, LGYRC (Monday, June 22 through Friday, June 26)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 3-4 (Monday, June 22 through 
Friday, June 26)

July 2020
•	 ABC and ABF offices closed for Independence Day, (Monday, 

July 6)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 5-6 (Monday, July 6 through 
Friday, July 10)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 7-8 (Monday, July 13 through 
Friday, July 17)

•	 Camp Baldwin, TVBA, grades 9-12 (Monday, July 20 through 
Friday, July 24)

•	 JAM Camp, (Sunday, July 12 through Thursday, July 16)

augusT 2020
•	 FUSION Youth Conference, ABT, (Wednesday, August 5 

through Friday, August 7)

sepTeMber 2020
•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Labor Day, (Monday, 

September 7)

•	 Valeria Sherard State Mission Emphasis, (Sunday, September 6 
through Sunday, September 12)

•	 TBA Annual Meeting, location unknown, (UNKNOWN)

•	 IMPACT! Alaska Conference (Monday, September 28, 2018)

•	 wMu Annual Meeting, (Tuesday, September 29)

•	 Pastor’s Conference, (Tuesday, September 29)

•	 Alaska Baptist Convention Annual Meeting; First Baptist 
Church, Anchorage (Tuesday, September 29 through Wednesday, 
September 30)

oCTober 2020
•	 Personal Evangelism Commitment Day, (Sunday, October 4)

•	 TVBA Annual Meeting (UNKNOWN)

•	 HPBA Annual Meeting/Missions Celebration, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

noveMber 2020
•	 Orientation for new ABC Executive Board members at ABC 

offices, (Monday, November 9)
•	 All ABC Executive Board Committees, (Monday, November 9)

•	 ABC Executive Board meeting at the ABC offices, (Monday, 
November 9 through Tuesday, November 10)

•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10:00 a.m., (Thursday, November 5)

•	 Annual Church Profiles Due, (Monday, November 16)
•	 ABC and ABF Offices close at 1:00 p.m. for Thanksgiving 

Holiday, (Wednesday, November 25)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Thanksgiving Holiday, 
(Thursday, November 26)

•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 
and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, November 29 
through Sunday, December 6)

DeCeMber 2020
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 

and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, November 29 
through Sunday, December 6)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Christmas Holiday, (1:00 
Wednesday, December 23 through Friday, January 1)

oCTober 2019
•	 TBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

•	 TVBA Annual Meeting (UNKNOWN)

•	 HPBA Annual Meeting/Missions Celebration, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

noveMber 2019
•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10:00 a.m., (Thursday, November 7)

•	 Orientation for new ABC Executive Board members at ABC 
offices, (Monday, November 11)

•	 All ABC Executive Board Committees, (Monday, November 12)

•	 ABC Executive Board meeting at the ABC offices, (Monday, 
November 11 through Tuesday, November 12)

•	 Annual Church Profiles Due, (Friday, November 15)
•	 ABC and ABF Offices close at 1:00 p.m. for Thanksgiving 

Holiday, (Wednesday, November 27)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Thanksgiving Holiday, 
(Thursday, November 28)

DeCeMber 2019
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for International Missions 

and the Lottie Moon Christmas Offering, (Sunday, December 1 
through Sunday, December 8)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Christmas Holiday, (1:00 p.m. 
Monday, December 23, 2019 through Wednesday, January 1, 
2020)

January 2020
•	 January Bible Study, (Sunday, January 5 through Sunday, 

January 12)

february 2020
•	 TVBA Women’s Winter Wake-Up (Friday-Saturday, February 

7-8)

•	 State Evangelism Conference, (Monday-Tuesday, February 3-4)

•	 Focus on wMu, (Monday, February 10 through Sunday, February 
16)

MarCh 2020
•	 Week of Prayer and Mission Study for North American Missions 

and the Annie Armstrong Easter Offering, (Sunday, March 1 
through Sunday, March 8)

•	 Church Planting Emphasis (Sunday, March 15)

april 2020
•	 Women on Mission Celebration, (Friday, April 3 through 

Saturday, April 4)

•	 TBA Executive Board Meeting; FBC, Petersburg, (UNKNOWN)

•	 CBA Semi-Annual Meeting, (UNKNOWN)

•	 Easter, (Sunday, April 12)

•	 VBS Training Clinics

o VBS Training TVBA, (Saturday, April 18)

o VBS Training HPBA, (Monday, April 20)

o VBS Training CBA, (Tuesday, April 21)

•	 New Pastor and full-time staff orientation, (Wednesday, April 
24) TENTATIVE

•	 Ministers and Spouses Conference, (Thursday, April 23 through 
Saturday, April 25)

May 2020
•	 ABC Executive Board Budget and Finance Committee Meeting, 

(Monday, May 4)

•	 ABC Executive Board Committee Meetings, (Monday, May 4)

•	 ABC Executive Board Convenes, (Monday, May 4 through 
Tuesday, May 5)

•	 ABF Trustee meeting 10 AM, (Thursday, May 7)

•	 National Day of Prayer, (Thursday, May 7)

•	 Day of Prayer for Birchwood Behavioral Health (Sunday, May 
10)

•	 ABC and ABF Offices closed for Memorial Day, (Monday, May 
25)


